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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of
investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest

only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and
mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities
traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance
is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on
GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from
or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this

report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China
Ocean Group Development Limited (formerly known as “China
Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited”) (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the
best of their knowledge and belief, the information contained in
this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission

of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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~ Chairman’s Statement
BN 4

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), I hereby present
the Annual Report of the Company and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2020 (the “Year”) to our

shareholders.

RESULTS

The Revenue for the Group decreased to approximately
HK$826,636,000 for the Year as compared to approximately
HK$960,595,000 in 2019. The Group’s aquatic products business
generated a total revenue of approximately HK$806,753,000, the
fishing operation also contributed to approximately HK$19,760,000
to the Group’s total revenue. The Group has continued to develop its
business relationships with its business partners and potential partners
in the PRC in order to increase and explore new sources of income.
The Group continued to concentrate on aquatic products during the

Year.

The Group recorded an increase in gross profit to approximately
HK$87,198,000 in the Year as compared to approximately
HK$80,992,000 in 2019. The Group will continue to control the
material costs and explore new business opportunities, so as to
improve the gross profit of the Group. The gross profit margin,
excluding interest income received from the money lending business,
increased from 8.3% to 10.5% during the Year. Gross profit margin of
aquatic products from fishing operation were generally higher than

from supply chain operation.

Net profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the
Year amounted to approximately HK$28,029,000 as compared to a
profit of approximately HK$43,668,000 in 2019. During the Year,
the administrative expenses decreased to approximately HK$45.4
million from HK$76.3 million in 2019 because of non-recurring loss
on disposal of securities of HK$17 millions, other decreases mainly
arose from the legal and professional fees of HK$6 million, other tax
paid from Cambodian operation of HK$2.3 million, entertainment
expenses of HK$1.9 million and transportation expenses of HK$1.1
million. Due to the expansion of the Company's operation in
Mozambique and Cambodia, more staff were employed and operation
set-up being enhanced in anticipation of the commencement of large
scale fishing operations. The major components in administrative
expenses being salaries and welfare for both staff and directors;

depreciation, exchange losses and rent and rates.
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW
Supply chain management and related services

The supply chain management remains the main focus of the Group.
The Group is providing intermediate service between suppliers
and customers and it takes advantage of the business networks and
resources in order to assist small and medium —sized enterprises in
various industries to minimise the overall operation cost. Owing to
the solid financial background of the Group and the great demand for
supply chain service in mainland China, the Group has established
many strategic partnerships with other supply chain companies, so as
to undertake the operation of purchase and sales based on the services

on import and export trade, logistic, customs clearance and storage.

During the Year, the Group continued its supply chain management
services of aquatic products. The Group also expanded its operation
to vertically integrate with fishing subsidiaries to secure the supply of

aquatic products.

Money lending business

During the Year, the Group generated interest income of
approximately HK$123,000 from its money lending business. The
Group regularly assessed the recoverability risk of its loan receivables
portfolio to ensure that impairment loss, if any, would be made in a

timely manner.
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(/ Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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PROSPECT

With the lead of the management team, the Company is actively
exploring business opportunities in other sectors to diversify risks
and broaden the sources of income of the Company. The Company
has adequate resources to continue with its business operations, and
will continue to focus on its corporate objective to develop current
businesses in order to strengthen its competitiveness, integrate its
capital resources and contribute a maximum wealth to our equity
holders.

The Company’s supply chain management business has remained
quite stable during the Year, however, the Company will pay close
attention to its performance and future development. At the same
time, the management will continuously monitor and review the
overall operation and financial performance of the Group’s businesses
so as to cope with the ever-changing business environment. The
management will continue to proactively seek other promising
investment and business opportunities to broaden the source of
income of the Group and enhance value to the shareholders of the
Company through investment and/or acquisitive business or projects
that have promising outlooks and prospects, and with the Group’s
management team having extensive experience in the marine fishing
business, the Group will also explore further opportunities in the

marine fishing business.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, I would like to take this opportunity
to express my gratitude to all members of the Board and staff for
their dedication and contribution to the Group and to those who have
supported us. We will continue to make our best efforts in developing
our businesses to produce good economic results and better return for

our shareholders.

Liu Rongsheng

Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 August 2020
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW
Supply chain management and related services

The supply chain management service remains the main focus of the
Group. The Group is providing intermediate service between suppliers
and customers and it takes advantage of the business networks and
resources in order to assist small and medium —sized enterprises in
various industries to minimise the overall operation cost. Owing to
the solid financial background of the Group and the great demand for
supply chain service in mainland China, the Group has established
many strategic partnerships with other supply chain companies, so as
to undertake the operation of purchase and sales based on the services

on import and export trade, logistic, customs clearance and storage.

During the year, the Group continued its supply chain management
services of aquatic products. The Group also expanded its operation
to vertically integrate with fishing subsidiaries to secure the supply of

aquatic products.

Money lending business

During the Year, the Group generated interest income of
approximately HK$123,000 from its money lending business. The
Group regularly assessed the recoverability risk of its loan receivables
portfolio to ensure that impairment loss, if any, would be made in a

timely manner.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Revenue for the Group decreased to approximately
HK$826,636,000 for the Year as compared to approximately
HK$960,595,000 in 2019. The Group’s aquatic products business
generated a total revenue of approximately HK$806,753,000, the
fishing operation also contributed to approximately HK$19,760,000
to the Group’s total revenue. The Group has continued to develop its
business relationships with its business partners and potential partners
in the PRC in order to increase and explore new sources of income.
The Group continued to concentrate on aquatic products during the

Year.
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anagement Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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The Group recorded an increase in gross profit to approximately
HK$87,198,000 in the Year as compared to approximately
HK$80,992,000 in 2019. The Group will continue to control the
material costs and explore new business opportunities, so as to
improve the gross profit of the Group. The gross profit margin,
excluding interest income received from the money lending business,
increased from 8.3% to 10.5% during the Year. Gross profit margin of
aquatic products from fishing operation were generally higher than

from supply chain operation.

Net profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the
Year amounted to approximately HK$28,029,000 as compared to a
profit of approximately HK$43,668,000 in 2019. During the Year,
the administrative expenses decreased to approximately HK$45.4
million from HK$76.3 million in 2019 because of non-recurring loss
on disposal of securities of HK$17 million, other decreases mainly
arose from the legal and professional fees of HK$6 million, other tax
paid from Cambodian operation of HK$2.3 million, entertainment
expenses of HK$1.9 million and transportation expenses of HK$1.1
million. Due to the expansion of the Company’s operation in
Mozambique and Cambodia, more staff were employed and operation
set-up enhanced in anticipation of the commencement of large scale
fishing operations. The major components in administrative expenses
being salaries and welfare for both staff and directors; depreciation,

exchange losses and rent and rates.
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Outlook

The Company’s supply chain management business has remained
quite stable during the Year, however, the Company will pay close
attention to its performance and future development. At the same
time, the management will continuously monitor and review the
overall operation and financial performance of the Group’s businesses
so as to cope with the ever-changing business environment. The
management will continue to proactively seek other promising
investment and business opportunities to broaden the source of
income of the Group and enhance value to the shareholders of the
Company through investment and/or acquiring business or projects
that have promising outlooks and prospects, and with the Group’s
management team having extensive experience in the marine fishing
business, the Group will also explore further opportunities in the

marine fishing business.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had total assets of approximately
HK$1,716,622,000 (31 March 2019: approximately HK$1,693,051,000),
including bank balances and cash equivalent of approximately
HK$2,924,000 (31 March 2019: approximately HK$14,326,000).

As at 31 March 2020, there was general banking facilities granted
to a subsidiary of the Group of RMB33,290,000 (31 March 2019:
RMB26,000,000) of which RMB33,290,000 (31 March 2019:
RMB24,900,000) was utilised. Excluding the above banking facilities,
during the Year, the Group financed its operation mainly with its own
working capital and proceeds from the issue of placing/ subscription

shares and borrowings.

As at 31 March 2020, the gearing ratio (defined as the ratio between
total bank borrowings and total assets) was approximately 2.15%
(31 March 2019: 1.71%). The Group’s total bank borrowings as at 31
March 2020 was HK$36,989,000 (31 March 2019: HK$28,953,000).

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued) \3
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Subscription of new shares

On 18 December 2019, the Company proposed to issue 300 million
subscription shares (the “Subscription Shares”) to three subscribers at
a subscription price of HK$0.12 per Subscription Share, representing
a total subscription proceed of HK$36.0 million. The net proceeds of
HK$35.3 million were to be used for the acquisition of equipment and
tools for the newly constructed fishing-vessels and general working
capital of the Group. The subscription agreements were lapsed on 19
June 2020 because of the subscribers’ inability to open bank account
in Hong Kong for the completion of subscription due to the outbreak

of the COVID-19 novel corona virus.

Please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 18 December
2019, 15 January 2020, 24 January 2020, 20 March 2020, 17 April
2020, 29 May 2020 and 19 June 2020 respectively for further details.

Exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates and related hedges

Most of the transactions of the Group are denominated in Hong
Kong Dollar (‘HKD”) and Renminbi (“RMB”). The Group adopts a
conservative treasury policy with most of the bank deposits being
kept in HKD, or in the local currencies of the operating subsidiaries
to minimise exposure to foreign exchange risks. As at 31 March 2020,
the Group had no foreign exchange contracts, interests or currency

swaps or other financial derivatives for hedging purposes.
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Significant investment, material acquisitions and disposal of

subsidiaries and affiliated companies

As at 31 March 2020, the Group only held minimal investments
in securities in Hong Kong (collectively, the “Investments”) (2019:
minimal), representing an investment portfolio of 1 (2019: 1) listed

securities in Hong Kong.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no significant investments,
material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and affiliated

companies during the Year.

Charge on group assets

As at 31 March 2020, the Group pledged certain investment
property (2019: leasehold land and building) with carrying amount
of approximately HK$19.6 million (31 March 2019: approximately
HK$20.5 million) as collateral to secure borrowings granted to the

Group.

Contingent liabilities

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no contingent liability as at 31
March 2020 (31 March 2019: Nil).

Employees and remuneration policies

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had 78 (31 March 2019: 127)
employees including the Directors. Total staff costs (excluding
Directors’ emoluments) amounted to approximately HK$13.2 million
for the Year, as compared to approximately HK$13.7 million in 2019.
Remuneration is determined by reference to market terms and the
performance, qualification and experience of individual employee.
Year-end bonus based on individual performance will be paid to
employees as recognition of and reward for their contributions. Other
benefits include contributions to statutory mandatory provident
fund scheme to its employees in Hong Kong and basic insurance
for the elderly, basic medical insurance, work injury insurance and

unemployment insurance to its employees in the PRC.
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Future plans for material investments or capital assets and their T K 3% % 5 & A& 2 2 AR RG] 8 K& H 2Rk 4F 2

expected sources of funding in the coming year joEp 3/

Save as disclosed in the “Outlook” above, the Group has no future i b 3CTHT S | il #E & ob » A B2 A7 3 M 8K
plans for material investments or capital assets in the coming year. PG B A G E 2 RACGHH o

Contractual arrangements 7RG

One of the business segments under development by the Group <48 [H 3 i i 455 SE 05 b \E AL B g 09 L op — TH 2675
is the marine fishing business which would be operated under the  73#BA% LA & #) L HERS 4 o ALEE N —F—NF T
contractual arrangement. This business was acquired by the Group — — H W#%2EHs - FTEBI AR EE _F _FF=H
in December 2016. The following graph shows the structure of the = — H A EIEITZIELS M 2EME

Group conducting this business as at 31 March 2020:

100%
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Under this business, the operators are required to obtain the
license (i.e. Far Ocean Fishing Enterprise issued by the Agricultural
Department (J&3EFEFHIZEMFE)) to conduct its business. Jin Yu
Tang is the operating subsidiary of the business holding the License. If
Shenzhen Yuheng Trade Management Co., Ltd (“Shenzhen Yuheng”)
directly interested in the equity interest in Jin Yu Tang, there will be
a change in enterprise nature of Jin Yu Tang and that the benefits
and tax concessions from the fishing operations that Jin Yu Tang is
eligible to participate will be restricted. Therefore the existing fishing
operations that Jin Yu Tang could undertake beyond the permitted

scope mentioned above will probably be affected.

Therefore in order to obtain the effective control on Jin Yu Tang
and the right to enjoy the economic benefits in the business and
assets of Jin Yu Tang, Shenzhen Yuheng has entered into a set of
control agreements (the “Control Agreements”) with Jin Yu Tang and
the existing shareholder which remains effective since 1 December
2016. The Control Agreements comprise (a) Loan Agreement;
(b) Share Charge Agreement; (c) Exclusive Purchase Agreement;
(d) Shareholder’s Power of Attorney Agreement; (e) Cooperation
Framework Agreement; (f) Technical Support Service Agreement;
and (g) Technical Research Service Agreement. Set out below are
the major terms and other relevant information of the Control
Agreements executed amongst Shenzhen Yuheng, Jin Yu Tang and its

respective shareholder and directors:

(a) Loan Agreement

Pursuant to the loan agreement executed on 1 December
2016 (the “Loan Agreement’), an interest free loan of RMB15
million will be provided by Shenzhen Yuheng to the existing
shareholder of Jin Yu Tang, with no fixed term of repayment.
The loan is secured by a charge of the shareholdings in Jin Yu

Tang.
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Share Charge Agreement

Pursuant to the share charge executed on 1 December 2016
(the “Share Charge Agreement”), the existing shareholder of
Jin Yu Tang pledged his entire equity interests in Jin Yu Tang
to Shenzhen Yuheng, he will convey to Shenzhen Yuheng all
his interests in the dividend and distributions for securing
the repayment obligations of the shareholders of Jin Yu Tang

under the loan agreement.

Pursuant to the PRC rules, in the event that Jin Yu Tang goes
into liquidation, Shenzhen Yuheng as the beneficial owner of
the charged share interest has the priority in recovering the

repayment of the loan.

Exclusive Purchase Agreement

For the purposes of obtaining the rights to purchase all
(or part) of the equity interest and/or asset in Jin Yu Tang,
Shenzhen Yuheng entered into an exclusive purchase
agreement on 1 December 2016 (the “Exclusive Purchase
Agreement”) with the shareholder of Jin Yu Tang, pursuant to
which, an irrevocable and exclusive right was granted by the
shareholder to Shenzhen Yuheng (or its nominee) to purchase
all (or part) of the shareholders’ equity interest in Jin Yu Tang.
The consideration will be determined based on the minimum
amount of consideration as permissible under the then PRC
laws and regulations or, in case of equity interest, the value of

the registered capital.

Pursuant to the Exclusive Purchase Agreement, unless with a
prior written consent from Shenzhen Yuheng, the shareholder
of Jin Yu Tang would not vote in favour of any resolutions in
relation to any decision on the sale, assignment, transfer or
any other method of dealing with the equity interest of Jin Yu
Tang.
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(d)

(e)

Shareholder’s Power of Attorney Agreement

Pursuant to the shareholder’s power of attorney agreement
executed on 1 December 2016 (the “Power of Attorney
Agreement”), Jin Yu Tang shall appoint the person(s)
nominated by Shenzhen Yuheng as directors to the board
of directors of Jin Yu Tang thereby creating an effective
control on the board of directors of Jin Yu Tang. In addition,
Shenzhen Yuheng has the right to remove directors, the
general manager and legal representatives of each of Jin Yu

Tang and replace them with its nominees as it thinks fit.

The shareholder of Jin Yu Tang undertook to Shenzhen
Yuheng that as the shareholder of Jin Yu Tang, he irrevocably
assigned his voting rights to Shenzhen Yuheng (or such
other person as directed by Shenzhen Yuheng) and to vote in
accordance with the directions of Shenzhen Yuheng on any
resolution proposed at a general meeting of the shareholder of

Jin Yu Tang.

In addition, Shenzhen Yuheng is authorised to exercise the
shareholders’ rights in Jin Yu Tang including exercise of voting
rights, rights to nominate directors of Jin Yu Tang, the rights
to sell or transfer all or any of their respective shareholding in

Jin Yu Tang.

Cooperative Framework Agreement

Pursuant to the exclusive cooperative framework agreement
executed on 1 December 2 0 1 6 (the “Cooperative Framework
Agreement”), Shenzhen Yuheng will set up a management
committee with Jin Yu Tang, and both parties will occupy two
positions. Shenzhen Yuheng will provide technical research
and technical support services for deepwater aquatic products
to Jin Yu Tang, in return for service fees. The proportion of
service fees will eventually be determined by the management
committee in accordance with the agreed terms of the
Cooperative Framework Agreement. Shenzhen Yuheng may,
at its sole discretion, terminate Cooperative Framework
Agreement upon giving one month’s written notice in advance

to Jin Yu Tang at any time.

(d)

(e)
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169 Technical Support Service Agreement

Pursuant to the technical support service agreement executed
on 1 December 2016 (the “Technical Support Service
Agreement”), Jin Yu Tang will receive technical support
services from Shenzhen Yuheng, which includes: business
system and management technology, business technology,
customer service technology, services permitted by PRC laws,
etc. Jin Yu Tang shall pay technical fee and any other costs
arising from technical fee on a monthly basis during the terms
of the Agreement. The fee is 100% of the monthly income, and
the total monthly fee should not exceed 100% of the monthly

income.

(g) Technical Research Service Agreement

Pursuant to the technical research service agreement executed
on 1 December 2016 (the “Technical Research Service
Agreement”), Jin Yu Tang will obtain technological research
and development services from Shenzhen Yuheng to assist Jin
Yu Tang in developing the application software required for
the operation of fishing business, and will pay monthly service
fee to Shenzhen Yuheng. The service fee is based on a certain

proportion of the revenue from the service of Jin Yu Tang.

In accordance with the terms of the Control Agreements, Shenzhen
Yuheng is able to govern the financial and operating policies of Jin Yu
Tang and Shenzhen Yuheng can enjoy all of the economic benefits of

Jin Yu Tang because:

(i) the board of directors of Jin Yu Tang is controlled by
Shenzhen Yuheng pursuant to the shareholder’s Power of

Attorney Agreement;

(i) the general meeting of Jin Yu Tang is controlled by Shenzhen
Yuheng pursuant to the shareholders’ Power of Attorney

Agreement; and

(iii)  all the benefits arising from the entire equity interests in Jin
Yu Tang is entirely conveyed to Shenzhen Yuheng pursuant
to the Share Charge Agreement, Cooperative Framework

Agreement and Loan Agreement.

The Group believes that, notwithstanding the lack of equity
ownership, the Control Agreements give the Group control over Jin
Yu Tang in substance. Accordingly, Jin Yu Tang is accounted for as a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020, the business of marine fishing is
not yet commenced by Jin Yu Tang and it is principally engaged in

supply chain management services business.

Risk of the contractual arrangement

There is inherited risk of the contractual arrangement. The Group
has no equity ownership interest in Jin Yu Tang and it relies on
contractual arrangements to control and operate the business of Jin
Yu Tang under the Control Agreements. However such contractual
arrangements may not be as effective in providing control over
Jin Yu Tang as compared with direct ownership since (i) there
is no assurance that the Control Agreements could comply with
future changes in the regulatory requirements in the PRC; (ii) these
contractual arrangements will not preserve Shenzhen Yuheng’s
control in the occurrence of certain events which may be outside
the control of Jin Yu Tang and its respective shareholders; and (iii)
potential conflicts of interest between the Group and Jin Yu Tang
and its respective shareholders exists and whether the shareholders
and directors of Jin Yu Tang will act completely in the interest of
the Group is outside the control of the Group. Any of the above
may materially and adversely affect the validity, effectiveness and
enforceability of the control of the Group and Shenzhen Yuheng
on Jin Yu Tang and its respective shareholders. Any inability, or
limitation on Shenzhen Yuheng’s ability to enforce the contractual
arrangements with the Jin Yu Tang and its respective shareholders
or to take any legal remedies under the PRC law could disrupt the
business and have a material adverse effect on the financial position,
results of operations and prospects of this business. Whether such
conflicts of interest could be effectively managed or otherwise be
resolved in the favour of the Group and its subsidiaries will be
crucial to the effectiveness of contractual arrangements. In the event
the disagreement and dispute cannot be resolved under friendly
negotiation and proceed to arbitration, there is no guarantee that the

final decision under arbitration would be in favour of the Group.
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In order to mitigate the risk of the contractual arrangement, the
Group has since its acquisition of this business in December 2016
implemented the following measures to ensure the sound and effective

operation of the Control Agreements:

- the Board has nominated its representatives to Shenzhen
Yuheng and Jin Yu Tang to ensure that there is a continuous
and effective control over Jin Yu Tang’s operation and
management. The Group has also obtained the directors’

undertaking as detailed above;

- suitable management has been assigned to Jin Yu Tang to
report regularly to the Board for review in relation to major

issues arising from implementation of the Control Agreements;

- suitable reporting system in line with the Group’s financial
reporting practice in the PRC have also been in place to
ensure that the Group would have full access and control over
the book and record of Jin Yu Tang and to obtain periodic
financial information to ensure proper financial record are

kept;

- the proper record system for shareholders’ meeting and
directors’ meeting of Jin Yu Tang has worked effectively and
will continue to be in place, and a copy of these notice for
meeting and resolution will also be passed to Shenzhen Yuheng
and the Group before and after the meeting to keep the Group

informed on all important development of Jin Yu Tang; and

- the Group has worked closely and will continue to work closely
with the PRC legal advisors and the management of the Jin
Yu Tang on the update of rules and regulations of the PRC to
monitor the continue compliance of the rules and regulations
by Jin Yu Tang as to its conduct of business and contractual

arrangement.

In the event if the PRC government further release the restriction on
far ocean fishing operation to be undertaken by foreign company, the
Group will as soon as possible exercise the exclusive right under the
Control Agreements to acquire the direct equity interest in Jin Yu

Tang and unwind the contractual structure.
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Biographies of Directors and Company Secretary \

o

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Rongsheng, aged 58, is an executive Director, chairman,
the chief executive officer of the Company and the chairman of the
Nomination Committee. He completed a professional programme
in International Economics and Trading from Beijing Training
University of Economics and Technology* (b5t &84 flT 5 2 B ),
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) in 1998. He also holds a
qualification as a senior economist in the PRC. Mr. Liu has over 25
years of experience in import and export trading, logistics, corporate

strategic management, project management and finance business.

Mr. Fan Guocheng, aged 53, is an executive Director. He graduated
from Beijing Foreign Studies University with a major in professional
accounting in July 2019 and graduated from Guangzhou Financial
Higher Special School (currently known as Guangdong University
of Finance and Economics) in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) in 1988. He is an accountant and holds an accounting
qualification certificate issued by Shenzhen Finance Bureau. Mr. Fan
has accumulated nearly 30 years of extensive experience in financial
management and has held various positions relating to financial
management, accounting and financial accounting in many different

industries in Shenzhen.

Ms. Wei Qing, aged 36, is an executive Director. She completed a
professional programme in Law from Shenzhen University in 2010,
Ms. Wei worked in &I /K¥5 5 » the Shenzhen Water Authority*,
from 2010 to 2013 and also acted as a vice chairman of Shenzhen
Hydraulic Engineering Society in 2013 and was responsible for
its day-to-day administration work. In September 2013, Ms. Wei
established three trading companies which are principally engaged
in import and export trading and retail services, such as electronic
products, wines from Europe and the United States, and health care
and cosmetics products from Japan. She has extensive management

experience.

PR AR EER

HiTES

BIgAESRA > 58 - BYATES - ERIFALA
HEAATE » DARAZEGEE - ik —JL
JVAETE A 32 ISR B (1 A ) b st 88 7 4 i
16 B2 5t 58 A I PR A S B R ) S BE LR o RN R
] R A R o BISEERER OB S - W
T ARG R - TE E RS SR A
254 KEBR o

WHR A > 535K > BEUTEE - U F
A -CARTE AL AN B RE R B A S SR S S
B — LN ONARFE 3 NS ([ ) N
<5l G A SEORHEL A (B B R I AC B ) SR
6 2% B w1 I Sz 57 A TR I T B R B8 R Y (R A
ERMEMEE) - WRETEESCEM T
30 4F 1 B 5 A8 BT A S e AR B0 AE RN T 2 (R A
[ A7 2 R A S0 T B 5 A B ~ B % LB S gt
B A A i £ | T A

B Lt 360K > BPATHER o R T4
TERYNK BB Sk BRI - R F—FF =
TR AR B EAE RN K ES R AR - R
SR AR gRIER > BRH
WEBITIE M-F-=FNARL=ZKE 5 A
Al > EBERAED O RS KEERY (NE T
FE i~ BRI H AR AL SF) - BRA
R A B BR

v R ¥ A T R R A PR W] 2019-2020 AR 21



(/ Biographies of Directors and Company Secretary (Continued)

AR TEIRE R E (4])

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lui Chun Pong, aged 51, is a non-executive Director. He
obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of Hong
Kong, a Master of Laws degree from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong, a Master of Accountancy degree from Charles Sturt University
in Australia and an Executive Master of Business Administration
degree from the City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lui is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, an associate
member of the Taxation Institute of the Hong Kong and a Certified
Tax Advisor in Hong Kong. He is also an associate member of the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr. Lui held senior positions
at a number of Hong Kong companies listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited with over 27 years
of experience in financing and accounting, fund raising, mergers
and acquisitions, company flotations, and real estate business
development, including property development and investment in
the People’s Republic of China, Hong Kong and overseas countries.
Mr. Lui also serves the community through his participation in
promoting sports and youth and student’ affairs in Hong Kong. Mr.
Lui was a baseball coach and was appointed as a team secretary and
a deputy delegate leader of the Hong Kong Women’s Baseball Team
during the Women’s Baseball World Cup in 2006 and in 2014. In
respect of public services rendered to youth and students’ affairs, Mr.
Lui is a leader of various leadership mentoring programs in Hong
Kong United Youth Association, Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and Hong Kong Professionals and Senior Executives
Association. Mr. Lui was a director of Hong Kong United Youth
Association in 2014/2015 and a member of the Budget Proposal
2017-18 Subcommittee of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Lui is currently a member of the Hong
Kong Student Affairs Sub-committee of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.

Mr. Cai Haiming, aged 32, is a non-executive Director. He graduated
from Guangdong University of Finance, Department of Finance. He
is currently the chairman of Shenzhen Mingren Holdings Group Co.,
Ltd* (GEIINTE S5 B A BR/A ) since 2017 Mr. Cai has over
six years’ experience in financial investment, resource integration and
capital operations. He was a Corporate Manager at two China joint-
stock banks in Shenzhen from 2012 to 2015.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John, aged 47, is an independent non-executive
Director, chairman of each of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee. He is a
member of National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference (FE ARBIGHH EHEHNETHE) of
Futian District, Shenzhen and an expert juror of the First batch of
Hong Kong Expert Jurors of Qianhai Court. Mr. Kam holds the
degree of Master of Business Administration from The University of
Manchester in the United Kingdom. He is a fellow member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Kam
has over 20 years’ experience in corporate, personal and interbank
business. Mr. Kam has been the Senior Partner of Shenzhen Zhujin
Supply Chain Management Co. Ltd. since November 2018. He was
appointed as an Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of
Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited from 2 May 2017 to October
2018 and was Zone Manager - Corporate Banking Division and
General Manager of Shenzhen Branch of The Bank of East Asia
(China), Limited from July 2012 to March 2017 and Zone Manager
(Western China) — Corporate Banking Division and General Manager
of Xi’an Branch of The Bank of East Asia (China), Limited from
November 2006 to June 2012.

Mr. Lam Man Hing, aged 51, is an independent non-executive
Director and member of the Audit Committee. He obtained a master’s
degree in business management from Jinan University. He is currently
the chairman of Hong Kong Industrial & Commercial Association
Limited; the managing director of i Jy B[ (FE /) SEMA RA
7] Xinhua Nanfang International (Holding) Co., Ltd.*; the honorary
president of Chongqing Chaozhou Overseas Friendship Association
and Chongqing Chaoshan Chamber of Commerce. He has extensive

management experience.
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Mr. Li Cao, aged 33, is an independent non-executive Director and
member of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. He graduated from China Youth
University of Political Studies with a bachelor’s degree in international
trade and is currently studying at the Graduate School of Renmin
University of China. Mr. Li has been employed in a managerial
capacity at various corporations in the PRC since 2009, and has
considerable management experience. He is currently the office
director of Shenzhen City Technology and Innovative Enterprises
Service Centre* (VEYITIBHAILZEHS .00), and the chief secretary of
each of the Shenzhen Ocean Society and Shenzhen Ocean Industry

Association.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lam Chi Ming, Francis, aged 61, has over 30 years of experience
in the field of financial and general management. Mr. Lam is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Lam
obtained a Bachelor’s degree of Arts in Economics and Social Studies
from the University of Manchester. Mr. Lam was the company
secretary and/or financial controller of several companies of which
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange since October 1991 and had

extensive working experience in an international accounting firm.

*  for identification purposes only
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The Directors of the Company hereby present the annual report and

the audited financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 43 to

the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and contribution to results by
reporting segments and geographical areas of operations for the Year

is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s results for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in this annual report on pages 66
and 67.

The board of Directors (the “Board”) did not recommend the payment
of any dividend for the Year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group as well as discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year and the material
factors underlying its financial performance and financial position can
be found in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” set out on pages 6 to 8 and pages 9 to 20 respectively.
Details of the Company’s share option scheme are provided in note
31 to the consolidated financial statement. An analysis of the Group’s
financial risk management objectives and policies is provided in note
38 to the consolidated financial statements. An indication of likely
future development in the Company’s business is set out on page 11
of the “Management Discussion and Analysis”. No important event

affecting the Group has occurred since the end of the Year.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a summary of the published result of the Group for
each of the last five financial years and of the assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group as at 31 March 2020, 2019,
2018, 2017 and 2016.
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Consolidated results fooE 3
Year ended 31 March
RE=ZA=+—H LR
(In HKS$’000) 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
(LAY T-70 B BT ) mrame Ll T ZZ-AFE ZF b ZZ-RF
Continuing operation FREREEY
Revenue W g 826,636 960,595 1,294,944 121,667 1,662,929
Profit/(loss) before taxation FRE S R RBL
from continuing operation WA/ (k1) 29,975 47,079 74,434 (82,862) (197,018)
Income tax expenses Jir BB (3,216) (503) (15,151) (1,466) (1,622)
Discontinued operations A IR
Profit/(loss) for the year from  C# 1 EHE NG/ (F518)
discontinued operations - - - 17,129 (7,226)
Profit/(loss) for the year SERERF/ (ER) 26,759 46,576 59,283 (67,199) (205,866)
Attributable to: DL AR
Equity holders of AT RHERA A
the Company 28,029 43,668 57,054 (67,199) (205,532)
Non-controlling interests P AR (1,270) 2,908 2,229 - (334)
26,759 46,576 59,283 (67,199) (205,866)
Consolidated assets and liabilities and non-controlling interests mEBEERAEEIEEREZ
As at 31 March
REAZ+—0
(In HK$’000) 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
(LU T oo B ) e L R ZF0NFE SRt ZERAR
Total assets BgE 1,716,622 1,693,051 1,299,849 326,143 344,763
Total liabilities BERK (439,420) (400,924) (360,731) (50,500) (17,002)
Non-controlling interests FRE AR (58,704) (59,974) (46,367) - -
1,218,498 1,232,153 892,751 275,643 327,761
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Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to achieving environmental sustainability.
The Group’s commitment to protect the environment is well reflected
by the continuous efforts in promoting green measures and awareness
in our daily business operations. The Group’s business is subject to
national, provincial and local environmental laws and regulations of
the PRC. During the Year, so far as the Directors are aware, there were
no material breach of applicable environmental laws and regulations
of the PRC that have a significant adverse impact on the business and

operations of the Group.

The Group also encourages environmental protection and promote
awareness towards environmental protection to the employees.
The Group adheres to the principle of recycling and reducing. It
implements green office practices such as double-sided printing and
copying, setting up recycling bins, promoting using recycled paper
and reducing energy consumption by switching off idle lightings and

electrical appliance.

The Group endeavours to comply with the relevant laws and
regulations regarding environmental protection and adopt effective
measures to achieve efficient use of resources, waste reduction and
energy saving. The Group will review its environmental practices from
time to time and will consider implementing further eco-friendly
measures and practices in the operation of the Group’s businesses to

move towards enhancing environmental sustainability.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risk of non-compliance with such requirements
could lead to the suspension or termination of operating licences.
The Group has been allocating system and staff resources to ensure
ongoing compliance with rules and regulations and to maintain
cordial working relationships with regulators effectively through
effective communications. For the Year, the Group has complied,
to the best of the directors’ knowledge, with all relevant rules and

regulations that have a significant impact on the Company.
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Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

Being people-oriented, the Group ensures all staff are reasonable
remunerated and also continues to improve and regularly review
and update its policies on remuneration and benefits, training,

occupational health and safety.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers. A
customer complaint handling mechanism is in place to receive, analyse
and study complaints and make recommendations on remedies with

the aim of improving service quality.

The Group is in good relationship with its suppliers and conducts a

fair and strict appraisal of its suppliers on an annual basis.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES RELATING TO THE
GROUP’S BUSINESS

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to the Group’s businesses. The
followings are the key risks and uncertainties identified by the Group.
There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those
shown below which are not known to the Group or which may not be

material now but could turn out to be material in the future.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that deteriorates profitability or affects ability
to meet business objectives arising from the movement in market
prices. The management of the Group manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a

timely and effective manner.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed

internal processes, people and systems or from external events.

Responsibility for managing operational risks basically rests with
every function at divisional and departmental levels. Key functions in
the Group are guided by their standard operating procedures, limits
of authority and reporting framework. The management will identify
and assess key operational exposures regularly so that appropriate risk

response can be taken.
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Investment Risk

Investment risk can be defined as the likelihood of occurrence of
losses relative to the expected return on any particular investment.
Key concern of investment framework will be balancing risk and
return across different investments, and thus risk assessment is a core
aspect of the investment decision process. Proper authorisation system
has been set up and detailed analysis will be made before approving
investments. Regular updates on the progress of the investments of
the Group would be submitted to the Board.

Manpower and Retention Risk

The Group may face the risk of not being able to attract and retain key
personnel and talents with appropriate and required skills, experience
and competence which would meet the business objectives of the
Group. The Group will provide attractive remuneration package to

suitable candidates and personnel.

Financial Risk

The Group’s also faces financial risks including interest rate risk,
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Details of these
financial risks are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial

statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details (including the principal activities) of the Company’s
subsidiaries as at 31 March 2020 are set out in note 43 to the

consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated

financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Details of movements in the Company’s issued share capital are set

out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
and “Convertible Bonds , no equity-linked agreements were entered

into during the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.
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ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Save as disclosed in Management Discussion and Analysis, the Group
did not have any material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and

investments during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to the existing shareholders of the

Company (the “Shareholders”).

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Except for subscription of new shares disclosed in the “Management
Discussion and Analysis”, the Company did not redeem any of its
listed shares, nor did the Company or any of its subsidiaries purchase

or sell any such shares during the Year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on pages 70 to 72 of the annual report and in note 42 to the

consolidated financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Details of movements in the convertible bonds of the Company during

the Year are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statement.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2020, no reserves of the Company were available
for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie (2019: Nil), as
computed in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.
In addition, the Company’s share premium account had a balance
of approximately HK$1,378,822,000 as at 31 March 2020 (2019:
approximately HK$1,378,822,000).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for 99% (2019: 94%) of the total revenue for the
Year. Revenue attributable to the largest customer accounted for 57%
(2019: 48%) of the total revenue for the Year.

During the Year, purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 94% (2019: 94%) of the total purchases for the Year.
Purchases from the Group’s largest supplier or accounted for 71%
(2019: 48%) of the total purchases for the Year.

As far as the Directors are aware, neither the Directors or any of their
close associates nor any Shareholders which, to the best knowledge of
the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital
had any beneficial interests in the Group’s five largest customers and

suppliers during the Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Liu Rongsheng
(executive Director,
Chairman and chief
executive officer)

Mr. Fan Guocheng

Ms. Wei Qing

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lui Chun Pong

Mr. Cai Haiming (appointed on 17 January 2020)

Mr. Yang Yong (resigned on 23 April 2020)
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Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lam Man Hing

Mr. Li Cao

Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John
Mr. Pang Pui Hung, Paton

(appointed on 17 March 2020)
(resigned on 17 March 2020)

In accordance with bye-laws 84(1) and (2) of the Bye-laws of the
Company (the “Bye-laws”), Ms. Wei Qing, Mr. Lui Chun Pong
and Mr. Lam Man Hing will retire from office by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”).
Pursuant to bye-law 83(2) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Cai Haiming and
Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John will retire from office at the AGM. All the
above retiring Directors, being eligible, have offered themselves for

re-election thereat.

The Company confirmed that it has received from each of its
independent non-executive Directors the annual written confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules

and considered them to be independent as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ AND COMPANY SECRETARY’S
BIOGRAPHIES

The biographical details of the Directors and Company Secretary of

the Group are set out on pages 21 to 24 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors, non-executive directors and the
independent non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of one to three years
commencing from the date of appointment and will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving not less than one

month’s notice in writing to the other party.

Save as aforesaid, none of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Company, which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment

of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Details of the transactions during the Year between the Group and
connected persons (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) in which
a Director has beneficial interest are set out in the section “Related
Party Transactions” of this report and note 35 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance in relation to the business of the Group to which the
Company, or any of its holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or an entity
connected with a Director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during
the Year, nor was there any transaction, arrangements or contract
of significance for the provision of services to the Company or any
of its subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder (as defined in the
GEM Listing Rules) or any of its subsidiaries for the Year. There was
also no contract of significance between the Company or one of the

subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries.

RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Except otherwise disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had no transactions incurred during the Year
which need to be disclosed as connected transactions in accordance

with the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were

entered into or existed during the Year.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five individuals

with the highest emoluments for the Year are set out in notes 8 and 9

to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the Company’s share option scheme is set out note 31 to the

consolidated financial statement.

No share option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed

under the Scheme since its adoption.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Appropriate insurance covers on directors’ and officers’ liabilities
have been in force to protect the directors and officers of the Group

from their risk exposure arising from the business of the Group.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Directors shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses,
which they shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act

done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any taxation relief available to the

Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.
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CHANGES IN DIRECTOR’S INFORMATION EREREE

The changes in Directors’ information are set out below: HEREREEMT
Name of Director Details of changes

EREY S0 A%

Mr. Cai Haiming - Appointed as non-executive Director on 17 January 2020

SRR SE - REEFCERFE-A L AERERFRTESR

Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John - Appointed as independent non-executive Director on 17 March 2020
EFBEA - REEFCEFEZHA L HERE R ITEDSR

Mr. Pang Pui Hung, Paton - Resigned as independent non-executive Director on 17 March 2020
b Se A - RERTTEZA L HRHMER R RATESR

Mr. Yang Yong - Resigned as non-executive Director on 23 April 2020

Wi Sk - MR TTAENA A = HEHME R AT
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Future
Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO”)) which
have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of the SFO (including interest or short positions
which they had taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO), or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules relating to the securities transactions by
directors were as follows:
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Long position in the Shares ety 2 4
Approximate
Number of percentage of issued
Name of Director Capacity ordinary Shares held share capital
HHREEA 5y A EEREH AT RAR A A 4 b
Ms. Wei Qing (Note 1) Beneficial owner 79,608,000 1.90%
Bt (M) Haa A 79,608,000 1.90%
Mr. Fan Guocheng Beneficial owner 800,000 0.02%
el & HaEa A 800,000 0.02%
Mr. Cai Haiming Beneficial owner 151,404,857 3.58%
Mg $65EE Haa A 151,404,857 3.58%
Notes: Mt

(1) Ms. Wei Qing is beneficial interested in 67,852,000 shares through
Sunny Sky Capital Management Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, none of the Directors
nor the chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporation (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO which were required: (a) to be notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which he is taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c)
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to the
securities transactions by directors to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under paragraphs headed “Directors and Chief
Executive’s Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures”
and “Share Option Scheme” above, at no time during the Year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or of any other body corporate granted to
any Directors or their respective spouses or children under 18 years of
age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company,
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors, their respective
spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire such rights in any

other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of persons in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO or, who was, directly or indirectly, interested
in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the
Company, or substantial shareholders as recorded in the register of
substantial shareholders required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long position in the Shares
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Approximate

Number of percentage of issued

Name of shareholder Capacity ordinary Shares held share capital
B IES =4S FiA B E B il SR AT A REA F 20 bl
Liu Yi Beneficial owner 724,292,000 17.14%
LIRS Ha A A 724,292,000 17.14%
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, so far as is known to
any Directors, none of any persons had an interest or short position
in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO or, who was directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more
of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to
vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other members
of the Group, or any other substantial shareholders whose interests
or short positions were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than the interests disclosed above in respect of the substantial
shareholders, as at 31 March 2020, no other person is individually
and/or collectively entitled to exercise or control the exercise of 5%
or more of the voting power at the general meetings of the Company
and are able, as a practicable manner, to direct or influence the

management of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the best knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report,
there is a sufficient public float of the issued Shares (i.e. at least 25%
the issued Shares being held by the public) as required under the GEM
Listing Rules throughout the Year and thereafter up to the date of this
report.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

On 30 December 2019, the Board proposed to change the English
name of the Company from “China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited”
to “China Ocean Group Development Limited” and adopt the Chinese
name “HEGTEBEBERAIRAT as the secondary name of the
Company to replace its existing secondary name in Chinese “"'E
TR A IR A H”. A special resolution has been passed by
the shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting of
the Company on 30 January 2020. A Certificate of Incorporation
on Change of Name was issued by the Registrar of Companies
in Bermuda on 23 April 2020 and a Certificate of Registration of
Alternation of Name of Registered Non-Hong Kong Company was
issued by the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong on 12 May 2020.
An announcement was made on 26 May 2020 for the Change of

Company Name.
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DONATIONS

No charitable and other donations were made by the Group during
the Year (2019: Nil).

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year under review and up to the date of this report The
director who has an interest in any business apart from the Group’s
business, which competes or is likely to compete either directly
or indirectly, with the Group’s business that need to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 11.04 of the GEM Listing Rules is as follows:

Director Name of company

#H kL HEHH

Nature of business

<=

Hak
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Nature of Interests

HE 25 PR

Mr. Liu Rongsheng Royal Century Resources
Holdings Limited (“Royal
Century”) and its subsidiaries

IS EIREEA IR 7
(MEPEEIR ) SH M 2w

Bl W AEERS

Mr. Pang Pui Hung, Paton Markway Finance Limited

Money lending business

Money lending business

Executive director and chief
executive officer of Royal
Century*

G MATH S AT B

a director of Markway

(resigned on 17 March 2020) (“Markway”)
”W@%E
_H+{H%E HEMBA AR ([EE)) s H R
* Mr. Liu Rongsheng resigned as an executive director and chief * BIRE SR R T RE T T HEHMEC

executive officer of Royal Century on 21 February 2020

As Mr. Liu Rongsheng is the executive director and chief executive
officer of Royal Century and has not involved in the daily operation
of the subsidiaries of Royal Century which are operating the money
lending business, the Group is capable of carrying on its business
independently to, and at arm’s length from the business of those
companies.

As Mr. Pang Pui Hung, Paton is an independent non-executive
director of the Company and has not involved in the daily operation
of the Group, the Group is capable of carrying on its business
independently to, and at arm’s length from the business of Markway.

Save as disclosed above none of the Directors was interested in any
business (apart from the Group’s business) which competed or was
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly with the business of the
Group during the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted by

the Company is set out on page 41 to page 55 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company sets up an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) on
18 October 2001, with written terms of reference in compliance with
the GEM Listing Rules, for the purpose of reviewing and providing
supervision over the financial reporting process and internal control
of the Group. The Audit Committee presently comprised the three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John
as the chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Lam Man Hing and Mr.
Li Cao. During the Year, the Audit Committee held four meetings to
review and supervise the financial reporting process, and to provide

advice and recommendations to the Board.

The financial statements of the Group for the Year have been reviewed
by the Audit Committee, which is of the opinion that such statements
comply with the applicable accounting standards, as well as the Stock
Exchange’s and legal requirements, and that adequate disclosures have

been made.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Subsequent Event

i) On 23 April 2020, Mr. Yang Yong tendered his resignation as

a non-executive Director of the Company.

ii) On 24 April 2020, the Company proposed to issue 80 million

subscription shares (the “Subscription Shares” to two
subscribers at a subscription price of HK$0.13 per Subscription
Share, representing a total subscription price of HK$10.4
million. The proceeds will be used as general working capital

of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, change of directors disclosed under the
section of “Corporation Information” on page 3 to 5 and note 41 to
the consolidated financial statements, the Group had no material
event subsequent to the end of reporting period and up to the date of

this report.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been audited
by Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited, who will retire and,
being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at the forthcoming
AGM.

Having been approved by the Board upon the Audit Committee’s
recommendation, a resolution to re-appoint Reanda Lau & Au Yeung
(HK) CPA Limited as the auditor and to authorise the Directors to fix

its remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

Save as disclosed above, there have been no change of the independent

auditors for the preceding three years.
ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Liu Rongsheng

Executive Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 14 August 2020
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) and Corporate
Governance Report contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing
Rules throughout the Year. The Company has applied the principles
in the CG Code and complied with the code provisions set out in the

CG Code for the Year, save and except for the following:

In accordance with the CG Code provision A.2.1, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and should
not be performed by the same individual to ensure a balance of
power and authority. The division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive should be clearly established and set out
in writing. The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer
of the Company are performed by Mr. Liu Rongsheng. The Board
considers that the present structure is more suitable for the Company
for it provides strong and consistent leadership in the planning and
execution of long-term business plans and strategies of the Company.
The Directors will continue to review the effectiveness of the Group’s
corporate governance structure to assess whether changes, including
the separation of the roles of the chairman and chief executive officer,

as and when necessary.

Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code provides that independent
non-executive Director and other non-executive Directors should
attend general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of
the views of Shareholders. Mr. Yang Yong, Mr. Lam Man Hing and
Mr. Li Cao were not able to attend the special general meeting of the
Company held on 30 January 2020 due to other business engagement.
Other Board members who attended the 2019 AGM and all the special
general meetings were already of sufficient calibre and number for
answering questions raised by the Shareholders at the 2019 AGM and

the special general meeting.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING DIRECTORS’
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Having made a specific enquiry with all the Directors,
each of them confirmed that he/she had complied with such code of
conduct and the required standard of dealings regarding securities

transactions throughout the Year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETINGS EHGLAEFGGHR

The Board is responsible for the Group’s corporate policy formulation, — # 25 & & F A E 2 A EEORHIET - EHRIEH
business strategies planning, business development, risk management, — #| - ZEB¥ER - BRI - EEIHE - HERE
major acquisitions, disposals and capital transactions, and other — 48385 LA K HoAth f K& L PAFS S - G5
significant operational and financial matters. Major corporate matters 7l 5 R FLE & & 2 EZA A F AR - 4R
that are specifically delegated by the Board to the management include & ~ " 1] J2 2= i o 5 ik 3% DA (L 2 =5 g ik 1) A AR
the preparation of annual, interim and quarterly financial statements  fffi B 254t ~ B{ 47 FEH 5K W S ¥ € R A0 2 15 e
for the Board’s approval before public reporting, execution of business 47T 78 73 2 A S B #2481l B B B /8 3L ) DA B 2
strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation  ~F#H B %2 BoK ~ KL R BLGI o A4 4F i il &2
of adequate systems of internal controls and risk management ZA¥gi HZ HH G K BB FIEF
procedures, and compliance with relevant statutory requirements and

rules and regulations. During the Year and up to date of this report,

the Board comprised the following Directors:

Executive Directors: HITESE
Mr. Liu Rongsheng BIBEE e
(executive Director, (Blir#EF -
Chairman and chief B3
executive officer) BEHAITE)
Mr. Fan Guocheng BENCi R E S
Ms. Wei Qing B 2t
Non-executive Directors: TS -
Mr. Lui Chun Pong BIRFB A
Mr. Cai Haiming (appointed on 17 January 2020) BRI 856 E (A4
— A1t H#EZE)
Mr. Yang Yong (resigned on 23 April 2020) W 5 ek [0/
YA = A= HEBHE)
Independent Non-executive Directors: LNVAE R R o
Mr. Lam Man Hing MO
Mr. Li Cao Rt
Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John (appointed on 17 March 2020) BEBIA (PR _FZFE
=H AL H¥EZ(T)
Mr. Pang Pui Hung, (resigned on 17 March 2020) B i S was (2= 2B4F
Paton = H 1L HEHE)
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The Directors’ biographical information is set out on pages 21 to 24
of this annual report. All Directors have given sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Group. Each executive Director has
sufficient experience to hold the position so as to carry out his/her
duties effectively and efficiently. Save as disclosed above, there is no
financial, business, family or other material relationship among the

members of the Board.

The Company appointed three independent non-executive
Directors who have appropriate and sufficient experience and
qualifications to carry out their duties so as to protect the interests
of Shareholders. Each of them has been appointed for a term of
three years commencing on the date of appointment, which will
continue thereafter until terminated by either party giving the other
not less than one month’s notice. Every Director should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and is eligible

for re-election in accordance with the Bye-laws.

Pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has
received written confirmation from each independent non-executive
Director of his/her independence. Based on such confirmations
of independence, the Company considers all of the independent

non-executive Directors to be independent.
Apart from the regular Board meetings, the Board meets on other
occasions when a board-level decision on a particular matter is

required.

During the Year, 10 Board meetings, 1 SGM and an AGM were held.
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7. <=

Details of the attendance of the meetings of the Board members 5 & & 5 H A 2 B H & &k 2 e B FEIE

during the Year are as follows: W
Board General
meetings meetings
Attended/ Attended/
Eligible to Eligible to
Name of Directors attend attend
ER sk JBe SR &
i/ SN
B N R N
WA Z i BH Z kB H
Executive Directors:
ATES
Mr. Liu Rongsheng 10/10 2/2
(executive Director, Chairman
and chief executive officer)
Bl S E
(BTEH - LIFEHHITE)
Mr. Fan Guocheng 10/10 2/2
Ms. Wei Qing 10/10 2/2
B 2+
Non-executive Directors:
FEPATE S
Mr. Lui Chun Pong 10/10 1/2
A RIRSEA
Mr. Cai Haiming (appointed on 17 January 2020) 0/3 0/1
B 8 Sk (R =FZFE—H L H#ZA(T)
Mr. Yang Yong (reSIgned on 23 April 2020) 6/10 0/2
By 58 54 (R =F ZFFPH — A= HEHT)
Independent Non-executive Directors:
B EPATH S
Mr. Lam Man Hing 10/10 0/2
MOCEE e
Mr. Li Cao 9/10 0/2
FRIEA
Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John (appointed on 17 March 2020) n/a n/a
eFEE (R ZFZFE=H L HER(T) N7 AT
Mr. Pang Pui Hung, Paton (resigned on 17 March 2020) 9/10 2/2
Al (H ZFZFE=S AL HEFHE)

44 China Ocean Group Development Limited Annual Report 2019-2020



o

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUING
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. Each newly appointed Director
would have comprehensive, formal and tailored induction upon
appointment, so as to ensure that appropriate understanding of
the Company’s business and operations and be fully aware of the
responsibilities and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements. The Directors are continually
updated on the legal and regulatory developments, as well as business
and market changes, to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.
All Directors during the reporting period have participated in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills through suitable trainings. The participation
in such trainings is to ensure that their contributions to the Board

remains informed and relevant.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board values diversity as a factor in selecting candidates to
serve on the Board, and believes that the diversity which exists in
its composition provides significant benefits to the Board and the

Company.

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) which relates to the selection of candidates for the Board.
The Board believes that a key success factor of an effective Board is
that it comprises a range and balance of skills, experience, knowledge
and independence, with individuals that work as a team. The Board
Diversity Policy was adopted to ensure that diversity in its broadest

sense continues to remain a feature of the Board.

The Nomination Committee has been delegated with the
responsibilities for the review of the Board Diversity Policy on an

annual basis.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

In accordance with the CG Code provision A.2.1, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and should
not be performed by the same individual to ensure balance of power
and authority. The division of responsibilities between the chairman
and chief executive should be clearly established and set out in
writing. The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer
of the Company are performed by Mr. Liu Rongsheng. The Board
considers that the present structure is more suitable for the Company
for it provides strong and consistent leadership in the planning and

execution of long-term business plans and strategies of the Company.

The Directors will continue to review the effectiveness of the Group’s
corporate governance structure to assess whether changes, including
the separation of the roles of the chairman and chief executive officer,

as and when necessary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance

duties as set out below:

a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on

corporate governance;

b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior

management;

c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices

and compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the employees and

the Directors; and

e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance

duties as set out below:

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. The
Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge

their duties.

The written terms of reference for each of the Board committees
named above are in line with the GEM Listing Rules and are posted

on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FMZEBE G

The Remuneration Committee was established in January 2006 with — #iMZ B &t Z XL NFE— A o7 - if 2 2 R4
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The  ZEEIH<FHILIE W5 W HEREHE - HFZ B &
Remuneration Committee presently comprises two members, all being ~ H Fi tH & BB H K > & Am FRITES >
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Kam Hou Yin, Zrl &2 B0k (1) RA#HGE -

John, serving as the chairman and Mr. Li Cao.

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee are to make ¥ Z B & 2 BB I I RE 2yt 2 H8 26 55 2 R e
recommendations to the Board for its final determination on the P4 & Y fc 4% B E ) & B Erig it ik - WIGEY
specific remuneration packages of all Directors, including benefits — Fl 25 ~ 45 R G HE R K 6586 30 2 2% s 4% E 1% S5 Bk S
in kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including  Z%ZAT M AT Z AT AE -

any compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or

appointment.

The Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting during the Year — JAAMERE » #WHZE B & 8217 — R Gk BRI E S
to review the remuneration package of the Directors and senior K EAE B HMAEG - HiWZ B G EHZ D
management. Details of the attendance of the Remuneration JERIERFEIEUIF :

Committee meetings are as follows:

Number of

meetings

attended/

Eligible to

Members attend

5.

M

R E ZHEEH

Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John (chairman) (appointed on 17 March 2020) n/a

EFBELE (R_FZFE=H L HEZET) AT

Mr. Li Cao 1/1

IR

Mr. Pang Pui Hung, Paton (resigned on 17 March 2020) 1/1

SRS A (= F ZFAFE=H AL HEHE)
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the senior
management of the Company for the Year are set out in notes 8 and 9

to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision of B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual
remuneration of the senior management (other than the Directors)

for the Year by band is set out below:

st AL (3 )

Remuneration bands (in HK$)
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R AR P 2

AR T S e A B I AR A E 0 I
TR BB R M RE8 9 o

HRE A 2 TR 57 B 2 SF I SCB. 151 s 3
JE (GE BRI A A BE 2 4 B 38 42 48 5l 6 5] an
T

Number of individuals

A

Nil to 1,000,000 % %1,000,000

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Nomination Committee on 23 March
2012 with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.
The Nomination Committee presently comprises three members,
namely Mr. Liu Rongsheng, an executive Director, serving as the
chairman, and two independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Kam
Hou Yin, John and Mr. Li Cao.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on appointment of the Directors
and succession planning for the Directors. The Board takes into
consideration criteria such as the expertise and experience of the
relevant candidates, the market situation and applicable laws and

regulations when considering new director appointments.

The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting during the Year to review
the structure and composition of the Board as well as the Board
Diversity Policy and made recommendations on the appointment and
re-appointment of retiring Directors. Details of the attendance of the

Nomination Committee meetings are as follows:

RUZHRE
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Number of
meetings
attended/
Eligible to
Members attend
S
B IR
B H ZEEH
Mr. Liu Rongsheng (chairman) 1/1
RISk (L)
Mr. Li Cao 1/1
SR
Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John (appointed on 17 March 2020) n/a
EEFBIE (R ZFEZFE=H A+ HEZET) AN
Mr. Pang Pui Hung, Paton (resigned on 17 March 2020) 1/1
ik A (R —F ZFFE=H 1L HEFHE)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company set up an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) on
18 October 2001, with written terms of reference in compliance with
the GEM Listing Rules, for the purpose of reviewing and providing
supervision over the financial reporting process and internal control
of the Group. The Audit Committee presently comprised the three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John
as the chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Lam Man Hing and Mr.
Li Cao. During the Year, the Audit Committee held four meetings to
review and supervise the financial reporting process, and to provide

advice and recommendations to the Board.

The financial statements of the Group for the Year have been reviewed
by the Audit Committee, which is of the opinion that such statements
comply with the applicable accounting standards, as well as the Stock
Exchange’s and legal requirements, and that adequate disclosures have

been made.
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EEEREGE (8)
Number of
meetings
attended/
Eligible to
Members attend
S
B E
B H Z Tk BH
Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John (chairman) (appointed on 17 March 2020) n/a
BEBE (LF) (R —F ZFE=J] L HHEZL(L) R
Mr. Lam Man Hing 4/4
MO e
Mr. Li Cao 3/4
TS
Mr. Pang Pui Hung, Paton (resigned on 17 March 2020) 4/4
SR (R —F = FE = L HEHE)

During the Year, the Audit Committee reviewed the first and third
quarterly results and interim results for the Year, the annual results
of the Group for the Year and the accounting principles and practice
adopted by the Group and recommended to the Board for considering

the re-appointment of independent auditor at the 2019 AGM.

The annual results for the Year have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee at its meeting held on 14 August 2020 before submission
to the Board for approval. The members of the Audit Committee
considered that the results were prepared in accordance with
applicable accounting standards and the GEM Listing Rules and

sufficient disclosure had been made.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

It is the external auditor’s responsibility to form an independent
opinion, based on their audit, on the consolidated financial statements
and to report their opinion solely to the Shareholders, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act and for no
other purpose. They do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the content of the auditor’s report.

During the year, the fees charged by the Company’s auditors,
Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited for the statutory audit
and non-audit assignments of the Group for the year amounted to

approximately HK$1,200,000 and Nil respectively.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lam Chi Ming Francis is the company secretary of the
Company. During the year, Mr. Lam has duly complied with relevant
professional training requirements in accordance with Rule 5.15 of the
GEM Listing Rules.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining the Group’s internal controls
and risk management for reviewing the effectiveness of these controls
annually. Internal control systems are designed to meet the particular

needs of the Group and the risk to which it is exposed.

In consideration of the size of the Group, the Board does not
consider to establish an internal audit team at present. However,
the key control procedures established by the Group are day-to-day
supervision of the business by the executive Directors, supported
by the managers responsible for the operation and the key division
support functions of finance, information system and human
resources. The key elements of internal controls described below have

been in place throughout the Year:

- procedures for the approval of capital expenditure and

payments;

- regular financial information provided to management for

reviewing the Group’s performance;

- clearly defined management structure and lines of

responsibility.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Under the Bye-laws, Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary, to require a SGM to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition. Within 21 days of such deposit, the Board should

proceed to convene such meeting.
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Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company or put
forward any enquiries or proposals to the Board. The contact details

are as follows:

The Company Secretary

China Ocean Group Development Limited

Address: Room 03, 22/F, China Resources Building,
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Fax No.: 852-3956 4882

To put forward proposals at an AGM or a SGM, the Shareholders
shall submit a written notice of those proposals with detailed contact

information to the Company Secretary at the above address.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong and upon its confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to include the

proposed resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.

PROCEDURE FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO SEND
ENQUIRES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the Company, such
as telephone hotline, fax number, email address and postal address,
in order to enable them to make any query that they may have with
respect to the Company. They can also send their enquiries to the
Board through these means. The contact details of the Company are
provided in this report, the “Corporate Information” section of this

annual report and the Company’s website.

The Board welcomes views of Shareholders and encourages them to
attend general meetings to raise any concerns that they may have
with the Board or the management directly. Board members and
appropriate senior staff of the Group are available at the meetings to

answer any questions raised by Shareholders.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group for the Year. In preparing
the financial statements, the generally accepted accounting standards
in Hong Kong have been adopted, appropriate accounting policies
have been used and applied consistently, and reasonable and prudent

judgments and estimates have been made.

The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt over the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Board has
continued to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial

statements.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and enhancing
communication with the existing Shareholders and potential investors.
It welcomes suggestions from investors, stakeholders and the public.
Enquires to the Board or the Company may be sent by post to the

Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS OF THE COMPANY

During the Year, there were no changes in the Company’s
Memorandum of Association and the Bye-laws except the change of

Company’s name.
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. REANDA

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited
FIRELERFR(EFE)EHEEHABERAR

To the shareholders of

China Ocean Group Development Limited

(formerly known as “China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited”)
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Ocean
Group Development Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 66 to 192,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2020, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Company and
the Group as at 31 March 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in

compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical

responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS i e e

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional [ 8 7 =5 JE AR 48 FAM 1) e 26 1 By > S A A %5
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the Consolidated & WA B R 1Y FF 5t i 2y Y HIH o BHHIHE
Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were  fEFAM FFHHE 88 45 & WA T 3% K b B 55 S IRE o 22
addressed in the context of our audit of the Consolidated Financial 1) o FAMAS & #5255 FHEBEH B R R - T3¢
Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we  # FRAM 1 F 5 o] B 3 AR 45 JHF I A9 R o

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows: FAM AL T o ] B B S A R IEA A A

. Recoverability of trade and loan receivables . JRE 0SSR R AT K ) T i [l
. Impairment assessment of goodwill . PR 2 A T A
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Recoverability of trade and loans receivables

Refer to notes 21 and 22 to the consolidated financial

statements.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had trade and loans
receivables of HK$413 million and HK$73 million
respectively. Provision is made for expected credit losses

on trade and loans receivables.

Trade receivables of the Group comprise mainly receivables
for supply chain management services business and ocean
fishing business. Loans receivables of the Group comprise
mainly receivables for money lending business, other loan

and loan to staff.

Management applied judgement in assessing the expected
credit losses. Receivables relating to customers with known
financial difficulties or significant doubt on collection
of receivables are assessed individually for provision for
impairment allowance. Expected credit losses are also
estimated by grouping the remaining receivables based on
shared credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed
for likelihood of recovery, taking into account the nature
of the customer, its geographical location and its ageing
category, and applying expected credit loss rates to the
respective gross carrying amounts of the receivables.
The expected credit loss rates are determined based on
historical credit losses experience and are adjusted to
reflect current and forward-looking information such
as macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the

customers to settle the receivables.

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the trade
and loans receivables and the estimation and judgement
involved in determining the expected credit losses

allowance of the trade and loan receivables.

Our audit procedures in relation to the recoverability of trade

and loans receivables include:

Verified the balances of trade and loans receivables by

requesting and receiving confirmations on a sample basis;

Tested aging of trade and loans receivable balances at year

end on a sample basis;

Obtained a list of long outstanding receivables and
identified any debtors with financial difficulty through

discussion with management;

Assessed the recoverability of these outstanding receivables
through our discussion with management and latest

correspondence with customers;

Assessed the recoverability of the balances by comparing
the outstanding amounts as at year end against subsequent

settlements; and

Obtained management’s assessment on the expected credit
losses allowance of receivables. We corroborated and
validated management’s assessment based on the historical
settlement pattern, correspondence with the customers,
evidence from external sources including the relevant
public search results relating to the financial circumstances
of the relevant customers and relevant forward-looking
information such as macroeconomic factors used in

management’s assessment.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment assessment of goodwill
Refer to notes 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

The carrying values of the Group’s goodwill as at 31 March
2020 was amounted to HK$117 million.

Management performed an annual impairment assessment
of its goodwill. Management compared the carrying values
of the cash-generating unit (“CGU”) to which the goodwill
has been allocated against a discounted cashflow forecast
to determine the amount of impairment loss which should

be recognised, if any.

The preparation of a discounted cashflow forecast involves
the exercise of significant management judgement,
particularly in estimating the long term revenue growth

rate and the discount rate applied.

We identified the impairment assessment of goodwill as
a key audit matter because the impairment assessments
prepared by management were complex and contained
judgemental assumptions, particularly the long term
revenue growth rate and discount rate applied, which could

be subject to management bias in their selection.

Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment assessment

of goodwill included:

o Evaluated the Group’s identification of CGU and the
value of goodwill allocated to the CGU and assessed the
methodology applied by management in the preparation
of the discounted cashflow forecast with reference to the

requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;

o Evaluated the discounted cashflow forecast prepared by
management by comparing specific data and significant
assumptions in the preparation of discounted cashflow
forecast. Our evaluation has taken into account our

understanding of the Group’s future business plans;

o Compared the discount rate adopted in the discounted
cashflow forecast with that of comparable companies and

external market data; and

o Obtained from management the sensitivity analysis of long
term revenue growth rate and the discount rate adopted in
the discounted cashflow forecast and assessed the impact
of changes in these key assumptions to the conclusions
reached in the impairment assessment and whether there

were any indicators of management bias.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all the information in
the Group’s 2020 annual report, but does not include the consolidated

financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that

fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITY OF DIRECTORS’ AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s

financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may

cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and

where applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Tsang Cheuk Bun

Practising Certificate Number P07122

Hong Kong, 14 August 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Fi e Az A

Year ended 31 March 2020
HE ZE = H = —HIEEE

2020 2019
Searld =«
Note HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Wit BT T T T

Revenue from contracts with %P aRB

customers 6 826,636 960,595
Cost of services rendered and PR 2 A T

cost of goods sold HERY) 2 A (739,438) (879,603)
Gross profit EH 87,198 80,992
Other revenue BRI 6 7 438
Other income FHAt U A 6 14,358 45,667
Selling and distribution costs S B oy S A (392) (485)
Administrative expenses TR Z (45,397) (76,284)
Net impairment loss for JRRE WS I R 2 W e 4 T

trade receivables (6,069) (564)
Net impairment loss for JRE S B I JE R RLE 2

loan and interest receivables ORIEN 2Fi=RE (297) =
Finance costs Pl R A (23,472) (5,414)
Gain on change in fair value on JEAT S ARAME 2

contingent consideration payable ASEIEE XL 4,539 2,729
Other operating expenses HoAh 2878 BA 32 (500) -
Profit before taxation [ 56 Wi ¥z A 7 29,975 47,079
Income tax expenses ST A5 B BH 52 10 (3,216) (503)
Profit for the year 4R 9 i 1 26,759 46,576
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Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F-TE=J= | —HILFE

2020 2019
R ORE ZE U
Note HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
Bt iE BT BN T
Other comprehensive AR Y H At
loss for the year: 41 s 4R
Items that may be reclassified HEAGEEH 7 HE
subsequently to profit or loss: Ra9HH -
Exchange differences on consolidation AR A2 BB S0 (41,684) (56,001)
(41,684) (56,001)
Total comprehensive loss for the year AT PN 4 TH i TR AR AR (14,925) (9,425)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: VLR AL (ki) -
Equity holders of the Company A R AR A A 12 28,029 43,668
Non-controlling interests FEFE P HE 25 (1,270) 2,908
26,759 46,576
Total comprehensive VLR N L REAR 22 i
(loss)/income attributable to: (B 8) 7 Wi 547 -
Equity holders of the Company A R RAEREA A (13,655) (12,333)
Non-controlling interests FEHE R RE 25 (1,270) 2,908
(14,925) (9,425)
Earnings per share B iz &7 12
HKO0.66 cents HK1.14 cents
Basic HA Al Al
HKO0.66 cents HK1.13 cents
Diluted B # Al HEAL
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ERE R YINYR I E

At 31 March 2020
KoE-FEZA =R

2020 2019
Searld =«
Note HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
HtaE BT BT
Non-current assets E 2 g7 3

Property, plant and equipment E N NG ] 13 15,322 43,522
Investment property TG 14 19,604 -
Construction in progress e T 16 405,749 421,780
Right-of-use assets fo R 17 762 -
Intangible assets Y & 15 724 -
Other assets HAth & 18 - 544
Goodwill [k 19 116,971 116,971
559,132 582,817

Current assets B B E
Inventories & 20 278 530
Other assets oAt & 18 - 121
Trade and other receivables JFRE AL B % LAt JRE W 3k 21 1,081,476 1,024,344
Loans receivables JE W K 22 72,812 70,913
Bank balances and cash SRAT4EBR LI & 23 2,924 14,326
1,157,490 1,110,234

Current liabilities E) g
Trade and other payables JREE AR B R o G Al B A+ 35K 24 159,427 215,088
Borrowings g 25 127,133 87,325
Corporate bonds RS 29 11,132 7,589
Lease liabilities CiEN=S= R 17 560 =
Contingent consideration payables JEAT s SR AR A 28 - 15,739
Tax payable JEAT B IH 15,147 12,347
313,399 338,088
Net current assets B B A 844,091 772,146
Total assets less current liabilities H8 % Uk B B R 1,403,223 1,354,963
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B SR BHIR DL (4

At 31 March 2020
W oFRE=ZH=1—H

2020 2019
S ==
Note HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Wit BT T T T
Non-current liabilities I i By £ 1
Deferred income PEFEWA 26 55,813 48,174
Borrowings Efss 25 58,811 11,628
Corporate bonds RS 29 - 3,034
Lease liabilities HEAH 17 197 -
Contingent consideration payables JREAT SR AR A 28 11,200 -
126,021 62,836
NET ASSETS ¥ e 1,277,202 1,292,127
Capital and reserves i A B ik A
Share capital A 30 42,260 42,260
Reserves fii i 1,176,238 1,189,893
Equity attributable to AN E R A AL HE4R
equity holders of the Company 1,218,498 1,232,153
Non-controlling interests FEFE R A 58,704 59,974
TOTAL EQUITY HE £k AR 1,277,202 1,292,127

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 14  jd =& — Z4FE )\ H DU H &85 =35 € fik i Sz 52 HE T

August 2020 and signed on its behalf by 2 MDA T ESEAEEE
Liu Rongsheng Fan Guocheng
BIRAE 1 1 4%
Chairman Director
EY HE

v [ 3 A T B JR A PR 23 W 2019-2020 423 69
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Year ended 31 March 2020

BE-EZREZH =+ —HIREE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARTIRHERA VEL
Reserves
i
Convertible
bonds Non-
Share  Share Contributed Exchange  equity Accumulated  Total controlling
Note capital premium  surplus  reserve  reserve losses ~reserves  Subtotal interests  Total
e
(In HKS'000) (LR LAER) mE o Wk RbRE SALR EXGHE ERRE  ZRER ARG NG RERER e
At 1 April 2018 REZF—\EWA—H P76 47369 594707 21,083 88798 (792,382) 859575 892751 46367 939,118
Profit for the year A - - - - - BS68 43668 43668 2908 46,576
Other comprehensive HeambE (B
income (loss)
Ttems that may be reclassified HEARENEE
subsequently to profit or loss BRlER
Exchange differences on GRRZELER
consolidation = = - (56,001) = - (56,001)  (56,001) - (56,001)
Total comprehensive ERETE (B 25
income (loss) for the year - - - (56,001) - 43,668 (12,333) (12333) 2,908  (9425)
Transactions with SRR NERT 2R
equity holders
Contributions and HERIMK
distributions
Issue of shares REMSETRR
upon placing 306 @ 6700 2943800 - - - - 294800 301,500 - 301,500
Shares issued upon conversion EHh AR R
of convertible bonds Bl 06 2384 136653 = - (88798) - 47855 5039 - 50239
Acquisition of subsidiaries R 2 - - - - - = = -1 12293
Acquisition of I Bty o)
non-controlling interests - - - - - (4) (4) ) (1,594)  (1,59)
9,084 431,453 - - (88,798) (4) 342651 351735 10,699 362,434
At31 March 2019 REF-NE=A=t-H 0060 1378822 594707 (34918) - (TA87I8) LI89893 1232153 59974 1292127
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued) \) y

AR hEsR B (A1)

Year ended 31 March 2020
WE-F-FE=H = HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

LYl 2N A
Reserves
C1]
Convertible
bonds Non-
Share  Share Contributed Exchange equity Accumulated  Total controlling
Note capital premium  surplus  reserve reserve losses  reserves Subtotal interests
TR
(In HKS'000) (LR T T AL Mt WA REGEE  MARE ERGH  MERSG  RHER  BRG  d RBRER
At1 April 2019 R-Z-NENA—H 0060 1378822 594707 (34918) - (48718) 1,189,893 1233153 59974 1,292,127
Profit for the year R - - - - - 28029 28,029 28,029 (1,270) 26,759

Other comprehensive ST (B 8)
income (loss)

Ttems that may be reclassified  JLf£ AT EH B E
subsequently to profit or loss 4 #5 H
Exchange differences GRMENER

on consolidation - - - (41,684) - - (41,684)  (41,684) - (41,684)
Total comprehensive ERATG (68 45
income(loss) for the year - - - (41,684) - 28,029 (13,655)  (13,655) (1,270)  (14,925)
Transactions with Ly SN PR T
equity holders - - - - - - - - - -
At31 March 2020 RoE-RESASH-H 0260 137882 54707 (76,602) - (70689) LI76238 1218498 58704 1,277,002
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

AR REsR S B (A1)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F - FFZAST—ALFE

Note:

(i)

(iii)

72

Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising

from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations.

The laws and regulations of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
require wholly foreign-owned enterprises in the PRC (“WFOE”)
to provide for certain statutory reserves, namely general reserve,
enterprise expansion fund and staff welfare and bonus fund which
are appropriated from the net profit as reported in the PRC statutory

accounts.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC, which are WFOE, are required
to allocate at least 10% of their after-tax profit to the general reserve
until the reserve has reached 50% of its registered capital. The general
reserve can only be used, upon approval by the relevant authority, to
offset accumulated losses or increase capital. The enterprise expansion
fund can only be used to increase capital upon approval by the relevant
authority. The staff welfare and bonus fund can only be used for the
welfare of the employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC. Appropriation
to the enterprise expansion fund and staff welfare and bonus fund is at

the discretion of the board of directors of the subsidiaries in the PRC.

The subsidiaries in the PRC incurred after-tax losses and therefore
no transfer to the statutory reserve was made for the years ended 31

March 2020 and 2019.

The convertible bonds reserve represents the equity components of the
convertible bonds issued. The convertible bonds issued are split into
their liability and equity components at initial recognition at the fair

values of each of the convertible bonds.
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(iii)
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e S i 5 40 455 7 IR0 40 550 0t 1 26755 B B ik 3 T
FELEZ ANHEZE A

AR 3 N RICAER ([ B ) Z ik Sk i
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B 325 5 A E A B R AR A T E R
Th— MR - SRR EAESE - B LA R
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A AR [ £ v (2 R 2 ) g A1 R A o MR
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P25 D 10% 1A 24 B A AR R T AR Y
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows \)

ma Bl eimER

Year ended 31 March 2020

WEFFEZA =+ L

2020 2019
—zozy TSR
Note HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
ligia H¥ T BT T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES W
Profit before taxation BB Al i A 29,975 47,079
Amortisation of intangible assets Y e 5 31 1
Amortisation of other assets FoAh 7 A 121 121
Loss allowance on trade receivables JRE AT B 2 s R 4 M 6,069 564
Depreciation of property, WIS ~ W Bk g
plant and equipment 4,864 5,529
Depreciation of investment property BEWEIE 568 =
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ARG E s 24 -
Impairment loss of intangible assets T 5 (M 4 - 81
Impairment loss of loan and JRE A ) B DB (A R
interest receivable 297 -
Interest income FEA (7) (438)
Finance cost il A 23,472 5,414
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BFE XS
plant and equipment (Wess),/ HEtH (75) 4
Gain on disposal of other assets S A 2 (56) -
Loss on disposal of financial assets HE BRI A T EI R
at fair value through profit or loss B A E 2 R - 16,973
Provision for deposit paid B A4 S 500 -
Written off of loan interest receivables R A B A S A - 2,162
Gain on fair value change of N SR 2 A B i 4
contingent consideration payables (4,539) (2,729)
Changes in working capital BEBSRY)
Inventories P 252 (530)
Trade and other receivables IR W R e At Wi (100,840) (364,523)
Loan receivables JRE B 2K (2,196) 106,037
Trade and other payables JRE AT Bk S H At JREAST 3k (49,935) (113,606)
Deferred income PEIEWA 9,780 16,384
Exchange difference TE 52, 2 41 5,269 (8,231)
Cash used in operations BEEVITRS & (76,426) (289,708)
Income tax paid AT TR EL (416) (3,794)
Net cash used in operating activities £ 05 B T B & R (76,842) (293,502)

v [ 3 A T B JR A PR 23 W 2019-2020 423 73




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

A BERRE (8)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-FE=J =P —H LR

7. | <=

2020 2019
Seeeld =«
Note HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
LA BT T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BE WD
Interest received SN 7 438
Net cash outflow from e R BT g s W) 2
acquisition of subsidiaries B4 - (32,610)
Proceeds from sale of financial assets B AR A5 H A THET IR 2
at fair value through profit or loss & VE E TSR - 33,728
Proceeds from disposal of property, WEYIE - BRE Rkt
plant and equipment IR sE 2,697 -
Proceeds from disposal of other assets fil(= ,\ﬁ’ﬂgﬁ Z P Ag R 600 -
Purchase of construction in progress MEE A TR (2,462) (94,646)
Purchase of intangible assets i B AT (755) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  WEE Y ~ /5 Kk (41) (1,947)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from BREGHHEHRA
investing activities (i) 8 46 (95,037)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 5 B
Net proceeds from corporate bond issued BAT N AME SR 2 TR SO R - 10,577
Interest paid EATFLE (22,963) (5,368)
Net proceeds from TR 7 W 6 17 B AT A £
shares issued upon new placing PSS IE 30 - 301,500
Capital element of lease rentals paid EMHEHSZ BRI 23(b) (29) =
Net proceeds from borrowings & B T A5 R E R 23(b) 88,277 76,462
Net cash from financing activities Tl NG B R S B A R R 65,285 383,171
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 34 I 3 & 5 [H P A 58 (11,511) (5,368)
Cash and cash equivalents at b BBl & R B &% Y
beginning of reporting period 14,326 19,829
Effect on foreign exchange rate changes, net  ZM [l S50 2 5228 > FH%H 109 (135)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of HEBRBE LB EFEY
reporting period, represented by PP SRAT 45 Bk R Bl 4
bank balances and cash 2,924 14,326
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Ocean Group Development Limited (formerly known
as “China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited”) (the “Company”)
is incorporated in Bermuda on 7 June 2001 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Bermuda Companies
Act of 1981. The Company’s shares are listed on GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and its
principal place of business is located at Room 03, 22/F, China
Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the shareholders of
the Company at a special general meeting on 30 January 2020
and a certificate of Incorporation on change of name issued
by the Bermuda Registry of Companies on 23 April 2020,
the name of the Company has been changed from “China
Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited” to “China Ocean Group
Development Limited” and the adoption of the Chinese name
BT R B R A BR/A ] as the secondary name of the
Company in replacement of “" Bl VE&Z A FRA

has become effective.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the principal activities of its subsidiaries are business of
supply chain management services, money lending and ocean

fishing.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue

by the Board of Directors on 14 August 2020.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure requirements under the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o SV 5 3% P

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE_ZFZ - FF=H=1+—HILFEF

K EE R

o B i AR B SR A PR B (R A B
T ERERAR) ([AAA]) k=%
FEANALHRE- NN —FHZER
A VE A B RS GE M AL A e A PR A
Al o AN B A A Hs B S 2 A B A R
A ([Hi2EFT 1) GEM BTl « ARl Z 5
1Mt 4 2 )¢ {37 it Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda » 1M
B S M B A7 A T U VAT R Y 26 R T
RIE22H03% -

MR —F _FE =+ HBITHRR
RE T R B M A ) S R I 1 R ) DR R R
Be B BN R GEM R R —F TR AE A
TEABEHMEEAMIERES - AL0H
f 45 4% . i [ China Ocean Fishing Holdings
Limited ] (%5 [ China Ocean Group
Development Limited | & 544 1 3C & i [ o
[ A 1 AR P B AT PR A R ) S AR A RLER
40 DASROA T e [0 i 3 4 9 22 O R )
SR AERL o

A T 2 IS T B VW 2
RERR =2 Y T Tl T ey
P -

Brr A4 BISh > BAE ARG RS R DL
(MW ]) B3 - WSS MBHRET IR
FRENA I HEE g T

IR

ZE MBI R IR FE G A e
(TEwEsHimA g ) B2 P A8 &
A B e T (s B S o e 1) ) DA %
U O RG] 2 908 B K E 1T A o % A
o BB ¥ R IRAT 6 B 5T GEMUaE 7 E TR
HI (TGEM T AR ) 2 %8 I 4 B L o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

By W A Wk (%)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F - FFZAST—ALFE

76

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and contingent
consideration payables which have been measured at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies.

All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand,
unless otherwise indicated.

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of
the previous financial year, except for the adoption of new and
amended standards as set out below.

(a) Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group. Of these, the
following developments are relevant to the Group’s
financial statements:

. HKEFRS 16, Leases
. HK(IFRIC) 23, Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

China Ocean Group Development Limited Annual Report 2019-2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \3

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

()

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17, Leases, and
the related interpretations, HK(IFRIC) 4,
Determining whether an arrangement
contains a lease, HK(SIC) 15, Operating leases
- incentives, and HK(SIC) 27, Evaluating
the substance of transactions involving the
legal form of a lease. It introduces a single
accounting model for lessees, which requires
a lessee to recognise a right-of-use asset and
a lease liability for all leases, except for leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less
(“short-term leases”) and leases of low-value
assets. The lessor accounting requirements are
brought forward from HKAS 17 and remain

substantially unchanged.

Further details of the nature and effect of the
changes to previous accounting policies and the

transition options applied are set out below:

a. Lessee accounting

HKEFRS 16 eliminates the requirement
for a lessee to classify leases as either
operating leases or finance leases, as
was previously required by HKAS
17. Instead, the Group is required to
capitalise all leases when it is the lessee,
including leases previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17, other
than those short-term leases and leases

of low-value assets.

fo B S5 B A i (A60)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE - Z - FE=H=+—HILFE

FEEFREBUR (4
(@)  ERMBORMED) (A7)

(i) Tl AR F 16 95 R
g

A Y B 5 o M 5 16 SR I
A GRS 1798 [
B RMBEERE - FiE (K
MBS R REAE) @
B4R HELHERE
AR ] i AR R
Be) @155t AEH
B ) KA (R
BZAG) @B 279 5
i KBRS0
WA o KR AGI AR
—gakBE s AR E RN
T A L e D e
KB AR - WA+
8 A s AT R RLE (1S 38940
51 RAREEE E KSR
b o HAH B Rt E B
HREEEEFHEE 175
HIRLAE

A B & S BOR 8 8) 19 1
B T R % DA T BT R P ) A
PEBER I HE— P FEIE Y 0
o

a. RN & it e FE 7y 72

7 s IS e E R AE
16 5% 5 [ 4 Hir A s
FHE RIS 1795 R R
FHAAS T & 2 5 o 58
G E R S
B - R2Z » HALE
B B R A B > HUH
A E ' AL
ELHG S AR YR s
FHE RIS 17984046
MEHEMHE >
%5 A A
% 2 ML BR A -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
SR B R B (7))

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-FE=J =P —H LR

<=

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. ~ LEEEHBOR (A7)
(a) Changes in accounting policies (Continued) () R BORIIES) (47)

78

(i) HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(i) Tl AR F 16 95 R

5 ()
a. Lessee accounting (Continued) a. RN & 71 IEFE 77 i
(%)
As at 1 April 2019, all the operating W FE—JLFEM A —
lease commitments of the Group related H > AREHEIHRE
to short-term leases or leases of low- T 7 0f ) B e A AH
value assets. The Group decided to B S {5 e AL
apply recognition exemptions to short- BB o AL F P2
term leases and leases of low-value R A B S ARAE
assets. Hence, there is no impact on the O E O RR
consolidated financial statements oo W HEEE
WA 755 S 2 3 AT ] 5%
£
b. Lessor accounting b. N B Gl B P 7y 7%
The Group leases out an investment AL EAE LR E TS

property as the lessor of finance leases.

The accounting policies applicable to the

(O SE i WANE £ K <
YI3E - BN AL

Group as a lessor remain substantially 1E B HFL N & 51

unchanged from those under HKAS 17. R B st YR 2R
175836 T 19 & 5 EUR
FEAAALA] o

China Ocean Group Development Limited Annual Report 2019-2020



o

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \3

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(ii)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income

Tax Treatments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting
for income taxes (current and deferred)
when tax treatments involve uncertainty that
affects the application of HKAS 12 (often
referred to as “uncertain tax positions”). The
interpretation does not apply to taxes or
levies outside the scope of HKAS 12, nor does
it specifically include requirements relating
to interest and penalties associated with
uncertain tax treatments. The interpretation
specifically addresses (i) whether an entity
considers uncertain tax treatments separately;
(ii) the assumptions an entity makes about
the examination of tax treatments by taxation
authorities; (iii) how an entity determines
taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused
tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates;
and (iv) how an entity considers changes in
facts and circumstances. The application of
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 has had no material effect on
the amounts reported and/or disclosures set out

in these consolidated financial statements.

fo B S5 B A i (A60)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE - Z - FE=H=+—HILFE

FREEBOR ()
(@)  ERFBORMES) (4)

(i) B (BB i R
B&)— it BB 2395 i
JE B2 A 1 7E P

s (BB i e &
BE) — @R 23E W RE
BB I I g A U e 5t
HE R 25 12 9% I B O fifE
P G W AR Ay [ 1 2 B
HRUL D) RS I A58 (5 1A S A
i) e EHEI o R EA
B AW SRS 1255
B US B E B R > O
R LB 45 LR i S L S R
A BA R R R ET RO R
E o R R G)
T2 A LB 2 TR B E I B
B 5 (i) T RE S BUS  B
BB i H R 5 (idi)
I8 o o] B R B i ) B
TEGHE - B - RO A
TE s 1R - AR OB E A
B 5 K (iv) B 8 a0 fi] %
JEHE ARG DS o A
s (BB e &
BE) — R3S
A MR LT Ry &
B BT B R I A
Kot 2 o
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/ &tes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
SR B R B R (4)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F - FFZAST—ALFE

<=

3.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. ~ EREFHBUR (4)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (b)

O A 4 1L 0 oA A 28 2 T T B A A BT

i I 5 o S

The Group has not early applied new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective
for the financial year beginning 1 April 2019. These
new and revised HKFRSs include the following which

may be relevant to the Group.

A4 300 4 £ L A = — LR
O A — H B 6 < S B AR B B A
W) oA B 0 2 T RT M ARG BT A v A s
o e R o W] AE B AR AT B 2 W%
SR AT S KRBT A i S i o v

AAFLL T4 IH -

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after
T 5 H Bk =z 1%
P 4t % 7 390 0 A 3

HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Definition of a Business
T s S s ME IS 3 0% (1B RTAR) SERS I e 36

HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFR 7 (Amendments) Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
T v SRS MERISE 0 5% - AU e R eI 5539 5% K
U BB A R IR 7 9% (1B RTAS) Bl SR RE e A o

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) (Amendments) Sale or

Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

1 January 2020
“F B H

1 January 2020
“E B H

No mandatory
effective date yet
determined but

available for adoption

W TS IR E RIS 1098 R E R E RIS 28 9% ( —F——4F) (ERTAS) EF L p R s hil A4 20 H
HEE ARG E AT 2 MEE &S E W ER A
HKFRS 16 (Amendments) COVID-19-Related Rent Concession 1 June 2020

o P O MR ISR 16 5% (BT A ) Bt B Tl AR s 24 A Bl 9 AL 8 1 2

HKEFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
B v BB 15 HE U B 1 7 9 IR B B 4

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 (Amendments) Definition of Material
Tk g wh e RIS 1 58 R s e wt MR RSB 8 98 (IERTAY) BRI E 5%

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 Revise Conceptual Framework

for Financial Reporting

T AR B R S SR ARG BT A S B HE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \3

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

The Groups are in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments and new
standards is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the above
developments are relevant to the Groups’ financial
statements but the adoption of them is unlikely to
have a significant impact on the Groups’ results of
operations and financial position. Further details are

discussed below:

HKFRS 3 Business Combinations (Amendments)

Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide
additional guidance on the definition of a business.
The amendments clarify that for an integrated set of
activities and assets to be considered a business, it must
include , at a minimum, an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed
to create outputs. The amendments remove the
assessment of whether market participants are capable
of acquiring the business and continue to produce
outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.
The amendments have also narrowed the definition
of outputs to focus on goods or services provided to
customers, investment income or other income from
ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance to assess whether an acquired process
is substantive and introduce an optional fair value
concentration test to permit a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a
business. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 April 2020. Since the amendments
apply prospectively to transactions or other events
that occur on or after the date of first application, the
Group will not be affected by these amendments on the

date of transition.

fo B S5 B A i (A60)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE_Z - FF=HA=+—HILFEF

3. EEGHEBUR ()

(b)

O A 4 1L 0 oA A 28 2 T T B A A BT
Al I i R S (A

7 5% B TE AR A % S B T BT e
SR B UCRE R I M R - i
S Bk ALEETR R RIK E kA
8 19 P 5 S A R A T R HE B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

By W A Wk (%)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F - FFZAST—ALFE

3.

82

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) (Amendments) sale
or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
address an inconsistency between the requirements
in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. The amendments
require a full recognition of a gain or loss when the
sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For
a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to
be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS
28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January
2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be
determined after the completion of a broader review of
accounting for associates and joint ventures. However,

the amendments are available for adoption now.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \3

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 (Amendments) COVID-19-Related Rent

Concession

Amendments to HKFRS 16 “COVID-19-related rent
concessions” allow lessee to elect not to assess whether
a rent concession occurring as a direct consequence of
the COVID-19 pandemic is a lease modification. Such
practical expedient applies only to rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic and only if all of the following conditions are

met;

. The change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially
the same as, or less than the consideration for
the lease immediately preceding the change;

. Any reduction in lease payment affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June
2021; and

. There is no substantive change to other terms

and conditions of the lease.

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 (Amendments) Definition of
Material

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. The amendments clarify that
materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of
information. A misstatement of information is material
if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions
made by the primary users. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments prospectively from 1 April 2020. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant

impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
SR B R B R (4)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F - FFZAST—ALFE

£ <=

3.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. ~ EREFHBUR (4)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (b) A 5 1E 1 o 2B R 2 B T e R AT

(Continued) s BB e R ()

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 B WS HER ([

(the “New Framework”) and the Amendments to HER]) J& 283 7 18 S 465 3¢ 7 3 S

References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS BHERZ 5 AT

Standards

The New Framework HAEZR -

. reintroduces the terms stewardship and . EC TIPS & ]
prudence; o

. introduces a new asset definition that focuses ° FIAE BRI 3 2 3%
on rights and a new liability definition that B 8 R A EL BT IR 2 S
is likely to be broader than the definition it RERWZ I AMUER - A
replaces, but does not change the distinction ik A S A TR

Z R

between a liability and an equity instrument;

. discusses historical cost and current value ° o JE S RAS B B T
measures, and provides additional guidance SNt 8 A0 75 R — 4 S 7 K
on how to select a measurement basis for a B TR L R A
particular asset or liability; 85

. states that the primary measure of financial ° T B R B B AR AR
performance is profit or loss, and that only in M > HAERFRREN T
exceptional circumstances other comprehensive B {1 HC At A T O B fE
income will be used and only for income or FHA B A B A )
expenses that arise from a change in the current A Z WAERBHSE 5 [

value of an asset or liability; and

NN J25y .
. discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of J wf A N HEE R R Ak il
. . . ‘;g‘j N éf [=1= AN N ﬂ:'_'_'
account, the reporting entity and combined id > G EhEAL - A ST R
PN R
financial statements. & DF B R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \3

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018
(the “New Framework”) and the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS
Standards (Continued)

Consequential amendments have been made so that
references in certain HKFRSs have been updated to
the New Framework, whilst some HKFRSs are still
referred to the previous versions of the framework.
These amendments are effective for the Group’s annual
period beginning on or after 1 April 2020, with earlier
application permitted. Other than specific standards
which still refer to the previous versions of the
framework, the Group will rely on the New Framework
on its effective date in determining the accounting
policies especially for transactions, events or conditions
that are not otherwise dealt with under the accounting

standards.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

By W 5 e B e (480)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-FE=J =P —H LR

3.

86

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

()

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

The Group is unable to estimate the impact of the
interpretation on the consolidated financial statements

until a more detailed assessment has been completed.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and all of its
subsidiaries as at 31 March each year. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting year as that of the Company using consistent

accounting policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \3

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from

the date that control ceases.

Shenzhen Yuheng Trade Management Co., Limited
(EYNF1EE 5 EMAR/A A, “Shenzhen Yuheng”),
the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, entered into
a series of contractual arrangement (“Contractual
Arrangements”) with Jin Yu Tang (Shenzhen) Fishery
Company Limited ({RIITTHEE & WEFRA T, “Jin
Yu Tang’), wholly-owned by Mr. Hong Maoji which
enable Shenzhen Yuheng to:

- exercise effective financial and operational

control over Jin Yu Tang;

- exercise equity shareholders’ voting rights of Jin

Yu Tang;

- receive substantially all of the economic
interest and returns generated by Jin Yu Tang
in consideration for the business support
and technical services provided by Shenzhen

Yuheng, at Shenzhen Yuheng’s discretion;

- obtain an irrevocable and exclusive right to
purchase the entire equity interest in Jin Yu

Tang from Mr. Hong Maoji; and

- obtain a pledge over the entire equity interest of
Jin Yu Tang from Mr. Hong Maoji as collateral
security to guarantee performance of all of the
obligations of Mr. Hong Maoji and Jin Yu Tang

under the Contractual Arrangements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

&

o B A Wk (%)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE R _RFE=H=1T—HILFE

3.

88

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Pursuant to applicable PRC laws and regulations,
foreign investors are restricted from conducting far
ocean fishery services or holding equity interest in an
entity conducting such services in China. As a result
of the Contractual Arrangements, the Group has rights
to variable returns from its involvement with Jin Yu
Tang, has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over Jin Yu Tang, and is considered to have
control over Jin Yu Tang. Consequently, Jin Yu Tang
is considered to be a subsidiary of the Group and the
financial statements of Jin Yu Tang are included in the

Group’s consolidated financial statements.

However, there are uncertainties regarding the
interpretation and application of existing and future
PRC laws and regulations which could affect the
Company’s ability to exercise control over Jin Yu Tang,
its right to receive substantially all of the economic
interest generated by Jin Yu Tang, and its ability to
consolidate the financial results of Jin Yu Tang into
the Group’s consolidated financial statements. The
Company believes that, based on the legal opinion
obtained from the Company’s PRC legal counsel, the
Contractual Arrangements are legally binding and
enforceable and do not violate current PRC laws and

regulations.

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
to the former owners of the acquired business and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values

at the acquisition date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \3

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are measured at either fair value or
the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at their acquisition date fair
value, unless another measurement basis is required by
HKEFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 39 in profit
or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement

is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly

in the statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
SR B R B R (4)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F - FFZAST—ALFE

3.

90

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

()

Subsidiaries (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred asset. When necessary, amounts
reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform

with the Group’s accounting policies.

Separate financial statements

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of

dividends received and receivable.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary
is measured at the excess of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of any previously held equity interest in the acquiree
over the acquisition date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed of the

acquired subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \3

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiary is recognised
as a separate asset. Goodwill is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, which is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. For the purpose of impairment
test and determination of gain or loss on disposal,
goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units. An

impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed.

In respect of a subsidiary, any excess of the acquisition
date amounts of identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed of the acquired subsidiary over the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in
the acquiree, if any, after reassessment, is recognised

immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to each
of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of
CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination. Each unit or group of units to which
the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level
within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored

at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU or the group of CGUs to
which goodwill has been allocated is compared to
the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense

and is not subsequently reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

By W A Wk (%)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F - FFZAST—ALFE

3.

92

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g

(h)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Trademarks

The initial cost of acquiring trademarks is capitalised.
Trademarks with indefinite useful lives are carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Trademarks with finite useful lives are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is provided on the
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 10

years.

Computer software and Mobile app

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Costs
incurred on development activities, which involve the
application of research findings to a plan or design
for the production of new or substantially improved
products and processes, are capitalised if the product
or process is technically and commercially feasible
and the Group has sufficient resources to complete
the development. The expenditure capitalised includes
the cost of materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Other development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss as an
expense as incurred. When the asset is available for
use, the capitalised development costs are amortised on

a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.
Repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss

during the year in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \3

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant
and equipment over their estimated useful lives from
the date on which they are available for use and after
taking into account their estimated residual values,
using the straight-line method. Where parts of an item
of property, plant and equipment have different useful
lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis and depreciated separately. The principal annual
rates used are as follows:
Leasehold land over the term of
the lease

5to 20%

20% to 33%
20% to 33%

Building

Furniture and fixtures

Computer and office

equipment

20% to 25%
7% to 20%
7% to 10%

Motor vehicles
Plant and machinery

Fishing vessels

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the

year in which the item is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e

S5 i A fi

(%)

Year ended 31 March 2020
CECERFE=EHA=1—HIEFE

€

3.

94

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

@)

Investment property

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields

or for capital appreciation or both.

Investment property is initially recognized at cost,
including related transaction costs. After initial
recognition at cost, investment property is stated at
cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Leasehold
land classified as finance lease commences amortization
from the time when the land interest becomes available
for its intended use. Amortisation on leasehold land
classified as finance lease and depreciation on buildings
is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
the depreciable amounts over the estimated useful
lives of 20 to 43 years. The useful life, residual value
and depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
profit or loss in the period in which the property is

derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \3

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

G) Financial assets

Investments and other financial assets

(a)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the

following measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently
at fair value (either through other
comprehensive income (“OCI”) or

through profit or loss), and

- those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash

flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss
or OCI. For investments in equity instruments
that are not held for trading, this will depend
on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition
to account for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCY).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing

those assets changes.

fo B S5 B A i (A60)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F-FFZA=—ALFE

3. EEGHEBUR ()

G)  emEE
R RINh E
@ K
A B IS MR S
TR
— BRI
FE EES JIE
(T Fefte 22 ke )
BMEE) &MY
B R
— EBEBRA RS
RFTE -

SR T P
EBEALBEREZ &
RGN SE o

HRFEFRENEENS
Wt % s 48 T AR 4 SR
fhax st o B IFFFFEEE
WA TR BCET S  H
S 7% 4 [ A2 A0 Y il 0 g 2
1 EAE R AT e 2 4
DA % JBEAS 15 2 0 . A 4
T W i 1% 23 S fE S AR (192
388 L At 2 T Wi 28 1% 28 -F-(E 51
Hel) e

ASE B R T E
TEE 114 86 s A5 2Kl 3 ey B 20
BB E -

v R ¥ A R R A BR A W) 2019-2020 AR 95



7

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F - FFZAST—ALFE

3.

96

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

G

Financial assets (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL”), transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or

loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of

principal and interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \3

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

G

Financial assets (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(c)

Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group

classifies its debt instruments:

. Amortised cost: Assets that are held
for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss
and presented in other gains/(losses)
together with foreign exchange gains
and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the

consolidated income statement.
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By W A Wk (%)
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Year ended 31 March 2020

WEF FE=A=t LR

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

G) Financial assets (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(c) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \3

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

G

Financial assets (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Measurement (Continued)
Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OCI,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair
value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends
from such investments continue to be
recognised in consolidated income statement as
other income when the group’s right to receive

payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in other gains/(losses)
in the consolidated income statement as
applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal
of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately

from other changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost and
FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant

increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables, see note 21 and 38 for further
details.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

By W A Wk (%)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F - FFZAST—ALFE

3.

100

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Company that contain
both the liability and conversion option components
are classified separately into their respective items
on initial recognition. Conversion option that will
be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash
or another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is classified as an

equity instrument.

The liability component of convertible bonds is
recognised initially at the fair value of a similar liability
that does not have an equity conversion option. The
equity component and embedded derivative component
are recognised initially at the difference between the
fair value of the convertible bonds as a whole and the

fair value of the liability component.

Any directly attributable transaction costs of issuing
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to their initial

carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability
component of convertible bonds and is measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The derivative component of convertible bond is re-

measured using fair value model.

If the bonds are converted, the convertible bonds
equity reserve, together with the carrying amounts of
the liability and derivative components at the time of
conversion, is transferred to share capital and share
premium as consideration for the shares issued. If
the bonds are redeemed, the convertible bonds equity
reserve is released directly to retained profits, and
any difference between the amount paid relating
to the liability component and the fair value of the
liability and derivative components is recognised in

consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \3

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

O]

(m)

Cash and Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise bank
deposits with original maturity with three months, cash
at banks, and short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of

changes in value, net of bank overdrafts.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties.

Revenue from the sale of merchandises (supply chain
management and ocean fishing) is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being when the
goods have been delivered to the customer’s specific
location (delivery). Following delivery, the customer
has full discretion over the manner of distribution and
price to sell the goods, has the primary responsibility
when on selling the goods and bears the risks of
obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods. A
receivable is recognised by the Group when the goods
are delivered to the customers as this represents the
point in time at which the right to consideration
becomes unconditional, as only the passage of time is

required before payment is due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

By W A Wk (%)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F - FFZAST—ALFE

3.

102

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m)

(n)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income is recognised and accrued using the
effective interest method. When a loan receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to
its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash
flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of
the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount
as interest income. Interest income on impaired loan
receivables are recognised using the original effective

interest rate.

Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in the currency of
Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional

and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss except for those
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
in respect of which gains and losses are recognised
directly in equity, in which cases, the gains or losses are

also recognised directly in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \3

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

The results and financial position of all the Group’s
entities that have a functional currency different from
the presentation currency (“foreign operations”) are

translated into the presentation currency as follows:

. Assets and liabilities for each statement
of financial position presented and, where
applicable, goodwill and fair value adjustments
on the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
which are to be treated as assets and liabilities
of that foreign operation, are translated at the

closing rate at the end of the reporting period.

. Income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average

exchange rate.

. All resulting currency translation differences

are recognised in other comprehensive income.

. On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is,
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit

or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F - FFZAST—ALFE

3.

104

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(0)

(p)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost, which comprises all costs of
purchase and, where applicable, other costs that have
been incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition, is calculated using the
first in, first out method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs necessary to make the

sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period of the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense

in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

The loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to expected credit losses (ECLs), which
are those losses that are expected to occur over
the expected life of the trade receivables. The
loss allowance is estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general economic

conditions at the reporting date.

China Ocean Group Development Limited Annual Report 2019-2020

3.

<=

ERGRBUR ()

(o)

(p)

i

A7 B 15 A (B B AT 5 B IR (E T A
BARHE AR o A B35 P A7 i B
AR (U ) A7 B A R R B
T 30 B KR DL 2 HAB A > 12 i
SEILFEHA o T BLESE H W
B AR o 2 Al S B TR 2
fERHARTF -

EELAER - IS FRZIRE
60 A% e w8 A Bl e A\ 33 it 58 2% S
o A B R T AR R
WORR DL T A A7 B s 1R P TE ) B
B g H AR A o AR
A8 ] 2 < BRI ) B M A 458 [l
9 309 7R it 2 S HE SR > B RR A
fFREFEZBD -

e M 4 % s A
(i) HMBELRGEZGEER

Ve B H A ) B B AR TR T
G Sk H - AEKE 50
FEFHEHE A Z TSR -
N R Al R — A
DAAS 45 J] 119 JEE S 5 B0 M 1R 4C
SR A A > I ARYER
(EU PN ASES (SR
e sty BT o i % TR
— ALK DL <



e

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \3

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date
with any changes recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss with
a corresponding adjustment to the carrying
amount of trade and other receivables through

a loss allowance account.

The gross carrying amount of a trade debtor or
other receivable is written off (either partially
or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic
of recovery. This is generally the case when
the debtor does not have assets or sources of
income to generate sufficient cash flows to

repay the amounts subject.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

By W A Wk (%)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F - FFZAST—ALFE

3.

106

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group reviews internal and external sources
of information to assess whether there is any
indication that property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets, other assets, investment
property, may be impaired or impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may
be reduced. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated,
based on the higher of its fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. Where it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the smallest group of
assets that generates cash flows independently
(i.e. cash-generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-
generating unit is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced
to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
immediately.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating
unit that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as an
income in profit or loss immediately.

The accounting policy for recognition and
reversal of the impairment loss for goodwill is
stated in the accounting policy for goodwill in
the earlier part of this note.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \3

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(q)

Leases

Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2019

The Group assesses at contract inception whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of

time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group
recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the

underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is
the date the underlying asset is available for
use). Right-of-use assets are measured at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or
before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leased properties Over the lease terms
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

By W A Wk (%)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F - FFZAST—ALFE

3.

108

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(q9)  Leases (Continued)

Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2019
(Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)
(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over
the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including insubstance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to
be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate. The variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event

or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion
of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of
lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in lease payments (e.g., a change to
future lease payments resulting from a change
in an index or rate) or a change in assessment

of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \3

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(q)

Leases (Continued)

Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2019
(Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)
(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term leases
of office properties (that is those leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies the recognition
exemption for leases of low-value assets to
leases of office equipment that are considered
to be of low value. Lease payments on short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis

over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each
of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance

lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative
standalone selling price basis. Rental income is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms and is included in revenue in the statement
of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on
the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as revenue in the period in which they are

earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying assets

to the lessee are accounted for as finance leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

By W A Wk (%)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F - FFZAST—ALFE

3.

110

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(q)

(r)

Leases (Continued)

Accounting policies applied until 31 March 2019

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of

the relevant lease.

Lease incentives are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the net consideration agreed for the use
of the leased asset. Contingent rentals are recognised
as expenses in the accounting period in which they are

incurred.

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered

by employees.

Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined
contribution retirement scheme for the staff in Hong
Kong are recognised as an expense in profit or loss as
incurred and are reduced by contributions forfeited
by those employees who leave the scheme prior the
contributions are vested fully in those employees. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from those of

the Group in an independently administered fund.

Pursuant to the laws and regulations of the PRC,
contributions to the defined contribution retirement
schemes for the Group’s PRC staff are made to the
relevant government authorities in the PRC, which
are calculated on certain percentages of the applicable
payroll costs as stipulated under the requirements in
the PRC. These contributions are expensed as incurred.

China Ocean Group Development Limited Annual Report 2019-2020

<=

3.  EEGHEBUR ()

(q)

(r)

HL& ()
R NAFE=H =1 — H TR
Y 6 it B

JUHE #2248 V8 4 L By % ] i
2 RN 2 & o B0 Al B A
#) o BT A HALAE A 30 U0 K8 T
# o

ARPR AL A A 2 R AT AH & 1 H ARk
TP AR B AL 2 3 19 S 48 4 P AT BR R
o

REL 46 (5 2O 45 45 o e R 5 T TR
B &% 2 FAUE Z AR 4) - 5
SRAH & A AR 2 e wt I e R B
* o

1 B 16 A
HE K1 R 15

Fré - HERALAL - EEAFERY -
FUE ket ) 2 Bk e I Bl AR
M Z A > H7e R B iR AR E 2 4F
J3E A A B - T S

TRIE skl

B B T2 SE i oB IRt S 4H
K FBFAE B LE R AE 1R 2 N ERR
B - B AT SO U R R
Hh B IR i O & A
W o w2 A BLAC AR [ E )
B2 B A B

MRIE PR 2R R - AL
For i B T2 9 5 E OB IRE
B 2 a2 T B B BUG
> PR # b BB E DU &
HA I — R T LR o a% A K
TE B R e AF I T S8 -



=~

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \3

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled transactions

The Group’s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services
in exchange for shares or rights over shares. The cost
of such transactions with employees is measured by
reference to the fair value of the equity instruments
at the grant date. The fair value of share options
granted to employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in a reserve
within equity. The fair value is determined using the
Black-Scholes-Merton model, taking into account the
terms and conditions of the transactions, other than
conditions linked to the price of the shares of the

Company (“market conditions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the years in which the vesting conditions are to
be fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant
employees become fully entitled to the award (“vesting
date”). During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest ultimately is reviewed.
Any adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss for
the year of the review, with a corresponding adjustment

to the reserve within equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

By W A Wk (%)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F - FFZAST—ALFE

3.

112

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)
Equity-settled transactions (Continued)

When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve

will be transferred to accumulated losses.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, an additional expense is recognised for any
increase in the value of the transaction as a result of the

modification, as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled before the
vesting date, it is treated as if it had vested on the date
of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. However, if a
new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and
designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as

described above.

Share-based payment transactions in which the
Company grants share options to subsidiaries’
employees are accounted for as an increase in value
of investment in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position which is eliminated on

consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \3

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(1)

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the
results for the year as adjusted for items that are
non-assessable or disallowed. It is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted

by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, any deferred tax
arising from initial recognition of goodwill; or other
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

is not recognised.

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is recovered or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, tax

losses and credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investment in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
SR B R B R (4)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F - FFZAST—ALFE

3.

114

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

(v)

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or

sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
consolidated income statement in the period in which

they are incurred.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. A contract liability would also be
recognised if the group has an unconditional right
to receive consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding

receivable would also be recognised.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest

accrued under the effective interest method.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(w)  Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s chief operating decision
maker for the purpose of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines

of business and geographical locations.

Individual material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they

share a majority of these criteria.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and
judgements are made by the management in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements. They affect the
application of the Group’s accounting policies, reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and
disclosures made. They are assessed on an on-going basis
and are based on experience and relevant factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Where appropriate, revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period of revision
and future periods, in case the revision also affects future

periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
SR B R B R (4)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F - FFZAST—ALFE

4.

116

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Critical judgements made in applying accounting

policies
Ownership of motor vehicles

Certain motor vehicles of the Group are registered
in the name of independent third parties, which hold
the motor vehicles on behalf of the Group under trust
arrangement. In the opinion of the directors, the trust
arrangement is sufficient to create valid trusts under
the law of Hong Kong that the Group is the beneficial
owner of the motor vehicles. Therefore, the Group has
accounted for these motor vehicles as property, plant

and equipment of the Group.

Key sources of estimate uncertainty
Impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of
receivables based on assumptions about risk of default
and expected loss rates (Note 3(p) and 38). The Group
uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at the

end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \3

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimate uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment,

investment property and intangible assets

The management determines whether the Group’s
property, plant and equipment, investment property
and intangible assets are impaired where an indication
of impairment exists. This requires an estimation of
the recoverable amount of the property, plant and
equipment, investment property and intangible assets,
which is equal to the higher of net selling price or
the value in use. Estimating the value in use requires
the management to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from property, plant and equipment,
investment property and intangible assets and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. Any impairment will

be charged to profit or loss.

Fair value of convertible bonds

The fair value of convertible bonds are determined
using valuation techniques including reference to other
instruments that are substantially the same, discounted
cash flow analysis and option pricing model. The
inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible,
a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair

values.

4.
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Year ended 31 March 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o B e fit

(%)

Year ended 31 March 2020
CECERFE=EHA=1—HIEFE

€

4.

118

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimate uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value of contingent consideration payable

The fair value of contingent consideration payable was
determined by using valuation techniques as the date
of acquisition and the end of each financial reporting
period. The Group uses its judgement to select a
method and make assumptions, include estimating
future cash flows from the acquired business and/
or post-acquisition performance of the acquired
businesses and fair value of the Company’s shares,
which are mainly based on market conditions existing
at the end of each reporting period. Changes in
assumption used could materially affect the fair value
of these balances and as a result affect the Group’s

financial condition and results of operation.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill have
suffered any impairment, in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 3(f). The recoverable
amounts of groups of cash-generating units (the
“CGUs”) have been determined based on value-in-
use calculations. These calculations require the use of

estimates (Note 19).

As of 31 March 2020, as the recoverable amounts of
the CGUs that contain goodwill were higher than their
carrying amounts, there was no impairment of goodwill

with indefinite useful life.
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5. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Group manages its businesses by individual companies,
which are organised by a mixture of both business lines and
geographical locations. In a manner consistent with the way
in which information is reported internally to the Group’s
chief operating decision makers, who are the directors of
the Company, for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following reporting segments. No operating segments have

been aggregated to form the following reporting segments:

- Supply chain management segment which provides
services involving the planning and implementation of
an integrated solution for the effective flow of business,

logistic, information and funds;

- Money lending segment which provides money lending

services.

- Ocean fishing segment which provides fishing and
catching business in open sea beyond the coastal

region.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Year ended 31 March 2020
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€

5.

120

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued)

(a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the Group’s
chief operating decision makers monitor the results,
assets and liabilities attributable to each reporting

segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all allocated assets with the
exception of interest in associates and other corporate
assets. Segment liabilities include trade and other
payables attributable to the sales/service activities of

the individual segment.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reporting
segments with reference to revenue generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation of assets
attributable to those segments. However, assistance
provided by one segment to another, including sharing

of assets and technical know-how, is not measured.

Information regarding the Group’s reporting segments
as provided to the Group’s chief operating decision
makers for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance for the years ended
31 March 2020 and 2019 is set out below.

China Ocean Group Development Limited Annual Report 2019-2020

5.

<=

5 IR EORE (1)

(a)

sruksRA - 'R KRR

AT AR 20 PR 2R B R 4% 7 S ] T
BRI F > AR E R EEREA
e DA 2 e B 45 i O R 26
B BEMRAR

O R AL BT B M
TN BN T 2 R 2 B oAt A 2
BRAL o 4330 B 5 6 5 18 I 4 35 2 8
MRS R 2 A MR R e A
K o

W it K% B 32 ) 58 2 7% 52 55 O MR EE A
Z Wi K B 3B 5E A WA 2
FE AT 85 T 7 AR 2 Ho At i 2R K B SO
L Z R i 7R o SR - AR FEHE

— ki g — ik bR it 2 B (R
70 B B R I SE Al

1] 7 45 B B POR N E
FoEFR R =ZA =4
Ik 4 B 2 R i B % 43 2% 3 R
Ak BT B A B A 4 T R i A R 2
BRI o



5.

(a)

N

RS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \}

By A WA W ek

(48)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F-TE=J= | —HILFE

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued) 5. EER (A7)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) () N GRERAME (4F)
Supply chain
management Money lending Ocean fishing
services business business business Consolidated
HEE G S TR E 0 U HHEREER Ha
2019 2019 2020 2019 2019
“E-hE CE-NE e “E- U
HK$'000 ESUCHIM HKS'000 SIS HKS'000 ERSICHUON HKS'000 e
Lol B Tr EEUEST ETr AR ST AR 5T
Segment revenue st
Sale of goods to external customers [ SMEPK 4K E5 £ f 806,753 905,142 - - 19760 5381 826513 938953
Service fees from external customers 1IN & F IR # 2 i - - 123 1,642 - - 123 1,642
806,753 905,142 123 1,642 19,760 53,811 826,636 960,595
Segment results AER 59405 58411 (442) (962) 323 9155 6,198 8661
Unallocated income AAEIA 5,760 5,181
Unallocated expenses FOEREL (41,199) (45229
Profit for the year ER A 26,759 46,576
Assets and liabilities BERAR
Segment assets HHEE 1,077,070 927,313 68 4161 491,340 549638 1,568,478 1,481,112
Unallocated assets, including interests ROWEE > B
in associates Nl 148,144 211,939
Consolidated total assets GAERGR 1,716,622 1,693,051
Segment liabilites HE 1L128 150,783 39 716140 136250 47307 287,040
Unallocated liabilties RAEALK 192,113 113,884
Consolidated total liabilities GRAEREE 459420 400924
Other segment information KA g
Amortisation of intangible assets LA i - 1 - - - - 3l 1
Amortisation of other assets i B - - - - - - 121 121
Depreciation ik
- Property, plant and equipment 415 R Rkl 1,267 1471 - - 3,116 307 4,364 5,529
- Right-of-use assets - (LR - = - - - - yr -
- Investment property - REmE - = - = - = 568 -
Impairment loss: WIS -
- Intangible assets - By EE - - - - - - - 81
- Net impairment loss for ~ RO
trade receivable BRI 3877 258 - - 2,192 306 6,069 564
- Net impairment loss for ~ BB RS
loan and interest receivables WHERRE - - 297 - - - 297 -
Written off of loan interest receivables FEMTE | S5 - = - 2,162 - = - 2,162
Provision for deposit paid B ftaE 500 - - - - - 500 -
Additions to non-current assets REERBEE - 36 - - 36 1,902 41 1,947
v R i R A B R A PR 2 W 2019-2020 A% 121



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ok B S5 B A i (480)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-FE=J =P —H LR

7. <=

5.  SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued) 5. SRR ()
(b) Geographical information (b) b 1% R
The Group’s operations are primarily derived from A 4R B SE 05 R R B LR s B
external customers located in Hong Kong and the PRC. AN T o R 22 #5042 1o [& 17
The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s bk a4 h FER N A SR
revenue from external customers by geographical G40 BT DL B 402 35 7 o7 8 0 40 1 S
market and information about the non-current assets ; e
B G E K E R

by locations of assets:

Revenue from Carrying amounts of
external customers non-current assets
R B AR )5 W g J i Y W VR TR

2020 2019 2020 2019
R T Nyl T T4 e eayKia
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
W T T T

Hong Kong e 27,597 141,079 20,624 25,075
PRC R 784,111 801,459 524,106 544,355
Others HAty 14,928 18,057 14,402 13,387

826,636 960,595 559,132 582,817

() EEEFZEH

WEF FEZA =B
B AMAEF (CF I

(c) Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 March 2020, four customers

(2019: four customers) that individually accounted

for over 10% of total revenue of the Group are set out AR ) ME AL A S A R
below: 10% > BLEFIWTE :
Supply chain
management
services business Consolidated
3% S e L O X B

2020 2019 2020 2019
Sl o JEEEIE
HKS$’000 HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
el entc LRl T

Customer A EFA 472,753 469,350 472,753 469,350
Customer B KFB 131,400 157,569 131,400 157,569
Customer C KFC 112,759 = 112,759 =
Customer D HED 89,314 139,594 89,314 139,594
Customer E %FE - 105,482 - 105,482

806,226 871,995 806,226 871,995
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6. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 6.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and other income during

the year is as follows:

N

RS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \3
SR A R T (A

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F-TE=J= | —HILFE

L&Y SR LIIN

LU

A A B A A A B Y S i B H A A 22 43 #r

2020 2019
RO R
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
T T oo
Revenue from contracts with pgsRt g ol &
customers
Sale of goods from: FELLTIHE Z & meHE
Supply chain management 4t U A 3 S T
services business 806,753 905,142
Ocean fishing business T 2 19,760 53,811
Service fees from: REUTEHEZ REE A :
Interest income from gﬁﬁ‘ KA E 5! WA
loans to customers 123 1,642
Revenue A 826,636 960,595
Interest income FE A 7 438
Other revenue At e 4 7 438
Interest income from other loan HoAth B A Bl A 8,100 12,960
Gain on disposal of property, EYIE - WE TGRS 2 A
plant and equipment 75 -
Gain on disposal of other assets B HAt & 2 Wi 56 -
Government subsidy income Iﬁlrfﬁﬁﬁlﬁ(}\ 4,543 6,944
Gain on disposal of pre-sale A TR A L ) 2 R
land consent - 20,392
Rental income AR A 264 =
Sundry income METHWA 1,320 5,371
Other income H e A 14,358 45,667
Total revenue KA A 841,001 1,006,700

B M R A R A R 2019-2020 4F#R 123
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
SR B R B (7))

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-FE=J =P —H LR

7o

124

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is stated after charging (crediting):

7. Wi Bt Wi iz Al
BB AR A T F0ER (FFA) T 5145 THAZ 51

RN
2020 2019
e e 22 —F-NE
HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
T -l
Employee benefit expenses 1 5 4 1 B 52
(including directors’ remuneration) (BIEEFEME)
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e B REY AL 16,855 18,139
Contribution to defined contribution schemes FLE MR # Kk 278 277
17,133 18,416
Finance costs Al A
Margin facility interest expense 1 Jo& i ) 5 BA 2 - 200
Corporate bond interest AwESF R 1,373 145
Interest for other borrowing HAtb A 2 F S 18,767 4,881
Interest for bank borrowing HATIE R Z B 3,332 188
23,472 5,414
Other items HAbIEH
Amortisation (included in BESY (GEAATEBE ) -
administrative expenses):
- Intangible assets — I & 31 1
- Other assets — HAth 121 121
Auditor’s remuneration BT 4 1,824 1,579
Cost of goods sold (BRSPS 739,438 879,603
Depreciation Preg
- Property, plant and equipment — W3 - R kA 4,864 5,529
- Right-of-use assets — RS E 24 -
- Investment property — RGN 568 -
Exchange loss, net [iEE 52, Js 48 1 4 4,794 4,727
Impairment loss: BiERE T -
- Intangible assets - WL EE - 81
- Net impairment loss for trade receivables — JRE SR R e 8 1 A 6,069 564
- Net impairment loss for — BE SR S R FLE 2
loan and interest receivables 8 (LA 1 3 A 297 =
Written off of loan interest receivables B LS R S A - 2,162
Loss on disposal financial assets B A R R A 4 A TR IR 2
at fair value through profit or loss SRVEREZ R - 16,973
Operating lease payments for premises Y2 RE AR - 4,684
Property rental expenses in RN 2 W) SR B 52
respect of short-term lease 3,979 -
Provision for deposit paid O A & &
(included in other operating expenses) (FEAH AR5 B 52) 500 -
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Year ended 31 March 2020
WE-F-FE=H = HILFE

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. &

The aggregate amounts of remuneration received and AN F R PR RO AR R
receivable by the Company’s directors are as follows:

2020
B3
Salaries, Contribution
allowances  to defined
Directors'  Discretionary ~ and benefits ~ contribution

fees bonus in kind scheme Total
Beouh o FEds

#His WL REDAE  FhE s it

HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HKS$'000  HK$'000

LS T ST 1 S T {5 R &

Executive Directors WrEs
Mr. Liu Rongsheng B R 1,182 - - 18 1,200
Mr. Fan Guocheng R 822 - - 18 840
Ms. Wei Qing WLt 822 - - 18 840
2,826 - - 54 2,880
Non-executive Directors FfT %5
Mr. Yang Yong (resigned on 23 April 2020) BB (BT FENA = AR 400 - - - 400
Mr. Lui Chun Pong AR 210 - - - 240
Mr. Cai Haiming (appointed on 17 January 2020) RS (W-F -+ REZ() - - - - -
640 - - - 640
Independent non-executive Directors LR §$
Mr. Pang Pui Hung, Paton (resigned on 17 March 2020) il (R=F=F4E = +-L HRHE) 115 - - - 115
Mr. Lam Man Hing €A 135 - - - 135
Mr. Li Cao ok 135 - - - 135
Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John (appointed on 17 March 2020) &% &A% (RZZZZE =] T4 HEZ(E) 5 - - - 5
390 - - - 390
3,856 - - 54 3,910

AR MR R A R A F] 2019-2020 4R 125
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SR B R B (7))

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-FE=J =P —H LR

7. <=

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 8. H#HHEME (&)

2019
= ST
Salaries,  Contribution
allowances to defined
Directors'  Discretionary  and benefits ~ contribution
fees bonus in kind scheme Total
Foomm AEf
EHlie O MERA REWHE  sHHzAER st
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$'000  HKS 000
T WWTr T #ETr EETx

Executive Directors LI
Mr. Liu Rongsheng BIEE LS 1,182 60 - 18 1260
Lord Cao Yunde (resigned on 31 May 2018) EZEDE (R \ELA=T—HFT) 160 = = = 160
Mr. Fan Guocheng BB 82 60 - 18 900
Mr. Chen Liang (resigned on 31 May 2018) ool (M2 NERA=A+—BRHE) 157 - - 3 160
Ms. Wei Qing Hlh L 822 60 - 18 900
3,143 180 - 57 3,380
Non-executive Directors FHfES
Mr. Yang Yong FL i 480 - - - 480
Mr. Lui Chun Pong (appointed on 2 October 2018) B (BB AT A ZHEZ() 120 - - - 120
600 - - - 600
Independent non-executive Directors BuBrEs
Mr. Pang Pui Hung, Paton ALy 150 = = = 150
Ms. Li Yuen Fong, Michelle (resigned on 4 August 2018) 4% &+ (RZF—AEAAMARHE) 101 2% - - 126
Mr. Zhu Yifeng (resigned on 4 August 2018) REELE (REF— AW ERE) 50 - - - 50
Mr. Lam Man Hing (appointed on § August 2018) WXERE (R=Z—-NEAAANBERT) 97 = = = 97
Mr. Li Cao (appointed on 4 December 2018) ZREA (R -Z—N\E+ - B NHERT) 49 - - - 49
447 25 - - 472
4190 205 - 57 4452
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration for the years ended 31
March 2020 and 2019. In addition, no emoluments were paid
by the Group to any of the directors as an inducement to join,
or upon joining the Group or as a compensation for loss of
office for the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019.

There were no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour
of the directors of the Company that were entered into or
subsisted during the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019.

The directors are of the opinion that no transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to the
Company’s business to which the Company was a party and
in which a director of the Company or a connected entity of a
director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the years
ended 31 March 2020 and 2019.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid individuals during the year included
three directors (2019: three), details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements
above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining two (2019:
two) highest paid individuals, who are not directors, are as

follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \3

fo B S5 B A i (A60)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F-TE=J= | —HILFE

HEHEME (A7)

REBEE-F_FHER-_F-NEFE=A=+
— HURAERE - 4% 3 S ML AT S R B R =
TOEAL o] P < 2 22 B o LN > A SR [ A
REBE_F_FFER_F-NF=A=*
— H kAR B 1AL ] 2 S ST T o A
22 SN A S 1 0 EL A A £ 8 I 1
BEM > SAE By LA 1 -

FRFRBE_F_TER T NF=
H:+*HE$EWIH?4iﬁTu§
HRR AN B RS HAR S -

EHRL > RAFERIEE _F _FF
=R —NEZH =+ H IEEE R
B A AN FE S — T A BRA L
B CERL Y ~ P RaHEARRF
TS BN A
LEPA PN £

T f e # A
FERIA R EHALEFE =0 (CF -
o =Ar) EE S e EC®IR £
AR A BRI GRS o HERMAL (ZF—
JUAFE - L) FEHELEREHF AL H
LR 2R

2020 2019

—z -z IR

HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000

W T ki aT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e WA REYA 1,210 1,416
Contribution to defined contribution schemes e et 2 ek 36 36
1,246 1,452

B B R A IRA E] 2019-2020 4 127
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Year ended 31 March 2020
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9.

10.

128

“EREZA=ZTHIEEE

<=

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued) 9.  hbrmwH AL ()
The two (2019: two) highest paid individuals’ remuneration Mz (2% ij:ﬁ L) J5e e 3 A 193
falls within the following band: AP AT i
Number of employees
e B % H
2020 2019
el T
Nil to HK$1,000,000 % % 11,000,000 7C 2 2
No remuneration was paid by the Group to any of the two REE_F_FER T -AFE=ZA=T
(2019: two) highest paid individuals as an inducement to join — H IR > 7 B NI A 1) AT Ae] WY A2 (=
or upon joining the Group, or as a compensation for loss of —JUAF © W) B B AN b S A AT AT
office for the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019. P o A SR i A AR SR B SR I A A 4
g E) A o AR 2 A 4 o
There was no arrangement under which any of the two (2019: RBE_F_FER_F-AE=ZA=T
two) highest paid individuals waived or agreed to waive any —H IR WAL (ZF— LA - ML)
remuneration for the year ended 31 March 2020 and 2019. o5 9 A o AR 0 5T S i S ) R A AT AT P
B2 o
INCOME TAX EXPENSES 10.  FifaBipi=

The Group’s profits are taxed at different rates depending on
the country in which the profits arises. The key applicable tax

rates are as below:

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2,000,000 of profits of
the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of
group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates

regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.
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10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

The provision for the PRC enterprise income tax is based on
the statutory tax rate of 25% on the estimated taxable profits
determined in accordance with the relevant income tax rules
and regulations of the PRC for the year ended 31 March 2020
(2019: 25%).

According to the relevant law and regulations in PRC
Enterprises Income Tax - Section 27 sub-section 1, enterprises
engaged in catching fishery business can be exempted from
PRC Enterprises Income Tax. The Ministry of Agriculture of
the PRC issued the ocean fishing license to a subsidiary of the

Company which will be renewal on 31 March 2021.

No Cambodia corporate income tax has been provided as there
is no estimated taxable profits determined in accordance with
relevant income tax rules and regulations of Cambodia for the
year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: 20%).

10.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \3

fo B S5 B A i (A60)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F-FFZA=—ALFE

P4 Be B 32 (47)

BEFE - FE=A=+—HILFEEF |
1B 1> 2 iy 15 o HE i 2 AR DR A T A v I T 1R
ol 1 B B A R R i ) R 1
FERLER25%FHH (ZF— U © 25%) o

AR v B A S T A B BR A A M — 56
2705 1K > 8 3 B IS A A SE T A
Bl b B A SEPR B o B R S A
% ) [ R R 2 ) AR U T A 0 T A
RPN —F =A== H
# o

HEFZ-FBE=ZA=Z1+—HIFEE  ®
952 ORUIHT S AH B8 T 15 0 0 B s L 18 A ) iy
FHERBLE A > MEHFHE RO S IR
Bl (ZF—JU4E  20%) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

By W 5 e B e (480)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-FE=J =P —H LR

7. <=

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued) 10.  FnfaBipAsE (A7)

The provision for the Mozambique corporate income tax is BE_F_FF=A=+—HILHFE &
based on the statutory tax rate of 32% on the estimated taxable e LU 30 A SE B A B B4 T £ R SR B S
profits determined in accordance with the relevant income A% 32% B BLRAE - A BB R I RE
tax rules and regulations of Mozambique for the year ended B 5% L v A B Al B Bk L E (-
31 March 2020 (2019: 32%). Tax benefit for Mozambique T U ¢ 32%) o SR R B IR B
Investment Law for fishing industry can enjoy 50% reduction EZBHBE AT A CEABRBRZ
on corporate income tax rate. 50% o

2020 2019
e e 22 b S22
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
T BT
Current tax R 318 IR
Hong Kong Profits Tax, current year AR B AU R A 311 2,324
PRC enterprise income tax 4 PR B
- Current year — ANAEJE 1,103 -
- Under/(Over)-provision for prior year —BEEEREAE
(B 29 (2,724)
Cambodia corporate income tax, AR AE T R S AR SE TR
current year - 3,202
Mozambique corporate A JE 51 5% L e A SE TR B
income tax, current year 1,773 2,106
Deferred tax R AERIH - (4,405)
Total income tax expenses Ji 455t B 5% 48 8 3,216 503
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10.

11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

Tax expense for the year is reconciled to profit before

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \3 y

10.

‘¥>‘s<

\ c
™ N\
G B R M E (4)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F-TE=J= | —HILFE

P4 Be B 32 (47)
A4 BE B IR B = BB B i v ) 2B R

taxation
2020 2019
Sl = =
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T BT
Profit before taxation IR o 1 Ve ) 29,975 47,079
Notional tax calculated on profit before 2 53 T ¥ A1) LA AH B[R K
taxation, calculated at the rates applicable BT i A1) 2
to profits in countries concerned BRGFIHE 2 ZEBIE 10,696 14,226
Non-deductible expenses ANAT TPl P 3T 2,460 232
Non-taxable revenue I B U 25 - (1,476)
Unrecognised tax losses W R i RE 2 BLIE G 1R 5,616 3,361
Unrecognised temporary differences I¥) A R 2 T R 2 7 229 160
Utilisation of previously 6 ST AT 1 R e AR
unrecognised tax losses B A s 15 (14,028) (11,004)
Under/(over)-provision for prior year B EEBHEAL S
(M) 29 (2,724)
Tax concessions S 8 (1,786) (2,272)
Income tax charges Brig i > i 3,216 503
DIVIDENDS 1. B
The Board do not recommend the payment of a dividend for EREGAERRMAAFERE (ZF -0
i) o

the Year (2019: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
SR B R B (7))

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-FE=J =P —H LR

12.  EARNINGS PER SHARE 12.  HR&ARM
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based g FR B AR T 4 v 2 ) T AR R AR 8 A A R IR
on the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company REREA AN U6 1) DA B 4R R A A 7 © 384T
and the weighted average number of the Company’s ordinary 48 B B RS- 2 IR BT R AN

shares in issue during the year as follows:

2020 2019
il ==
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
W T BT
Profit attributable to equity holders of A2\ F) HERE A AL Ui )
the Company 28,029 43,668

Number of shares

JBe iy i H

2020 2019
el

Weighted average number of ordinary shares i DA 8 B B A A1 2.
in issue during the year for the purposes of N E BT E R

basic earnings per share TIHES- 44 i B 4,225,960,179  3,832,820,009
Effect to dilutive potential ordinary share % SACHIE SIS 2
- Convertible bonds — AR 31,172,000 31,172,000

Weighted average number of ordinary shares I LAwHE & B4 22 7 2

in issue during the year for the purposes ENNIRR ZERLa il il

of diluted earnings per share TIHESF-£4 1 B 4,257,132,179  3,863,992,009
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the R BT A L T v 7 0 I 2 R A
number of ordinary shares outstanding due to the effect of A T3 R SRR B AT A A 2 S H
all dilutive potential ordinary shares and the Group’s profit Be A al A NG A< 2 B i A s o

attributable to owners of the Company.

The Company has dilutive potential ordinary shares AN B A B AT 46 AR 2 A B 10 B4 v
attributable to convertible bonds. WA o
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y
o £ VA S B (4 ~

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F-FFZA=—ALFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13, W3k ~ Wibs Bk ffi
Leasehold Computer
land and Furniture and office Motor Plant and Fishing
building  andfixtures  equipment vehicles machinery vessels Total
Mg LR £l )
B BEREE  BAESH i RRRER ik ot
HKS’ 000 HKS’ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS'000
T BT BT BRI T T T
Cost WA
At1 April 2018 R~ NEMA—H 20,994 400 544 8,07 3,164 27,394 62,723
Additions RE 64 17 67 182 1,617 - 1,947
Disposal i = = (4) - - - (4
Reclassification EHH 2378 (397) = - (1,981) - -
Exchange realignment % = 18 (56) 62 (390) (1,751) (2,117)
At31 March 2009 and 1 April ~ REF-NEZAZF—AR
2019 “E-NERA-A 25,436 38 551 8471 2410 25,643 62,549
Additions WE = = 5 - 36 = 41
Disposal e - = = (5,47) = = (5,47)
Transfer to investment property BREREE (21,450) - - - - = (21,450)
Exchange realignment % - ) (24) 8) (79) (1,030) (1,143)
At 31 March 2020 REZZBEZN=4—H 3,986 36 53 3,216 2,367 24,613 34,750
Accumulated depreciation and Rt % R fi
impairment
At1 April 2018 A=F— VENA—A 319 2 297 1,585 1,261 10,757 14241
Depreciation it 1,057 5 76 1,832 186 2373 5,529
Reclassification BN 959 (20) = = (939) = =
Exchange realignment [ S8 = (1) (19) 12 (20) (715) (743)
At31 March 2009 and 1 April - REF-NEZAZF—AR
2019 “Z-NERA-A 2,33 6 354 3,429 488 12415 19,027
Depreciation it 49 8 74 1,653 359 2275 4,864
Transfer to investment property & % f 4% (1,278) = = = = = (1,278)
Disposal i - - - (2,650) - - (2,650)
Exchange realignment B A - - (15) - (6) (514) (535)
At 31 March 2020 REZZBE=A=4-H 1,552 14 413 2432 841 14,176 19,428
Net book value W
At 31 March 2020 REZZBEZA=Z4—H 2,434 n 119 784 1,526 10,437 1532
At 31 March 2019 A E-NEZR=+—H 23,101 3 197 5,042 1,922 13,228 850
AR MR R A R A H] 2019-2020 4R 133



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

By W A Wk (%)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE R _RFE=H=1T—HILFE

£ <=

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 14.  BHEMDE
HK$’ 000
Cost BAR W T
At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 W= FE—/EMA—H -
“E-NFEZHA=Z+—H
LZZ—NAENA—H -
Transfer from property, plant and equipment W AWK R s 21,450
At 31 March 2020 REZFZFF=A=+—H 21,450
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 5t R
At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 NoE—/EMH—H
“E—NHE=ZA=1—H
B=ZF—NHFNA—H -
Transfer from property, plant and equipment LS 3SR B NG 1,278
Depreciation K 568
At 31 March 2020 RE-ZZZE=HA=+—H 1,846
Net book value e e ¥
At 31 March 2020 REBZREZH =4 —H 19,604
At 31 March 2019 RZF—NF=A=1+—8 -
The following amounts have been recognised in the consolidated A& T RARGHE & X
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income: A 4 T i A R AR
Rental income GEEL N 264
Direct operating expenses arising from investment FE AT A Z BE W) SE P A AR
property that generated rental income Z HERER S 81

As at 31 March 2020, investment property was pledged as MR -ZF-FE=A=+—H  FLEWECIKM A A
collateral for the Group’s borrowings (Note 25). EEEE AR5 (fsE2s) -

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group leased outa BE_EF-FFE=A=+—HILFE » AERLH

formerly self-occupied residential flat located in Hong Kong A% s Sl B M 2 AR T HEAL - 3 H 5% B8 0or =8 7
and reclassified such flat as an investment property. HAREWE -
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14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Continued)

The fair value of the Group’s investment property, including
leasehold land portion, at the end of the reporting period was
HK$20,562,000. The fair value has been arrived at based on a
valuation at the end of the reporting period, determined by the
directors of the Company. No valuation has been performed
by independent qualified professional valuers. The valuation
performed by the directors of the Company was carried out
with reference to recent market prices for similar properties in
similar locations, which was classified as level 3 under HKFRS

13 “Fair Value Measurement’.

The Group’s investment property is held for rental purpose

under operating leases and/or for capital appreciation.

The Group leases out premises under operating leases with
rentals receivable monthly. The leases typically run for an
initial period of 2 years. The lease contracts do not contain
residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to purchase the

property at the end of lease term.

The above investment property is depreciated over the
estimated useful lives of 20 to 43 years. The useful lives,
residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

14.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \3

fo B S5 B A i (A60)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE - Z - FE=H=+—HILFE

BREWE (4

AR - AEEBREYE (BFEEE
RS ) B A A £ ¥ 20,562,000 7T ©
NS EWREIE EN/NGIN 8 S
EMMGE R o 30 RSB A Bk A,
(HRTEATAG(E o A Al #9582 AR AR
7 M 2E S (00 2 T 0 T A A T A - B
AR 95 A s A 55 s o 1B B 36 13 9% T A PE T
EIEAE =

ASEE BRI R B E A1
T K/ SOE A (E i -

A SR B AR R RS A B A > & O
M - HE R AMmE - HESGH
AL TR R B (B £R 2 BURFH A LI
JeE B 00 S ) R AR

BB S A T AF 920 % 43 4F
FHRYTE o O AR - TR ORI R TS
58 S 8 S A e S 8 L A
g -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
SR B R B (7))

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-FE=J =P —H LR

7. <=

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15, WEEE
Computer
Mobile app software Trademarks Total
TTB A R LN (12 At
HKS’000 HKS’000 HKS’ 000 HK$’ 000

BT BT BT BT

Reconciliation of carrying amount- FRTAHE — ME T4

year ended 31 March 2019 SR HIEEE
At 1 April 2018 RZFE—/\ENA—H - 2 87 89
Amortisation s = (2) - 2)
Impairment loss AL i = = (81) (81)
Exchange realignment i 52 7 8% = = (6) (6)
At 31 March 2019 REZZF-AE=ZRA=+—H - - - -
Reconciliation of carrying amount- JRTIA I - RE-F T4
year ended 31 March 2020 ZRAEF—HLEEE
At 1 April 2019 AZE-NENA—H - - - -
Additions NE 755 - - 755
Amortisation st (31) - - (31)
At 31 March 2020 REZZBE=RA=1—H 724 - - 724
At 31 March 2019 REZ-WEZRA=1—H
Cost A - 2 87 89
Accumulated amortisation and LTS T (R
impairment losses = 2) (87) (89)
At 31 March 2020 REZFZZE=A=+—H
Cost A 755 2 87 844
Accumulated amortisation and a8 S (A
impairment losses (31) (2) (87) (120)
724 - - 724
16. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 16.
2020 2019
SRR —FhEF
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
W T BT
Professional fishing vessels HESE il
Opening book amount $ %0 B e 421,780 251,125
Acquisition of subsidiary o g 2 ) - 95,755
Additions WNE 2,462 94,646
Exchange realignment i b, 58] & (18,493) (19,746)
Closing book amount JA AR B i 405,749 421,780
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) g
SR A R T (A

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F-TE=J= | —HILFE

e

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES  17.  ff HIHER & KAl $% £1 45
(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of (1) A T B IR DL 6 9 R

financial position

AR A IR DL R 51 7 BN =)
EHEERZ LSBT ¢

The consolidated statement of financial position shows
the following amounts relating to the leases in respect

of office premises:

At 31 March 2020 At1l April 2019
R_F R R=F U4

=H=+—H JMH—H
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T T oo

Right-of-use assets 15 I HE 5
Non-current FE B 762 =

Lease liabilities ME A

Non-current FE B (197) -
Current i Hh (560) -
(757) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

By W 5 e B e (480)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-FE=J =P —H LR

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES 17. fhfihE% e kMg Ak (42)

(Continued)
i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of (i) HAMBREMENHERZESH
financial position (Continued) (#48)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets A B B (kAR S 1 R T DA %
and the movements during the year are as follows: AR B FULNT
Office premises
ALY E S
HKS$’ 000
T
Cost B
As at 1 April 2019 AZE—JENH —H -
Additions WE 786
As at 31 March 2020 RE-FZFE=A=1—H 786
Accumulated depreciation Bt
As at 1 April 2019 R-F—FENH—H -
Charge for the year FENH 24
As at 31 March 2020 REFZFE=A=1+—H 24
Carrying amounts iR T £
As at 31 March 2020 RE-FZRE=ZA=+—H 762
As at 31 March 2019 REZF—NEF=A=1—H -

138 China Ocean Group Development Limited Annual Report 2019-2020



i

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES
(Continued)

(ii) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income
shows the following amounts relating to the leases in

respect of office premises:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \3

fo B S5 B A i (A60)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F-FFZA=—ALFE

17.  fEHIHER E R M L ()

(i) AR 2R R Y R

Br T AR RS R BN B
HEARZSHWT

For the year ended
31 March 2020

RE-T-TH
ZRA=t—HILEE
HK$’ 000
BT T

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets AR T8 S
- Properties leased for own use —fEEHZHEYZE 24
Property rental expenses in respect of short-term leases AR 2 W) SE AR 4 B S 3,979

The total cash outflow for new lease recognised as
right-of-use assets in the year ended 31 March 2020
was HK$29,000, excluding short-term leases.

(iii) The company’s leasing activities and how these are

accounted for

The company leases an office. Rental contracts are

typically made for periods of approximately 17 months.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets that
are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as

security for borrowing purposes.

NEE T FBE=A=+—HI
S ERAMAMEEZHHE
2 B4 AR 2 W 129,000 0T -
AAFE e AR -
(iii) AATZHEEE LKL EGGHER
AAFHE—HRHAE - HEEH
— AR A 178 A 2 FAMEET AL o

R AR AR #5001 S YE B 7 > fL
B REA A R S i o BR AR KR
AzHBEEEIMHERN > HE
th sl Al AT A 25 o P A
PR R R AR b
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ok B S5 B A i (480)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-FE=J =P —H LR

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES 17. fEFHER st R A (A7)
(Continued)

(i) A2 Wl A KO & Eh g BE
(#)

(iii) The company’s leasing activities and how these are

accounted for (Continued)

Lease liabilities ME A At 31 March 2020 At 1 April 2019
REFZFE R_F—JLE
=Z=H=1+—H WA—H

HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
T BT
Lease liabilities N H=Cis 757 -
Less: Current portion of W IR E) A RTEAER 23
non-current liabilities (560) -
197 =
Gross lease liabilities — L AR —
minimum lease payments: AR E ALK
Not later than 1 year RO 600 -
Later than 1 year but not DR VAEAEA DA 54F
later than 5 years 200 -
800 =
Future finance charges on leases  fH 2 RA T 3 1 (43) -
Present value of lease liabilities GENW=E iR 757 -
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N

fo B S5 B A i (A60)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F-TE=J= | —HILFE

18. OTHER ASSETS 18.  HAb¥E
2020 2019
o —F— 4
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’000
T HEH T
Net carrying amount W TH 4
At beginning of the reporting period i S SR 665 786
Amortisation 1 (121) (121)
Disposal A (544) -
At end of the reporting period A R R - 665
Current portion i B A - 121
Non-current portion IF Ty & 5y - 544
- 665
Other assets represent payments for the right to use the vehicle i S A 55 0 P R B EL B RE R A
licence plates and are amortised on a straight-line basis over a 2o JHDLE AR TR AT e o
lease period of 10 years.
19. GOODWILL 19.
2020 2019
=l SE U
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T BT T
At cost less accumulated 2 R AR IR I 1R
impairment losses
At beginning of the reporting period i & SE ] 116,971 52,777
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 36) Wi B 51 8 2 F) (M At 36) - 64,194
At end of the reporting period AR HASR 116,971 116,971
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ok B S5 B A i (480)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-FE=J =P —H LR

142

GOODWILL (Continued)

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated

to the Group’s cash-generating units (‘CGUs”) for impairment

test as follows:

19.

& (4)

758 S 5 DR WSO ) 7 R0 L AR SR
EHeEERN ((HeEEsi]) 2

BB -

2020 2019
Seald =«
Note HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Wit T BT
CGU Bl 4 e B Aor
Money lending business e - -
Supply chain management A R S 3 AR 5 S
services business - -
Ocean fishing business TR 26T (i) 116,971 116,971
Cost A 116,971 116,971
2019
—FNEF
Note HKS$’ 000
it T
CGU Bl 4 e B Aor
Money lending business e - -
Supply chain management A R S 2 AR 5 S
services business - -
Ocean fishing business ERES k= - -
Accumulated impairment losses B G AE i 18 - =
2020 2019
e e 22 —F-NAF
Note HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Mt W Tt BT T
CGU Bl 4 e e B Aor
Money lending business AR EHS - =
Supply chain management A 8 A R 5 2
services business - -
Ocean fishing business T TE AR B SE (i) 116,971 116,971
Net book value I Vi 5% L 116,971 116,971
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \3

GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment test for goodwill

Impairment assessment is carried out by determining the

value in use of the cash-generating unit. The value in use is

represented by the net present value of future forecast net cash

inflows of the cash generating unit which is determined on the

basis of the discounted cashflow model.

(i)

Ocean fishing business

For ocean fishing business, management calculates
value-in-use based on discounted cash flow
calculations. The discounted cash flow calculations
use cash flow projections developed based on financial
budgets approved by the management of the Group
covering a five-year period, with growth rate of revenue
of 0% to 5% (2019: 0% to 15%). Cash flows beyond the
five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated
zero annual growth rate. The discount rate used is
pre-tax, which equals to the weighted average costs of
capital of 13.64% (2019: 13.86%), is used to determine
the discount factor under the discounted cash flow.
A reasonably possible change in a key assumption
would not cause the recoverable amount to fall below
the carrying value of this business unit. The results
of test undertaken as at 31 March 2020 indicated no

impairment charge was necessary.

19.

fo B S5 B A i (A60)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE - Z - FE=H=+—HILFE

DA B

93 Al i 2 A0 7 (R B e AR B 2
(o PR AR (B o 0 0 (RS DA UG B B 4 R A 5K
Z FERE bR B A AL 2 R AR Al R
BlEW A Z BUABEH -

(i)  HEMHEGEE

SETERE RN S o PR
[T R s A = R = A
B o B BB 4 0 & R AR AR A
48 188 B A o 1 0 2 AR [
14 B 5 TR 06 B U )
g 1R R 0% £ 5% (2019 : 0%
F15%) o 8 H FAEWH AH £ 0
B AIDMEFE RS R R EITIRE o R
5 35 4 it A A B AR K DAl o G B R
B THER B ARG B S 5 R
JRESF- 3 & AR AR 13.64% (2019 -
13.86%) o ¥ — F ZRFM G HLAT
ResEE) » A e S mEE T
Bk 2 A B S5 B Y BRI (o
W T - FE=ZA=1+—HET
4 SR > AT A AT AT 3
[ES:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ok B S5 B A i (480)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE_FZ -ZHE=H=1T—HIEFE

20. INVENTORIES 20. TR

2020 2019

o —F— 4

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

BT W

Raw Materials JEA K - =
Work in Progress TE 5 - =
Finished goods B 278 530
278 530

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21, TR B B il WAk

2020 2019

= s

Note HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000

Bt b3 ST W

Trade receivables from third parties  H 58 = J7 1 BEW IR 3% 413,238 231,238
Less: loss allowance W A T (ii) (6,633) (564)
(i) 406,605 230,674

Other receivables Lt J7E WOk

Prepayments TA AT A 5,029 674
Advance payment to suppliers T 48 8 i A R IE (iii) 626,634 739,434
Deposits i 9,323 10,959
Other receivables A FEE R 29,624 37,480
Other tax recoverable JHCAth AT g [m] A H 4,261 5,123
674,871 793,670

1,081,476 1,024,344
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

@)

(ii)

Aging of trade receivables

Except for 360 days being granted to certain customers
under supply chain management services business
and ocean fishing business, the Group grants credit
term ranging from 30 days to 90 days to its customers
upon the delivery of products or when the services are
rendered and invoices are issued. The aging of trade
receivables (net of loss allowances) based on invoice

date is as follows:

fo B S5 B A i (A60)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F-TE=J= | —HILFE

21, REWSCHR Ak B L1t ME Wk (A7)
(i) REBORK AR

W T {3t I G A B R S SR B TE
YT 25 TR P 360 HINAE
SRS > A A A AT B8 Y AR At
JR 5 3 4% B AR 4G T H A F 30 H
FOHFEM - HEFEHMES
JREMC IR R (PR E 12 ) 2 HR S
WF

2020 2019
e e 22 R —JUE

HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000

BT T

Less than 90 days 90 H AR 218,603 92,761
91 - 180 days 91%180H 99,029 52,216
181 - 270 days 181%270H 24,034 44,616
271 - 365 days 2718365 H 43,277 4,050
Over 1 year —4DLE 21,662 37,031
406,605 230,674

Loss allowance for trade receivables

(i) MO Z WA 5

2020 2019

= i

| E HK$’ 000

T oo BT T

At beginning of reporting period i &g SR 564 =
Provision for loss allowance W AE A 6,069 564
At end of reporting period A R R 6,633 564

B AR MR R A R A H] 2019-2020 4E#R 145



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

By W 5 e B e (480)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-FE=J =P —H LR

7. <=

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 21, FEMCR Sk B At HE WOk (A7)

(ii) Loss allowance for trade receivables (Continued) (ii) JRE B S ok 2 AP BB 4 ()
Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance are 7% 52 [0 B AT R A 0 455 M T
debtors with carrying amounts of approximately HK #) /5 1 188,002,000 7T (—F—JU
$188,002,000 (2019: approximately HK$164,725,000), i )N 164,725,000 00) 19 BEYL
which were past due at the end of the reporting period R > R R © A8 ) (E 3 8
but no provision for loss allowances has been made as N R A > DT 2 VBRI
there has not been a significant change in credit quality REsd > HHE 85 % H ] 2 8
and the directors believe that the amounts are fully ielm] o
recoverable.

(iii)  Advance payment to suppliers (i) 1 43k JE v Bk JE
The amounts represented payments made in advance % K T $i5 0l B T ) 46 R R A 2

I o

to suppliers for purchase of goods.
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22.

LOANS RECEIVABLES

N

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fo B S5 B A i (A60)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F-TE=J= | —HILFE

22,  JEWRE

2020 2019
o —F— 4
HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
T W
Loans to customers PR 278 3,746
Accrued interest receivables JE W EF A 19 346
297 4,092
Other loan HAth &K 60,000 60,000
Accrued interest receivables JE G R 1 B 5,940 =
65,940 60,000
Loan to staff B ILER 6,311 6,395
Accrued interest receivables JE Wi e A B 561 426
6,872 6,821

Impairment allowance on G VA B AR
individual assessment (297) -
72,812 70,913

Analysed as: GIHT A

Non-current assets IE B - -
Current assets B 72,812 70,913
72,812 70,913

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding

loans receivable to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are

reviewed regularly by management.

The Group’s loans receivable from customers which arise from

money lending business of providing personal loans in Hong

Kong, are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

A I 5 SRR A A ) R AT A B W K
B SR B8 B e 2 A A o A B E A

7 B2 ) 7 7 Vi AR AL RL N K ) AR 2 S i
JEE PR B B P B DA T -

B M R A R A R 2019-2020 4E# 147
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o A e fit k()

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-FE=J =P —H LR

22.

148

LOANS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The credit quality analysis of the loans receivable is as follows:

W Bk (A )
BB B BT T

2020 2019
el e
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T o BT

Neither past due nor impaired S 5 HH R A
- Unsecured — AT 71,732 66,821
Less than 1 month past due 8 AN 2 — 1 H - =
1 to 3 months past due i — 2= = A - =
Over 3 months past due s 40 e o = {1 1,377 4,092
73,109 70,913
Impaired WE (297) -
72,812 70,913

Note: Represents the gross amount of individually impaired loans
receivable for which impairment loss has been provided

partially or in full as at year end date.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent

history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of individual customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, the Directors are
of the opinion that no provision for impairment on these
individual loans is necessary as these loans receivable were
substantially/fully settled subsequent to the reporting period
or there has not been a significant change in credit quality that

these balances are still considered fully recoverable.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group did not hold any collateral in

respect of the loans receivable.

China Ocean Group Development Limited Annual Report 2019-2020
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55 B R B RE (%)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F-TE=J= | —HILFE

23. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 23.  SATHIR RBlE
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprises: (a) RERBEEHED L
2020 2019
Se el e
HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
BT T
Cash at bank and in hand SRAT M T & 2,924 14,326
Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on SRAT BL G 1% B B ARAT A7 3R 3R LA
daily bank deposit rates. 7 SRR, -
(b) Cash flow information - Reconciliation of financing (b) Bl B, — R R R R
liabilities
Bank Bank Other Loan Loan
borrowing  borrowing borrowings from from  Margin Convertible Corporate Lease
-secured -unsecured - secured Shareholder Corporations  facility bonds  bonds liabilities ~ Total
RifiE AR Hlk

Rir - EEW IR RORRE ARRK ARBE fr Avdr  HEAR 46
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000 ~ HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
EhTn BRTx BT BRTx BRTx TR W BRTx BT #Tx

Financing lisbilites 1 =% —/\%

asat MA—Hf

1 April 2018 HEAR 20,000 - - - S 399 5038 - AU
Proceeds from iz

other borrowings FriEaR 11,628 - 85000 - - - RN (/] - 107205
Repayment from R bt

other borrowings (2,675) = (15,000) = - (39%9) = = - (21,634
Interest paid ERFIE (188) = (4,881) = = (200) = (99) - (5368)
Other changes: HEE
Interest expenses FER 188 - 4481 - - 200 - 145 - 54l
Conversion of B

convertible &%

bonds = - - - - - (5038 - - (50239)
Financing liabiliies =% L&

asat =A=1+-H

31 March 2019 AR 28,953 - 70,000 - - - - 10623 - 109,576

B AR MR R A PR A F] 2019-2020 4E# 149



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
SR B R B (7))

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-FE=J =P —H LR

7. <=

23.  BANK BALANCES AND CASH (Continued) 23.  SReTHBR KBS (A7)
(b) Cash flow information - Reconciliation of financing (b) BEREMN — & AEER (F)
liabilities (Continued)
Bank Bank Other Loan Loan
borrowing - borrowing - borrowings - from from  Margin Convertible Corporate Lease
secured unsecured  secured Shareholder Corporations facility ~ bonds  bonds liabilities Total
TS - Sl - Tk

W B AN BRER ANER TEBE % Ak HEAK Hat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS000  HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000
WETE BRTr EMTr BT BWTx wETx BWTo BETx BWTr BETx

Financial liabilities REF—
asat 1 April 2019 WA—HE

HEAR 28953 - 70000 - - = - 10623 - 109576

Proceeds from Hibfsstz

other borrowings et 10,000 M 4040 37,700 7911 - - - - 116333
Repayment from TR

other borrowings (1,000) - (4,000) - (23,056) - - - - (28,056)
Tnterest paid BERFHE (333) - (16145)  (26) = = = (864) - (29)
Capital element of HEMnERST

lease rentals period - - - - = = = = (29) (29)
Other changes: HigE -
Interest expenses HERX 333 N (AU I X)) - - A K - B4n
Exchange realignment [ JL#1% (1,286) = = = = = = = - (1,088)

Tncrease in lease liabiities 4 14 i #7715
from entering into new T3 MAY
leases during the year ~ HEA(E = = = = = - - - 786 786

Financing liabiliies asat =%~ %
31 March 2020 ZA=T-HZ
LA 36,667 3 106400 37,700 4855 = R IRE)) 757 197,833
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24.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

24.

N

fo B S5 B A i (A60)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F-TE=J= | —HILFE

JE A M sk B Lt MEE 5k K

2020 2019
Sesrld = &
Note HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Bt aF W T W
Trade payables JEEAT R K (i) 22,674 56,216
Accruals JERT 2 19,231 11,637
Contract liabilities HHAE (ii) - 37,220
Other tax payables FoAth B A B 2,965 2,965
Due to directors A} =R 208 1,101 1,818
Due to shareholder JREASH R R 3 TE 450 =
Other payables HoAth AR 113,006 105,232
159,427 215,088

i) Aging of trade payables (i) JRE Ak e 5k =22 M i

At the end of the reporting period, the aging analysis of

the trade payables based on invoice date is as follows:

TR SR o R BRI H I A

MRk 2 IR AT R

2019
—F—HF
HKS$’ 000
BT T
Less than 90 days 90 H LA~ - 48,951
91 - 180 days 912180 H 5,669 4,859
181 - 270 days 1812270 H 17,005 681
271 - 365 days 2712365 H - 1,725
22,674 56,216
(ii)  Contract liabilities (i) HHAM

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 March
2020 that was included in the contract liability
balance at the beginning of the year amounted to
HK$37,220,000 (2019: Nil). There are no contract
liabilities as at year ended 31 March 2020.

BE_ZRE = =+ —HILF
o RMEVIEIA G ABESRZE
ERB U 25 A ¥ 137,220,000 0T ( &
— U ) c BE R TS
H=1—HIEF R G A &

B M R A BRA E] 2019-2020 42 151
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
SR A R BT (A

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-FE=J =P —H LR

25. BORROWINGS 25, fi 8
2020 2019
e I 22 —F A
Note HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
i3 BT T
Loan from financial institution 4 il iR A B K (i)
Bank borrowing - secured SRATER — A K 36,667 28,953
Bank borrowing - unsecured SRATHE B — IS 322 -
Other borrowing - secured HALfEE — A K 106,400 70,000
Loan from a shareholder JBE B £ 3K (ii)
Other borrowing — unsecured FoAth £ B — ST 37,700 =
Loan from corporations 2y m) Bk (iii)
Other borrowing — unsecured HoAtb A& — ML 4,855 -
185,944 98,953
The borrowings are repayable as follows: R R R R T
2020 2019
R R ZE—JUE
HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
b T T T
On demand or within 1 year ¥ ER a1 4R A 127,133 87,325
After 1 and within 2 years 1R K24 N 48,811 -
After 2 and within 3 years 25E1E N3N 10,000 11,628
185,944 98,953

Portion of loan that are due for repayment — 4% 2| {i B 22 (H & & 1%

after one year but contain a repayment R R K B K

on demand clause (shown under current ¥4 (F A B & &)

liabilities) - -
Amount due for settlement within 12 TR A R B M E R

months (shown under current liabilities) — #XE (3 A Ji# & fF) 127,133 87,325
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25.

26.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \3

fo B S5 B A i (A60)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F-TE=J= | —HILFE

BORROWINGS (Continued) 25. R84

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are 7 A )i B 0 MR T DA U R N IR R

denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. {8 -

(i) The effective interest rate on the loan from financial (i) BELZ-LF=H =1+—HILF
institution during the year ended 31 March 2020 was BE o 4 RS BRI B R AR R R A
approximately ranging from 6% to 23.57% per annum F#16% % 23.57% (—F—JLF - &
(2019: approximately ranging from 6.48% to 26.89% F-#16.48% %26.89%) °
per annum).

(ii) The Group’s loan from financial institution of (ii) A% 45 Y A oA ORE B K 2 s I
HK$143,067,000 were secured by (i) personal guarantee 143,067,0007C > LL(1) 2 B AEE#E
by directors of the Group and related persons and (ii) =Y S ) NS RO PNE )
pledged properties owned by a director of the Group — A B R e 2 4 B N L
and related parties and a property owned by the A 1) B HE A Y S B A 4 1] 8 A R T
Group with an carrying amount of HK$19,604,000 and {25 45 119,604,000 7T I 2 5 7 [H]
pledged shares of two subsidiaries. W JB 2 ) ) S A KA 4 40 2E A

A Ay o

(iii)  Loan from shareholder was unsecured. The effective (iii) MR ER G LA - HE T %
interest rate on the loan from shareholder during the FZH=ZT—HIEFE » BOEEK
year ended 31 March 2020 was approximately 6.95% E‘JE@@*U}: TIr6.95% (—ZF—
per annum (2019: Nil). JUAE &)

(iv)  Loan from corporations were interest-free and (iv)  ATEEEE R AR -
unsecured.

DEFERRED INCOME 26.  EIRBA

2020 2019
S e
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000

PRC government subsidy income v [5 RF A B e A T oo T

Opening book amount HA%0) B i 48,174 6,035

Additions NE 10,667 16,744

Acquisition in subsidiary WA B 8 2 ] - 27,381

Transfer to statement of YN e

comprehensive income (887) (928)

Exchange realignment [ifE 5, 38 3% (2,141) (1,058)

Closing book amount J AR B i A 55,813 48,174

During the year ended 2020 and 2019, the Group received
government subsidy from various PRC government authorities

in relation to support ocean fishing business.

AEEN F _TER T NF LR
AN [5] F 20 SR R ) 4 B LA S v 2 A
;o

B AR MR R A R A H] 2019-2020 4E#R 153
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
SR B R B R (4)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F - FFZAST—ALFE

27/

154

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 30 November 2017, the Group issued zero coupon
convertible bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$57,000,000 due in 2018 with conversion price of HK$0.24
per share (the “CB I”). The Company issued CB I as part of
the consideration for acquisition of Shenzhen Qisen (Note
31). The effective interest rate of the liability component
was 13.86% per annum. The maturity date was on the first
anniversary of the date of issue of the CB I. During the year
ended 31 March 2018, the CB I with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$57,000,000 were remained outstanding. During
the year ended 31 March 2019, the CB I with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$57,000,000 were fully converted into
shares.

China Ocean Group Development Limited Annual Report 2019-2020

27.

<=

]

WoE—bE+—HA=1+H  REHEE
TS B I e W 0.24 T B8 17 AN 4 AR Sy
57,000,000 JC 2 it =& — N4 2| ] 2 2L
B BAE S (Tl s — 1) - AR
A EEAT AT IR AR SR — VR B USRI RO 2
fRAE (Ff5E31) o BfEER 2 B BRAE AR 2
13.86% ° £ ] H & n] i f5 5 — 4847 H 1
ZHE—HEEH  BEFE—/EZH=
+—H I A4 84 5 557,000,000
TG AR IR I — T R R o B R —
NWNE=ZA=+—HILFEE > ASHHEHE
57,000,000 7T 22 1] 48 I 2 — A% o 2 e
By ey o
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27/

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

The various components of the Group’s convertible bonds

recognised on initial recognition are as follows:

Proceeds of issue, at face value

Equity component

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \3 4
852 5 S W B (A0 ~

Year ended 31 March 2020

WEF FE=A = IR

27. WWES ()

7S B e T 4R T 5 7 ) 2 T R )
FIEABER T IT

BATITR R > HEHE{E
HE £ 78

CBI
AR S —
HK$ 000
T

139,036
(88,798)

Liability component at date of issue

BT H 2 AR

50,238

The movements of the liability component of the Group’s

convertible bonds are as follows:

T

A SR B 2 AR R I 2 RARER > 2 S B A

CBI

AR 5 —

HK$’ 000

T oo

At 1 April 2018 R N\HE=ZHA=1+—H 50,238
Classified as current liabilities DR B A (50,238)
Non-current liabilities IE B B =
At 1 April 2018 W oE—/\FMH—H 50,238
Conversion of convertible bonds g ] 8 A (50,238)

At 31 March 2019 and 2020

Classified as current liabilities

REZ-AERZFZFF=A=1—H
BB AR

Non-current liabilities

T E) A A

B AR MR R A R A H] 2019-2020 4R 155
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By W 5 e B e (480)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-FE=J =P —H LR

7. <=

28. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLES 28.  EATSANE
Lianyungang Anni
HMERZE
HKS$’ 000
WO
(Note a)
(Mtita)
At 1 April 2018 AT —/\FENA—H =
Arising from acquisition of subsidiary at fair value [ WS A 7 EA > #ATEFHE 18,468
Reclassified to convertible bonds and BT 2 AT R R
convertible bonds reserve A Y8 1 £ b
- liabilities portion — BRI -
- equity portion — REZ By _
Gain on change in fair value AR XUl (2,729)
At 31 March 2019 BB -NWE=ZA=1+—H 15,739
Reclassified to convertible bonds and convertible B8 438 %5 n] # JI%f& A M ] 42 /1
bonds reserve &Gt A
- liabilities portion — A -
- equity portion — RERS HB A -
Gain on change in fair value O TAE B B UL A (4,539)
At 31 March 2020 W_F_FRE=ZH=1—H 11,200
Analysed for reporting purposes as: RS H 0T
2020 2019
e e
HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
T T oo
Current liabilities mE) AR - 15,739
Non-current liabilities IF B E 11,200 -
Total F b 11,200 15,739
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=z~

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLES
(Continued)

Notes:

The initial considerations are HK$68,930,000 in cash upon completion
and principal amount of HK$16,209,440 of convertible bonds in
accordance with the sale and purchase agreement for the acquisition of
Lianyungang Annie Ocean Fishing Co., Ltd..

The convertible bond (“CB II”) with principal amount of
HK$16,209,440 was issued to the Vendors at completion date of
acquisition and were pledged by the Vendors to the Group as a security
for the performance of the Profit Guarantee. The consideration is
revalued to a fair value of approximately HK$11,200,000 at 31 March
2020 (2019: HK$15,739,000) and a fair value gain of HK$4,539,000 was
recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019:
HK$2,729,000), of which the CB II will be payable upon fulfilment of
the agreed Guaranteed Profits in the Relevant Period, details of the
acquisition is set out in Note 36.

The fair value of the contingent consideration payables as at 31 March
2020 and 2019 were measured using a discounted rate of 20.3% and
9.65% per annum, respectively, under black scholes model.

The fair value of the contingent consideration payables were
determined by the Directors with reference to the valuation at 31
March 2020 carried out by Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited.

Due to the effect of COVID-19, the Relevant Period has been
postponed, as such the amount of contingent consideration payables
has been reclassified from current liabilities to non-current liabilities.

28.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \3

fo B S5 B A i (A60)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F-FFZA=—ALFE

WEAF s SRR (A7)

Wit -

RPF WA E S 2 R I AR AR 2 B E
ok o A 52 IR 26 A0 A 2 B4 5 15 68,930,000
TC R AR 4 B B s 16,209,440 TC 2 TR 25 o

I & HE B T 516,209,440 70 2 A] A 5 ([ 0]
WREES ) NS B BT TE S > B
75 516 AT e B A 5 R T A 4 AR O R AT s R
PRI - R FRE=ZH=1—H > ft
158 A 5y N E A0 HE 511,200,000 7T (—F— L
4 K 15,739,00000) MR E —FE ERAE - H
=+ —H I 4E R R T DAERR 2 A T (E
B i 25 5 HE 54,539,000 00 (F — JLAE B
2,729,00070) - A5 REAE 25 i A A T 1) 2 R
E PR R T R AR S A B e
1 H A B 5E36 ©

W R R FE—JUF=H =+ — H BN
SR ARAE 2 2~ AR 5 10 A e AR T A 243 i e
FA G 3R 3R BE4E20.3% 129.65% T & ©

JEAT SR AR 2 8 (BT PR o 2 2 TR (E
Al A IRA IR —F mFAE=H =+ BT
ZAGERE -

52 EL I R 1 R AR T A B
FEAT BAARE 2 S HC h B BN 08 A
T B A -

B AR MR R A R A F] 2019-2020 4 157




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
SR B R B (7))

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-FE=J =P —H LR

7. <=

29. CORPORATE BONDS 29.  Aulfiz
The carrying amount of corporate bonds recognised at the end PR 2 30 AR il 2 % ) i 2 M (55
of the reporting period was calculated as follows: T
Unsecured
corporate bonds
SR A B 27
HK$’ 000
T
At 1 April 2018 W oF—/\FMH—H =
Principal value of the corporate bonds on B2 HERR R A Rl B SR 2 A
initial recognition 11,500
Direct transaction costs HHA 7 AR (923)
10,577
Interest paid EATFLE (99)
Effective interest expenses (Note 7) BFE B S (et 7) 145
At 31 March 2019 RE-ZNE=ZA=+—H 10,623
Interest paid EAHFLE (864)
Effective interest expenses (Note 7) BREAEBAZ (Hfat7) 1,373
At 31 March 2020 BoFFE=A=+—H 11,132
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \}

e

fo B S5 B A i (A60)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F-TE=J= | —HILFE

29. CORPORATE BONDS (Continued) WlfEdR ()
2020 2019
ZERFAE ZE U
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T T
Current liabilities mE A 11,132 7,589
Non-current liabilities Bl IE=E - 3,034
11,132 10,623

The Group issued two unsecured corporate bonds with
aggregate principal amount of HK$11,500,000, carrying
interest at the rate of 7% and 8% per annum payable quarterly
for a term of 2 years from the date of issue of the bonds. The
effective interest rate is 12.68% (2019: 12.33%) per annum.

On initial recognition and subsequent measurements, the
Directors consider that the principal amount of corporate

bonds approximate to its fair value.

For both the principal term of the 8% bonds and 7% bonds,
the Group has the right to redeem the outstanding principal
amount at agreed time before the optional redemption
date, with at least 10 clear business days written notice (the
“Redemption Right”), but for the bondholder of the principal
term of 8% bonds, they has no right to require the Company

to redeem the corporate bonds.

AR [ BE AT A A 4 AR 5 5 17 11,500,000
J6 Z MEAEH A AR S > HAR 7% K 8% Z 4F
R FH BB AT > FEH B E ST H
HIREEI W AR o HBRFEMER12.68% (—F
—JU4E 1 12.33%) ©

TR HED Sy AR Wy > SRR S
B 2 A R AP M -

7% 45 [ A7 RE I8 R M I ] B B AT 2 R R
] - 2 2 b R R 7 2E H 2 3 T
] 1 A 35 8 2 8% B8 75 I 70 8 75 2 AR 4 B
(T IIHE ) - (H 8% %% £ ZM K 2 B Fr
A N EREZLR AR\ 7] [ R w5

B AR MR R A R A H] 2019-2020 4E# 159
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
SR B R B (7))

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-FE=J =P —H LR

30.

160

<=

SHARE CAPITAL 30. BA
Note No. of shares HK$’ 000
Viria il ! ion T
Authorised: HIE
At 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2020, REF-NE=ZA=+—HEK
ordinary share of HK$0.01 each CROREEAETH
5 I T £ W 0.0 7 1Y 3 4 Mt 20,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: CHTRAR :
At 1 April 2018, ordinary shares REZFE—/ENA—H - Bl
of HK$0.01 each T ¥ W 0.01 7 19 8 8 3,317,622,179 33,177
Shares issued upon placing A2 — NEL R T 3T R A (1)
in July 2018 310,000,000 3,100
Shares issued upon placing it R — )N\ A T T AT Ay (ii)
in August 2018 360,000,000 3,600
Shares issued upon conversion of B )\E+— H (iii)
convertible bonds in December 2018 A 8 AT A 238,338,000 2,383
At 31 March 2019 and 2020, ordinary REZZ—RER
shares of HK$0.01 each “EOREZAZTR
M T £ W 0.0 7 1y 3% 48 Mt 4,225,960,179 42,260
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \3

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Note:

@

(i)

(iii)

In July 2018, a total of 310,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each were issued by way of placing to three independent
investors at a price of HK$0.45 per share. The market value
per share at the completion date of the Placing was HK$0.52.
The Company raised approximately HK$139,500,000 before

expenses, for general working capital of the Group.

In August 2018, a total of 360,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each were issued by way of placing to a independent
investor at a price of HK$0.45 per share. The market value
per share at the completion date of the Placing was HK$0.5.
The Company raised approximately HK$162,000,000 before

expenses, for general working capital of the Group.

On 30 November 2017, the Company issued zero coupon
convertible bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$57,000,000 (the “Convertible Bonds”, Note 27). The

conversion price is HK$0.24 per conversion share.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Subscribers
exercised the conversion rights of the Convertible Bonds to
convert into approximately 238,338,000 ordinary shares of
the Company of HK$0.01 each and the conversion shares
were allotted and issued to the Subscribers pursuant to the
subscription agreement. These shares rank pari passu in all

respects with the existing shares.

All shares issued during the year rank pari passu with the

existing shares in all respects.
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BE-F-FFZA=—ALFE

JBRA (4

(ii)

(iii)

R FE - NELH » £3£310,000,000
5 T 10001 T 2 5 3 e L 8 A 4 4 i
W 0.45 B2 EMG BE T =4 Bk
WO BEAT o i B 58 A H WA T
EHAWEN0.52TC « AN Al BHRL MR
139,500,000 7C (KFHBH L) » ATEAGEIE
s

=T —/NFENH > 53£360,000,000 %
g e v 001 o0 2 8 i O A 4 1
0. 45 C 2 AR L T — & ML
BN AT o FA B 5 AR H A
HH AW 0.57C - AN E EEL W
162,000,0007C (RFHFSL) » HVEA G
L REEE A

W_F—tFE+—H=1TH > A2 ¥
BEAT A B Sy W 957,000,000 T 2 &
SRR S (TR 25 | - B GE
27) o WCIGLAE iy A JI A0 I 03 VS W 0.24

JG ©

WE_F-NE=ZA=+—HILEE >
R NAT A 0 AR S5 2 AR DL
/4 %1238,338,000 B4 s 1 0.01 0 2
W G o R R0 £ AR R R B R P
BBAT TR o 5255 Ry B A R0y
TEA 7 TH 54 ] 55 0 o

A B AT 19 A T BB TR (346 4% 7 T
5 47 [ 2 S -

B A M R A R A E] 2019-2020 42t 161




7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

&

o B A Wk (%)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE R _RFE=H=1T—HILFE

31.

162

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
on 18 October 2011. The purpose of the share option scheme
is to enable the directors of the Company, at their discretion,
to recognise and motivate the contribution of the employees
of the Group and to provide incentives and help the Group
in retaining its existing employees and recruiting additional
employees and to provide them with a direct economic interest

in attaining the long-term business objectives of the Group.

Eligible participants include any employees, consultants,
suppliers or customers of the Company and its subsidiaries,
including any independent non-executive directors of the
Company. The Scheme became effective on 18 October 2011
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in

force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme, upon their
exercise may not be in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time. The maximum number
of shares issuable to each eligible participant in the Scheme
within any 12-month period up to the date of grant, is limited
to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at that date of
grant. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit
is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting. As at
31 March 2020, 422,596,018 shares (2019: 422,596,018 shares)
of the Company, representing 10% (2019: 10%) of its issued

capital, are available for issue under the Scheme.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted in
writing within 7 days from the date of the offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 per option in total by
the grantee. Any share option may be exercised in accordance
with the terms of the Scheme at any time during a period to
be notified by the board of directors to an eligible participant
but may not be exercised after the expiry of 10 years from
the date of grant of the share option but subject to the early

termination of the Scheme.
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31.

32.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
board of directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer of the
option, which must be a business day, (ii) the average of the
closing prices of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer of the option, (iii) the
average of the closing prices of the Company’s shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the ten
business days immediately preceding the date of offer of the
option, and (iv) the nominal value of the Company’s shares on
the date of offer.

During the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, no share
options had been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under
the Scheme. There were no share options outstanding as at 31
March 2020 and 2019.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”).
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately in provident
fund managed by independent trustee. Under the MPF
Scheme, the Group and each of the employees make monthly
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings
as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund Legislation.
Both the employer’s and the employees’ monthly contributions
are subject to a cap of HK$1,500.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC also participate in defined
contribution retirement schemes covering its PRC employees.
The schemes are administered by the relevant government
authorities which undertake to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired employees of the

Group’s PRC subsidiaries.

During the year, the amount of employer’s contributions
made by the Group to the defined contribution plans was
approximately HK$278,000 (2019: HK$277,000).
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Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-FE=J =P —H LR
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33. DEFERRED TAXATION 33, EEBHE
Deferred tax liability 08 Sk 3t V£ 5
The following is the deferred tax liability recognised by the 7% 5 [ A A A T TR AR SE B IR A (DA K
Group and movements thereon during the year: HAEB R
Financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss
7308 18 45 Hi A P
PR 2 <5 i e
HKS$’ 000
BT T
At 1 April 2018 h_FE—/NFENH—H (4,406)
Credit to profit or loss R ETA 4,406

At 31 March 2019 and 2020

BB -ER -FEBE=ZH=+—H -

Unrecognised deferred tax assets arising from

VAT 2% T A 2 A il 2 308 72 B I

2020 2019

B e

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

W T BT

Deductible temporary differences AT T IR 2 2,888 3,022
Tax losses BiIE & 15 149,794 240,812
At end of the reporting period W e IR 152,682 243,834

At 31 March 2020, tax losses of HK$135,926,000 (2019:
HK$130,502,438) arising in Hong Kong have no expiry date
under current tax legislation. The tax losses of HK$13,869,000
(2019: HK$110,309,000) arising in the PRC can be used to set
off against future taxable profits of the respective subsidiaries
for a maximum of 5 years. The Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of these tax losses and deductible
temporary differences because it is uncertain that future
taxable profits will be available against which the Group can

utilise the benefits therefrom.
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33.

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)
Unrecognised deferred tax assets arising from (Continued)

The unrecognised tax losses arising in the PRC at the end of
the reporting period which can be offset against future taxable
profits of the respective subsidiaries for a maximum of 5 years

will expire as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \3
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BE-F-TE=J= | —HILFE

WEHEBEIH (7 )
VAT 2% SR A 2 R e G B A B SRR 8 (A7)

7S B S S SR A B A 2 R RSB
T i 48 A 1Y LA 415 5 A B I8 2 ) B 2 R
AR 2 MERRBL R B - A LT SR JE I -

2020 2019
R R ZE—JUE
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
b3 8 STH T

Year of expiry ik 1 4 73
2019 TR - 39,252
2020 TR A 413 5,303
2021 TR 31 3,171
2022 —E 12,238 62,579
2023 TR 34 4
2024 TR A 1,153 =
13,869 110,309

At 31 March 2020 and 2019, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings of the Group’s subsidiaries established
in the PRC. In the opinion of the directors, it is probable that
any undistributed profits are expected to be retained in the
PRC subsidiaries and not to be remitted out of the PRC in the
foreseeable future. The estimated withholding tax effects on
the distribution of retained profits of these PRC subsidiaries
were Nil (2019: Nil). In addition, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on
the unremitted earnings of the Group’s associates established
in the PRC as the deferred tax impact on these unremitted

earnings was insignificant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ok B S5 B A i (480)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-FE=J =P —H LR

7. <=

34. COMMITMENTS 34.  RHE
(a) Commitments under operating leases - the Group as (a) REBHLA R — ARG WE R R AL
lessee
The Group leases certain premises under operating B S @*ﬁﬁ%%@%*ﬂf’?%ﬁ%*ﬁ)ﬂ =T
lease commitments. Leases for premises are negotiated ZE %%fﬂ%’ﬂﬁ&dl;! fE (‘gigﬂ
for terms of 1 year (2019: 1 to 2 year). A 1R 24F) IAITELTRER o
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total ﬁéi&%,ﬁ;ﬁ}fi AR *E%Imﬁ%
future minimum lease payments under non- cancellable R giil %EE LT IR ] 31 107 69 SR A die
operating leases falling due as follows: AL AR T
2020 2019
e e 2.2 —FNE
HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
T BT
Within one year R4 R 976 1,870
In the second to fifth years B AR R AR N
inclusive (B E W) - 223
976 2,093
(b) Commitments under operating leases — the Group as (b) BB MERYE — AR HEA
lessor
The property held for rental purpose have committed FrAFAH B & i ) 3 2 R vk R K 5
leases for the next 5 months. A MEE -
Minimum lease payments receivables on leases are as A B B 0 R ke e MR AR 85 A Ak
follows: T @
2020 2019
S e
HKS$’000 HK$’ 000
T T
Within one year R—4EN 165 -
In the second year AR AR - =
165 =
(c) Capital Commitments (c) BEAR R
2020 2019
ZFCRE ZEF N
HKS$’000 HKS$’ 000
W T BT
- Capital expenditure contracted — BRI - R R
for but not provided in the R RT AR
consolidated financial statements SRa B IR T
in respect of the acquisition of R B A BH 52
property, plant and equipment 207,724 23,727
- Capital contribution to investment —NHEARREZ LE
in subsidiaries 196,566 87,945
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

35.
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Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F-TE=J= | —HILFE

oA Wik )5 22 5%

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed (a) R I 5% 56 G B 765 i 2 JE At 98 40
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, B2y BRSO N AR
during the year, the Group had the following B B B 77 TS ARG
transactions with related parties:
2020 2019
FCFE “F—E
Related party relationship Nature of transaction Note HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
A 1k 75 ) £ 2o R ioga W T T
Key management personnel Salaries, allowances
(other than directors) and benefits in kind
FEEMA G (FEHERIN) and contribution to
defined contribution
schemes
Fra o A RCEY A 5
A5 kT 2
K 810 852
A shareholder Interest expenses
— R 2 BA 32 2,622 S
License to use a property granted by a related (b) H—FXAHEAGFRZEERDES

company

The Company was licensed a right to use an office
property at an zero consideration under a license
agreement by a related company of which an executive
director, Mr. Liu Rongsheng has significant influence.
Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, the Company
will bear the costs incurred for using the property and
both parties can terminate the license by immediate
notice. The license agreement was terminated during
the year ended 31 March 2020.

5 T R

R4 B A BR A0 m (AT 2 S B 4
AR AR R IiFT 2
Fer et ok > A5 A AT e P RE A
M —TEHEA E Y2 - RIEL W
AR AR AL AR IS 2 W) 3
JTEEAE 2 BT > T T Ay Rl LR
P 0 4 LR R RE o AR RTRET SR
REE R RIE S = —H I
EREEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
SR B R B R (4)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F - FFZAST—ALFE

36.

168

BUSINESS COMBINATION

For the year ended 31 March 2019 - Acquisition of
Lianyungang Anni Ocean Fishing Co., Ltd

On 7 February 2018, Jin Yu Tang (Shenzhen) Fishery
Co., Ltd(VEIIT#E £ & EFBR AR )(“Jin Yu Tang”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with two vendors (the “Vendors”),
both are third parties independent to the Company and
its connected persons, in relation to acquisition of 65%
equity interest in Lianyungang Anni Ocean Fishing Co., Ltd
(“Lianyungang Anni”), a company incorporated in the PRC,
for a cash consideration of RMB59.28 million (equivalent
to HK$68.93 million) payable to the Vendors and by issue
of the zero coupon convertible bonds, at a conversion price
of HK$0.52 per share with a total of 31,172,000 conversion
shares, in the principal amount of HK$16,209,000 by the
Company. Please refer to the Company’s circular dated 8 June
2018 for details.
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36.

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 - Acquisition of
Lianyungang Anni Ocean Fishing Co., Ltd (Continued)

A summary of fair values of the identifiable assets and

liabilities acquired at the respective date of the above

acquisition were as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \3
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BE-F-FFZA=—ALFE

36. EHOUE ()

BEZ-NE=ZA=ZT—HIEEE - K
SRR RIEREM A RA R ()

J A s B s e T
REEZ A EME T

Fair value at

the date of

acquisition

TP W B H

ZBFE

HKS$’ 000

BT T

Construction in progress T TR 95,755

Other receivable A i K 2,976

Cash and cash equivalents Bl BB %18 4

Other payables and accruals oAt A R % R T (36,232)

Deferred income ALY A (27,381)

Net identifiable assets acquired i B vl P U 35,122

Goodwill arising on acquisition: ST B T A T T

Cash consideration HEE 68,555

Fair value of convertible bonds issued SR Z R Y e DA 18,468

Plus: non-controlling interests I IR RORE £ 12,293

Less: fair values of identifiable net assets acquired W S ET ek g E AT (35,122)

Goodwill Gk 64,194
An analysis of cash and cash equivalents A BRI S IH 2 B R B B

in respect of the acquisition is as follows: SR

Consideration paid in cash EATH & RAE (68,555)

Less: Payable to vendor W A U KA 37,535

Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired B S B RS EY 4

Net cash outflow from acquisition of a subsidiary AT FES o6 S 2 ] AR 2 B A i o (31,016)

B AR MR R A R A F] 2019-2020 4E# 169
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
SR B R B R (4)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F - FFZAST—ALFE

36.

170

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 - Acquisition of
Lianyungang Anni Ocean Fishing Co., Ltd (Continued)

Included in the acquisition of Lianyungang Anni Ocean
Fishing Co., Ltd (“Lianyungang Anni”), there was a Profit
Guarantee pursuant to which the vendor guaranteed to the
Group that the profit of Lianyungang Anni for the first
financial year after Completion once the fishing vessels have
been put into operation (“Relevant Periods”) shall not be less
than RMB20 million. If the profit is less than the Guaranteed
Profits for the Relevant Period, the Vendors shall compensate
the Group for the difference between RMB20 million and the

actual profit.

If there is a net loss in the Relevant Period, the Group is
entitled to first request the Vendors to compensate by way of
cash, with the compensation amount being the loss incurred
by Lianyungang Anni and RMB20 million, and no conversion

of the Convertible Bonds would take place.

The Directors are of the view that Lianyungang Anni should
be able to generate profit for the first financial year after
Completion once the fishing vessels have been put into

operation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The Group has classified its financial assets in the following

categories:

Assets
At 31 March 2020

K&
REZZRE=A=+—H

37.

fo B S5 B A i (A60)

Year ended 31 March 2020
WE-F-FE=H = HILFE

RN o B ik TR
A S T L1 L < Al 7 0820 DA B

Financial Financial Financial

assets at assets at assets at
amortised cost FVPL FVOCI
i BN
£V e
A PTG
ZEMEE
HKS$’ 000
W T

1 B A
il AT

BB R

S RE E
HKS$’ 000
L T

ZEMERE
HK$’ 000
T

Trade and other receivables JRE SR 2 T H A ik 1,081,476 - -
Loans receivables e B 72,812 - -
Bank balances and cash SATHER LB S 2,924 - -
1,157,212 - -

Financial Financial Financial

assets at assets at assets at

amortised cost FVPL FVOCI

B AL

HeB S AR AL ElLE

174 BATESIR  RATESIR

SHEE ZaMERE ZaMERE

Assets 2423 HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS’ 000
At 31 March 2019 REZ-AE=ZH=1—H T T 0 aion T
Trade and other receivables JRE W 7 2 HL At R i 1,024,344 = =
Loans receivables e B 70,913 = =
Bank balances and cash SRITHERR B A 14,326 = =
Total A7 1,109,583 = =

B MR R A R A E 2019-2020 4 171
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Year ended 31 March 2020
BE_FZ -ZHE=H=1T—HIEFE

37.

172

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37.

(Continued)

The Group has classified its financial liabilities in the following

categories:

Liabilities
At 31 March 2020

fifi
REB2RE=ZA=+—H

RN o R kTR (A7)

A ] L1 L Al R8T DA 8

Financial
liabilities at
amortised

cost

2 8 5 AR
HikZ

& Rl 1
HK$’ 000
BT

Financial
liabilities at
FVPL
i a5

o PSR
Z 4l
HKS$’ 000

E¥ T

Trade and other payables JRE AR R R o Al JRE AT 3K 159,427 -

Borrowings g 185,944 -

Corporate Bonds TR 11,132 -

Contingent consideration payables JEEA s SR AR A - 11,200

Lease Liabilities HE AR 757 -

Total aat 357,260 11,200
Financial

liabilities at Financial

amortised liabilities at

cost FVPL

TR AR B

Gk NSRRI S

B Z A

Liabilities Fufi HK$’ 000 HKS$’000

At 31 March 2019 R-Z-IE=ZA=1—H wET T T

Trade and other payables JRE AR B R o G Al B A+ 3K 215,088 -

Borrowings ERcs 98,953 =

Corporate Bonds N FIMESR 10,623 =

Contingent consideration payables JREAST SR A AE = 15,739

Total At 324,664 15,739
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank
balances and cash, and borrowings. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise and maintain finance
for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial instruments such as loan receivables, trade and other
receivables and payables, which arise directly from its business

activities.

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been
described in Note 37.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk. The Group
does not have any written risk management policies and
guidelines. However, the board of directors generally adopts
conservative strategies on the Group’s risk management and

limits the Group’s exposure to these risks to a minimum.

38.
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Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F-FFZA=—ALFE

<ix il L B A B H AR M BUSR

AL 2 EE AW TR ARERATA 6 R
& URMEE - ZFEMTAZEZEAN
RBBERMERAER L BEE S - A%E
VAT AR R SR i % LA
WCEKk LA B M A i 2 FoAt el TR > B AR
HHEBES -

AR & LR 2 e s Ok DUR Mt sE37 2
B o

A B 1) <l T B 5 B 3 2R 2 15 R
B~ A g % O B S B o A A A
AT oy J\ By 7 B 2 T BOR KA ) o R
> S A R g AR
R <1 BSRE LA A 42 ) T Rl 2 Ja B I = I
& -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

By W A Wk (%)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F - FFZAST—ALFE

38.

174

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade receivables. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising
from cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is limited
because the counterparties are banks for which the Group

considers to have low credit risk.

Other receivables/loan and interest receivables

For loan and interest receivables, the Group’s management
manages and analyses the credit risk for each of their new
and existing customers before standard payment terms and
conditions are offered. The management assesses the collateral
and credit quality of each customer based on customer’s
background information, financial position, past experience
and relevant factors. The Group also reviews from time to time

the financial position of the customers.

For all other instruments including other receivables, loan and
interest receivables, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition. The Group have assessed and concluded
that the risk of default rate for the other instruments are
steadily based on the Group assessment of the financial health

of the counterparties.

The Group do not provide guarantees which would expose the

Group to credit risk.
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38.

N

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) g

fo B S5 B A i (A60)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F-TE=J= | —HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38. < /EUbe o 2 H AR R BOR (A7)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued) i SR IBEE (A7)

Trade receivables MW BT 5

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by AR AR 1 5 B 2 A R P I T

the individual characteristics of each customer rather than B , N2 KT I e e AT
the industry or country in which the customers operate and M A o K > A B R R R &

therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, 18% (2019:
20%) and 61% (2019: 86%) of the total trade and other
receivables was due from the Group’s largest customer and the
five largest customers respectively.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished between
the Group’s different customer bases.

The following table provides information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as at 31
March 2020 and 2019:

5 A KRB o A e A5 SR B B A 4R
oo A AR  REUCE 5 B H At iR TE AR
H18% (—F—JUE  20%) KX61% (—F
— LA : 86%) 43 Al AR AL M R KEF &
HKRES o

AR I L) A B R MR B 1R A S AT B
Wi 2 5 MR B e 1R SR Al - R A A DA BB AR T
FEEE o AR BB 1 09 5 B s 1R A4S R
3l R 2 A A [ %5 5 5 1 s 1R 277 A B
28 ISR LIR R R A
2 B A B AR & PR o

TREWHRAERR _F _FEL %
— =A== B IAE SRR Ll
IR (R H s A Bk

RS

Effective Gross
expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance

iR

1 ES G i 48 % e 4R Bt A
Year ended 31 March 2020 % >000 >000
BE_FFHF=A=1—"HIL¥E % Tt T
Current HIEE] - 218,603 -
Less than 90 days past due w90 H LR 1.02% 100,045 1,016
91 - 180 days past due w91 H & 180 H 6.10% 25,595 1,561
181 - 270 days past due w181 H #2270 H 0.32% 41,372 131
271 - 365 days past due #1271 H %365 H 5.00% 11,639 582
Over 1 year past due i — 4L - 20.91% 15,984 3,343
413,238 6,633
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7. <=

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38.  <xmhalbg & 8 H B R BOR (A7)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

= o (4E
Credit risk (Continued) e BB ()
et
Trade receivables (Continued) WL 57006 (37
Effective Gross
expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FHIA R
IR R R T 48 4 TR A
Year ended 31 March 2019 % $7000 $7000
BE_F-NE=ZHA=1—HILFE % T T
Current 1B ] - 65,949 =
Less than 90 days past due i h90 H LF - 74,764 =
91 - 180 days past due i H91 H %2 180 H = 48,786 =
181 - 270 days past due w181 H #2270 H = 4,144 =
271 - 365 days past due w271 H %365 H 1.5% 30,714 461
Over 1 year past due i — 4D b 1.5% 6,881 103
231,238 564
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience over TEH i 4R 2% 05 B A A K U Y R R AR A
the past years. These rates are adjusted to reflect differences B o 5 40 L e T S R DA S SR TR Bl B
between economic conditions during the period over which T 1 ] ) AR TR AR T AR TR T R A 4
the historic data has been collected, current conditions and the T S R i B 5 T 4 R F) 488 9 00 B T
Group’s view of economic conditions over the expected lives of TR -

the receivables.
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38.

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade

receivables during the year is as follows:

N

fo B S5 B A i (A60)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F-TE=J= | —HILFE

<e il L B A B H B R BOSRE ()

f BB (A7)
A BB 5 MR A s PR BB A B 0 T

2020 2019

el e

HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000

W T BT

Balance 1 April AU H — H Z &5 8% 564 -
Impairment losses recognised AN RS 2 W (E 1R

during the year 6,069 564

Balance at 31 March M=A=+—HZ4th 6,633 564

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate risk mainly
arises from the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest
rate on the bank balances and borrowings. However, the
management considers the Group’s exposure to such interest
rate risk is not significant as bank balances and borrowings are
all short-term in nature. No sensitivity analysis is prepared as

the fluctuation and impact is considered immaterial.

At 31 March 2020, it was estimated that a general increase or
decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all loss other
variables held constant, would increase or decrease the Group’s
profit/(loss) before taxation by HK$7,000 (2019: HK$91,000)

ESN

A 4R B R 32 2 3 4 A L B = 2 (R R AT
Rk KGR Z BTG A R P - &
> F P SRAT 45 B S AR B2 B M I
RS > AR A B A R E A
Ko PR MR B O > O A U
AT o

WoERCFRFEZH =T —H o fhEHR R
m E s S 1008 B > AE BT A A AT
BEERRIEAZEZBUT - AL EBKR
BLHT & A Ol 15 4% 338 o s b 4 v o
7,0007C (—F—JU4E : #¥91,0007T) ©

B AR M R A R A F] 2019-2020 4E#R 177
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Year ended 31 March 2020
BE_FZ -ZHE=H=1T—HIEFE

38.

178

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk

Management of the Group aims at maintaining sufficient
level of bank balances and cash to finance the Group’s
operations and expected expansion. The Group’s primary cash
requirements include payments for operating expenses and
additions or upgrades of property, plant and equipment and

intangible assets.

The undiscounted contractual maturity profile of the Group’s
financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period, based
on the earliest date on which the Group is required to settle
the financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period is

summarised below:

38.

<=

< i B 4 BE H B SR BUR (A7)

i By ¥ < L B

A A I L R A A A ) 2 SRAT A B e B
& BAEM 2 RH KGR R E
& ARBE L EEBEFREFELHLEH
X RB B EYE - RS RS L

& e B ST 2 BRH

ERE IR - AL 2 SRR RAEB
G & 2 N E R TIAR IR AR 4R A RS IR
JRE 485 A5t 46 il 8 i S L H AR E > A A
o

2020

e Jme 22

Total

Total contractual Within After 1 and
carrying undiscounted 1 year or within
value cash flow  On demand 5 years
BRI —4E Nk TER R
BRmAE  BEWAE TR ER LR
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
T T W% T oo T
Trade and other payables B AT R K B Al FEE A K 159,427 159,427 159,427 -
Borrowings fE & 185,944 185,944 127,133 58,811
Corporate bonds AT ES 11,132 11,132 11,132 -
Lease liabilities HEAME 757 757 560 197
357,260 357,260 298,252 59,008
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \3

fo B S5 B A i (A60)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F-TE=J= | —HILFE

38. i E B B H OB R BUR (A7)

Liquidity risk (Continued) Uit B < SRR (A7)
2019
“FNIF
Total
Total contractual Within After 1 and
carrying undiscounted 1 year or within
value cash flow  On demand 5 years
BRIRIGBL —AERH 15148 &
FRHAE  BERAE JAZEK IR HAFR
HKS$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BT BT T T
Trade and other payables B AsF R K B Al JEE Ao 5K 215,088 215,088 215,088 -
Borrowings (RS 98,953 98,953 87,325 11,628
Corporate bonds NEMfES 10,623 10,623 7,589 3,034
324,664 324,664 310,002 14,662
Exposure to currency risk 15 e B

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the end of
the reporting period to currency risk arising from recognised
assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate. For
presentation purposes, the amounts of the exposure are shown
in Hong Kong dollars, translated using the closing rate at the

year end date.

RS AR S [ i SR T B TN L i
REEARUAREMIIRRERLSNZ
BWIIEMEEZ BWER - HERTE
B > R B R L AR A B 2 T HE R 4

HREWIR -
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SR A R BT (A

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE_FZ -ZHE=H=1T—HIEFE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38.  sillJal b B H B R BUR (A7)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Exposure to currency risk (Continued) 5 W R B ()
2019
e
United United
(Expressed in Hong Kong States States
thousand dollars) Dollars Metical Renminbi Dollars Metical ~ Renminbi
BRI LE3:4)

(DLW T 70517 Eio MR NN Er WEFELT  ARW
Property, plant and equipment /3 + WK/ Sk 212 4,274 10,577 542 4,788 13,661
Construction in progress TERTHE - 7,556 398,193 = 5,698 416,082
Intangible assets U513 - - 724 - - -
Inventory PEAcy - 278 - - 530 -
Goodwill T - 2,358 114,613 = 2,358 114,613
Trade and other receivables PR 3 B LA Bk 39,57 19,956 951,127 35,722 11,683 871,797
Bank balances and cash BT LE S 114 107 534 882 998 4,150
Trade and other payables A R 3 e HL A RE £+ 3 (1,352) (1,562)  (135,344) (1,871) (593) (189,497
Borrowings {354 - - (41,844) - - (28953)
Tax payable JEAT 2R (5,421) (3,879) (1,132) (5,421) (2,107) (1,034)
Deferred income TAIENA - - (55,813) = = (48,174)
Exposure arising from E MR K

recognised assets and liabilities  H 7L 2 A 33,080 29,088 1,241,635 29,854 23355 1,152,645
Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 95 81 <2 il 7 A < il £
No financial assets and financial liabilities were subject to R-F_FER_F-NF=A=1+—
offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and B M <5l % P B (7R IR 8 -
similar arrangements as at 31 March 2020 and 2019. AEAT R PR B
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39.

40.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to provide returns for shareholders. The Group manages
its capital structure and makes adjustments, including payment
of dividend to shareholders, return of capital to shareholders
or issue of new shares or sale of assets to reduce debts. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The following table presents the carrying value of financial
instruments measured at fair value at the end of the reporting
period across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy as
defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into
which a fair value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of inputs used

in the valuation techniques as follows:

. Level 1 valuations: fair values measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the

measurement date.

. Level 2 valuations: fair values measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data

are not available.

. Level 3 valuations: fair value measured using significant

unobservable inputs.

39.

40.
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Year ended 31 March 2020
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Year ended 31 March 2020
BE_FZ -ZHE=H=1T—HIEFE

40. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 40. A PG (A)
The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities TREJIAERA -F _FFE=H=1—
that are measured at fair value at 31 March 2020. A A TEFT2NEE KARE -

Fair Value Measurement
AR
Carrying

amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Fi T £ 1% Fofk B35 A
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000
BT BWTx BWTr B%Tx #B¥Tx

Liabilities =4
Contingent consideration payables JEAT SR 11,200 - - 11,200 11,200
Total liabilities A 11,200 - - 11,200 11,200
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40. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

The following table presents the Group’s assets that are

measured at fair value at 31 March 2019.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \3
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Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F-TE=J= | —HILFE

40 PR (A7)

TREJIAREHMR T~ NEFE=H=1—
A AFEFENEE -

Fair Value Measurement

AR
Carrying
amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
WREIH  SB1sk fE2d H3MR M5t
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
Wi W Tor BT oo W Tor T oo
Liabilities 1
Contingent consideration payables M4 s SA A (H 15,739 - - 15,739 15,739
Total liabilities FES =L 15,739 = - 15739 15,739
Note: ir3

There were no transfers between any levels during the year.

The detail on fair value measurement of the contingent consideration

payable was set out in Note 28.

JAAAREE AN > A58 W] 37 S g o

JREASS BRCER ARABE 9 2P et AR A B 28 o
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Year ended 31 March 2020
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41.

184

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent Event

)

ii)

iii)

iv)

After the outbreak of COVID-19 in early 2020, a series
of precautionary and control measures have been and
continued to be implemented across the globe. The
Group is paying close attention to the development of,
and the disruption to business and economic activities
caused by, the COVID-19 outbreak and evaluate
its impact on the financial position, cash flows and

operating results of the Group.

On 23 April 2020, Mr. Yang Yong tendered his
resignation as a non-executive Director of the

Company.

On 24 April 2020, the Company proposed to issue
80 million subscription shares (the “Subscription
Shares”) to two subscribers at a subscription price of
HK$0.13 per Subscription Share, representing a total
subscription price of HK$10.4 million. The proceeds

will be used as general working capital of the Group.

On 28 May 2020, a subsidiary of the Group had
received a summons from the court in respect of loan
borrowing from a financial institution (“lender”). The
loan borrowing was overdue for repayment which was
secured by (i) personal guarantee by a related person
and (ii) pledged an investment property owned by the
Group. The Group was required to deliver to the lender
vacant possession of the property within 28 days of
the summons or repay the loan borrowing. The Group
is under discussion with the loan borrower for the

extension of the loan borrowing.
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42.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

Pursuant to the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, the statement of financial position of
the Company and the movements in its reserves are set out
below:

42.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \3
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Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F-TE=J= | —HILFE

A5l 2 BB IR Dl

AN FRGI Z BB RE > AAFZ
WA AR LR B LA S By a5 a0 T

2020 2019
ZRCORAE R
Note HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Bt aE W T T

Non-current assets e By e
Investment in subsidiaries TR N 7] 22 B 4,800 =

Current assets W E
Other receivables oAb E AR 3,850 15,292
Due from subsidiaries 2 ANIE O 1,413,051 1,307,496
Bank balances and cash SRATHE B B & 1,508 3,023
1,418,409 1,325,811
Current liabilities B £

Borrowings 58 88,400 50,000
Corporate bonds NEMESR 11,132 7,589
Other payables HABREAT K 13,272 9,128
Due to subsidiaries JREAST o Jo A i 13,121 6,290
Contingent consideration payables JREAT s SR AR A - 15,739
125,925 88,746
Net current assets i B B A 1,292,484 1,237,065

Non-current liabilities JE v Bh A
Borrowings e & 37,700 -
Corporate bonds AIlie - 3,034
Contingent consideration payables JREAT B SR A1 11,200 -
48,900 3,034
NET ASSETS A A 1,248,384 1,234,031

CAPITAL AND RESERVES JBe A K fiti fH
Share capital &N 30 42,260 42,260
Reserves Tl 42(a) 1,206,124 1,191,771
TOTAL EQUITY HE 25 AR AR 1,248,384 1,234,031

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
on 14 August 2020 and signed on its behalf by

Liu Rongsheng
BIRA:
Chairman

TR

RoFEZRENA A EERE AR
HETIEE > 0 DL B SRR

Fan Guocheng
¥t B ik
Director
#H
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7. <=

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 42. AXA=ZEMBRNE (42)

COMPANY (Continued)
(a) Reserves (a) fik
Convertible
bonds
Share  Contributed equity  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve losses Total
LEL
Rorgl  MARK  MEEH  EHER i
Note (Note (i) (Note (ii))
(In HKS'000) (LR e Akf) Wit W) W)
At1 April 2018 RZZ—NENA—H 947,369 594,707 88,798 (796,345) 834,529
Profit for the year and total U A 2 T A
comprehensive income for the year - - - 14,587 14,587
Transactions with equity holders WA AT RS
Contributions and distributions HERAK
Tssue of shares upon placing inJuly 2018~ H=Z—AELAREMEGRG  200) 136,400 - - - 136,400
Issue of shares upon placing R-F-AEARREMER R
in August 2018 30(i)) 158,400 - - - 158,400
Issue of shares upon conversion AR~V ik
of convertible bonds in December 2018 (S E TR 30(ii) 136,65 - (88,798) - 47,855
431,453 - (88,798) - 342,655
At 31 March 2019 REFZ-NE=R=F—H 1,378,822 594,707 = (781758) 1,191,771
Profit for the year and total EREHRERRIREER
comprehensive income for the year = = = 14,353 14,353
Transactions with equity holders SURRERH NER 2R
Contributions and distributions HERA
Issue of shares upon placing R Em TR - - - - -
At31 March 2020 RZZZRE=A=1-H 1378822 594707 - (767409) 1206124
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42, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

(a)

Reserves (Continued)

Note:

(1) Share premium represents the excess of the net
proceeds or consideration from issuance of the
Company’s shares over their par value.

(i1) Contributed surplus represents (i) the difference

between the nominal value of the aggregate share
capital of the subsidiaries acquired and the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued as consideration
pursuant to the Group’s reorganisation took place in
2001, (ii) the reduction of share premium and share
capital took place in November 2012 and May 2013

respectively.

Under the Companies Act of Bermuda, the Company’s
contributed surplus is available for distribution
to shareholders subject to the requirements of the

Companies Act of Bermuda.

(iii) As at 31 March 2020, no reserves of the Company
were available for distribution to the equity holders
of the Company (2019: Nil) in accordance with the

requirements of the Companies Act of Bermuda.

42.
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Year ended 31 March 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
SR B R B (7))

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-FE=J =P —H LR

7. <=

43. SUBSIDIARIES 43. MEAF
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as RoFEE=ZA=Z4—H KAWFE
at 31 March 2020 are as follows: Pt 2 m) Z FEA JR -
Place of
incorporation/ Nominal value of ~ Percentage of equity
registration and  issued ordinary shares/  indirectly attributable
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
L) A CRfTEER A% I A
WA 21 Bl kAR NS ifh /v E A Bttt REEH
Business Ahead Management Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100%  Provision of administration
service
FRERARAT T b ikesille
China Ocean Life Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100%  Inactive during the year
PRIEFEMRARAE Eil AP AEE R
Golden Thai Marine Products Group Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100%  Provision of trading of seafood,

investment holding and
securities holding

eREEEEARAR i 1T PUbEE R H S BRERR
R
Global United Investment Consultants Limited Hong Kong HKS2 100%  Provision of money
lending service
RS- BRBRARAA &k AV UM
Mindsim Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%  Inactive during the year
&k AV RE SRR
Rich Flash Limited Hong Kong HKS$10,000 100%  Investment holding and supply
chain management services
HRARAT & b B YR R R S TR B
Wisdom Glory Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100%  Holding of property
BB RAR & #RT ERLIES
Jin Yu Tang (Shenzhen) Fishery Group Co.,Ltd * The PRC RMB50,000,000 100%  Provision of supply chain
management services,
trading of seafood
IR R MARA A T ARH TRt R &
50,000,007 EmRS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \3

y
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Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F-TE=J= | —HILFE

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 43. WREAW (A7)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as RoFEE=ZA=Z4—H KAWFE

at 31 March 2020 are as follows: (Continued) MEARZFERFBWMT : (4)

Place of
incorporation/ Nominal value of ~ Percentage of equity
registration and  issued ordinary shares/  indirectly attributable
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
RE L/ CH#TEER Y]
WA 21 B REEEN Hift /v A BlEEa  EEEH
Shen Zhen Qianhai Yuheng Industry Chain Co., The PRC HK$100,000,000 100%  Provision of supply chain
Ltd* (Note a) management service,
trading of seafood

PR A AR A A HE #1100,000,000 PR BRE S S 1

(Hfita) BEGES

Shenzhen Yu Heng SCM LTD.* The PRC RMBI1,000,000 100%  Inactive during the year

(Note b)
7 A (L e A R A 7 O ARH1L,000,0007 AT
(Hitb)

Shenzhen Yuheng Trade Management Co., Ltd* The PRC RMB500,000,000 100%  Provision of supply chain
management service,
trading of seafood

RY TR S E A RAF i N B L RS RIS B e L

500,000,000
Yu Heng Shipping (Hainan) Company Limited* The PRC RMB100,000,000 100%  Provision of ships building
(Note ¢) service, however, the
operation commenced
subsequent to the year end
Tl () ARAT HE NG BRHL AR AR AR IR -
100,000,007 MER EE A% 7 B e
(Witc)
Jin Yu Tang (Cambodia) Fishery Co., Ltd Cambodia US$10,000,000 100%  Provision of ocean fishing,
(Note d) however, the operation
commenced subsequent
to the year end

R (RO AR R 10,000,000% 7 PR U

(Hiitd) AR Ty B Ry

Great Truths Developments Limited Islands British Virgin US$1 100%  Motor vehicles holding

EERERARAT KRS 1€ HARE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
SR B R B (7))

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-FE=J =P —H LR
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RERZRE=ZHA=1+—H > KXW EE
Pt 2 vl Z b T o (A)

43. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 43.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as
at 31 March 2020 are as follows: (Continued)

190

Place of
incorporation/ Nominal value of ~ Percentage of equity
registration and issued ordinary shares/  indirectly attributable
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
RE L/ CH#TEER A T R A
WA 21 Bt kAR il / kWA BlEEa  REEH
Shenzhen Qisen Fishery Company Limited The PRC RMB100,000,000 70%  Provision of ocean fishing
in Mozambique
FBLAR A A A i NG FRAMESR SR A
100,000,0007C
Stonechen Commercial - Produtos Mozambique MT5,000,000 100%  Provision of ocean fishing
Da Pesca De Moma Limitada in Mozambique
MR R R A A LE:4) 5,000,000 5 L B R
China Ocean Industrial Investment Holding Limited Hong Kong HKD10,000,000 100%  Provision of supply chain
management service,
trading of seafood
I AR A AR Fil 410,000,000 PR BORE e T I
BEMES
Lianyungang Anni Ocean Fishing Co Ltd The PRC RMB30,000,000 65%  Provision of ocean fishing,
however, the operation
commenced subsequent
to the year end
BRELRREREARAR I NG TR - MR R
30,000,000 7C PR SE S
Jin Yu Tang Aquatic Trading Co., Ltd* The PRC RMB5,000,000 100%  Inactive during the year
(Note e)
PRI & K 5 A R4 ) E o ARHS,000,0007 REERSET
(Hfite)
Shenzhen Yuduoduo Ocean Technology Co., Ltd The PRC RMB10,000,000 100%  Intangible assets holding
(Note f)
PN 2 Z R IR A 7 Gile N HAEEVEE
10,000,000 7
(e
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SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as
at 31 March 2020 are as follows: (Continued)

Place of

incorporation/ Nominal value of
registration and  issued ordinary shares/

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \3

fo B S5 B A i (A60)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-F-FFZA=—ALFE

43. WEA ¥ ()

RERZRE=ZHA=1+—H > KXW EE
Pt 2 vl Z b T o (A)

Percentage of equity
indirectly attributable

Name of subsidiary operation registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
RE L/ CH#TEER Y]
W 4 T LTS il / wEMEA BelEmA  REEH
Jin Yu Tang Ocean Aquaculture The PRC RMBS5,000,000 100%  Inactive during the year
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd*
PRI B g LA PR v HE ARHS,0000007E AR
Jin Yu Tang Aquaclture (Cambodia) Co., Ltd Cambodia USD5,000 51%  Inactive during the year
HERHRT CRIR) ARAA IR 5000370 AERERH

*  for identification purpose only

Notes:

(a) The registered capital is HK$100,000,000 and has to be

injected on or before 1 January 2024.

(b) The registered capital is RMB1,000,000 and has to be injected
on or before 1 May 2023.

(c) The registered capital is RMB100,000,000, paid up capital
is RMB88,000,000 and has to be injected on or before 31
December 2058.

(d) The registered capital is USD10,000,000 and paid up capital is
USD3,000,000 during the year ended 31 March 2020.
(e) The registered capital is RMB5,000,000 and has to be injected

on or before 31 December 2065.

(H) The registered capital is RMB10,000,000 and paid up capital is
RMB2,300,000 during the year ended 31 March 2020.

< fER)

Wik -

(a)

()

SR A B HE15100,000,000 TT 3l ZE 7
FoPUE—H—HRZAEA o

FEM A B AR 51,000,000 7030 28 7
TR - ASRZATEA ©

FEM A B AR H5100,000,000 78 M 42
A B N R H588,000,000 7T » 3l ZH iR
FERNEF H=+—HHZAEA -

BECEZ-FHE=F =+—HIEFEE
& A 210,000,000 25 7T K B 402 & A
3,000,000 3 TG ©

A A 2 N R 5,000,000 G ZE i —
TARTHEFT A=+ HEZHFEA -

BE_F FZE=H=1+—HILFEHE
it & A 25 N R #510,000,000 70 & B 42
AR N R 2,300,000 7T o

B MR R A BRA E] 2019-2020 4 191
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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S5 i A fi

(%)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-FE=J =P —H LR

43.

44.

192

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as
at 31 March 2020 are as follows: (Continued)

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the reporting period or at anytime during both years.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

Significant restrictions

Cash and bank balance of approximately HK$539,000 (2019:
approximately HK$4,194,000) are held in the PRC and are
subject to local exchange control regulations. These exchange
control regulations provide for restrictions on exporting
capital from the country, other than through normal
dividends.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform

with the current year’s presentation.
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